Pecyn Dogfennau

P
omer Sir Gar B
Carmarthenshire

ak

L% W
ey Cowt™

Mark James LLM, DPA, DCA

Prif Weithredwr,

Chief Executive,

Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP

DYDD MERCHER, 2 MAI 2018

AT: HOLL AELODAU'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU

YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW | FYNYCHU CYFARFOD
O'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU SYDD I'W GYNNAL YN
SIR, CAERFYRDDIN AM 10.00 AM AR
DYDD GWENER, 11EG MAI, 2018 ER MWYN CYFLAWNI'R

SIAMBR, NEUADD Y

MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA ATODEDIG.

Mark Jamespvs

PRIF WEITHREDWR

53¢ AILGYLCHWCH OS GWELWCH YN DDA

Swyddog Democrataidd:

Kevin J Thomas

Ffon (Llinell Uniongyrchol): 01267 224027
E-bost: KJThomas@sirgargov.uk
Cyf: AD016-001

w v Ga i EICHCYNGORArleinamdani
omer Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire

YOur counciLdoitonline

osen '
%y o www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU

13 AELOD

GRWP PLAID CYMRU — 6 AELOD

Cynghorydd
Cynghorydd
Cynghorydd
Cynghorydd
Cynghorydd
Cynghorydd

cahwbh-=

Ann Davies

Handel Davies
Jeanette Gilasbey
Betsan Jones
Gareth Thomas
Aled Vaughan Owen

GRWP LLAFUR - 4 AELOD

Cynghorydd
Cynghorydd
Cynghorydd
Cynghorydd

hoObd=

Deryk Cundy

Sharen Davies (Cadeirydd)
Shirley Matthews

Louvain Roberts

GRWP ANNIBYNNOL — 3 AELOD

1. Cynghorydd
2. Cynghorydd
3 Cynghorydd

P N
oneor Sir Gar B
Carmarthenshire

Anthony Davies

Irfon Jones
Hugh Shepardson

EICH cyNeorarleinamdani
www.sirgar.lyw.cymru

YOur counciLdoitonline

(-\ s’ A g
%y ca® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



S

10.

11.
12.
13.

AGENDA

YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB
DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL
DECLARATION OF PROHIBITED PARTY WHIPS

CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD |
LAW)

FERSIWN DDRAFFT O STRATEGAETH GORFFORAETHOL
NEWYDD 2018-23

STRATEGAETH DIGARTREFEDD
NEWID I'R POLISI ADNEWYDDU TAI Y SECTOR PREIFAT

CYNLLUN DATBLYGU LLEOL DIWYGIEDIG 2018 - 2033
CYTUNDEB CYFLAWNI DRAFFT

CANLLAWIAU CYNLLUNIO ATODOL DRAFFT - YNNI GWYNT AC
YNNI'R HAUL CYNLLUN DATBLYGU LLEOL SIR GAERFYRDDIN

BLAENRAGLEN WAITH Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU
AR GYFER 2018/19

EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL
EGLURHAD AM BEIDIO A CHYFLWYNO ADRODDIAD CRAFFU

LLOFNODI YN GOFNODAU CYWIR COFNODION Y PWYLLGOR
A GYNHALIWYD AR 29AIN MAWRTH, 2018

EICH cYNGORarleinamdani

Y
o Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru

5-60

61 -68
69 -74
75-102

103 - 152

153 - 160

161 - 162
163 - 164
165-170

Carmarthenshire o
¢ %  YOUrRCouNciLdoitonline
Unty Cont® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Eitem Rhif 5

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU
1129 MAI 2018

Fersiwn Ddrafft o Strategaeth Gorfforaethol Newydd 2018-23

e Y fersiwn ddrafft o ddogfen Strategaeth Gorfforaethol Newydd 2018-23, ynghyd &'r
cynlluniau gweithredu manwl perthnasol mewn perthynas ag Amcan Llesiant, ar
gyfer y Pwyllgor Craffu hwn

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt:

e Cyflwyno Strategaeth Gorfforaethol Newydd i:-
a. disodli'r Strategaeth Gorfforaethol gyfredol a gyhoeddwyd yn 2015

b. cynnwys ein Hamcanion Llesiant a'n Hamcanion Gwella ac i ymgorffori
prosiectau a rhaglenni allweddol a bennwyd yn Symud Ymlaen yn Sir
Gaerfyrddin: y 5 mlynedd nesaf".

e Cadw'r un set o Amcanion Llesiant ar gyfer 2018/19 ac un ychwanegol ar Adeiladu
Gwell Cyngor a Gwneud Gwell Defnydd o Adnoddau

Rhesymau:

e Ym mis lonawr 2018, cyhoeddodd y Weinyddiaeth newydd ei chynllun — Symud
Ymlaen yn Sir Gaerfyrddin: y 5 mlynedd nesaf. Roedd yn ei gwneud yn ofynnol i
Strategaeth Gorfforaethol newydd gael ei datblygu i adleisio ei gynlluniau a'i raglenni,
yn unol & Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol.

Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Bwrdd Gweithredol er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad:
OES - 4t Mehefin 2018

Aelodau’r Bwrdd Gweithredol sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio:

e Cyng. Emlyn Dole (Arweinydd)

e Cyng. Mair Stephens (Dirprwy Arweinydd)

e Cyng. Linda Evans (Tai)

e Cyng. Peter Hughes-Giriffiths (Diwylliant, Chwaraeon a Thwristiaeth)

Y Cyfarwyddiaethau: Swyddi: Rhifau Ffén / Cyfeiriadau E-bost:

Adfywio a Pholisi / Cymunedau

Enw Penaethiaid y

Gwasanaethau: 01267 224112

Wendy Walters Cyfarwyddwr Adfywio a Pholisi WSWalters@sirgar.gov.uk

lan Jones Pennaeth Hamdden 01267 228.309

[Jones@sirgar.gov.uk

Jonathan Morgan Pennaeth Dros Dro Qartrefi a 01267 228960
Chymunedau Mwy Diogel JMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk

Awdur yr adroddiad: 01267 224486

Rob James Swyddog Cynllunio Perfformiad a | RNJames@sirgar.gov.uk
Busnes Rheolwr Perfformiad, 01267 231955

Silvana Sauro Dadansoddi a Systemau SSauro@sirgar.gov.uk

o Sir Gar EICH cYNGORaArleinamdani
onser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
G e Your counciLdoitonline Tudalen 5
“nty Cot www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales


mailto:WSWalters@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:IJones@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:JMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:RNJames@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:SSauro@sirgar.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
11th MAY 2018

Draft New Corporate Strategy 2018-23

e The Draft New Corporate Strategy 2018-23 document together with the relevant
Well-being Objective (WBO) detailed action plans for this Scrutiny Committee

e The following sections within the document are relevant to Community Scrutiny:
Introduction

WBO 2. Help children live healthy lifestyles

WBO 6. Creating more jobs and growth throughout the county

WBO 7. Increase the availability of rented and affordable homes

WBO 8. Help people live healthy lives (tackling risky behaviour and obesity)
WBO 14. Promoting Welsh language and culture

Appendices

O O O O O O O

e Please Note: The detailed action plans for all the WBOs will be available as
document links within the final published document

This new Corporate Strategy consolidates the following plans into one document:-

1. The 2015-20 Corporate Strategy

2. The Improvement Objectives, as required by the Local Government Measure 20009.

3. ltincludes our Well-being Objectives as required by the Well-being of Future
Generations (Wales) Act 2015. Our Well-being Objectives do not have to change
every year, or be deliverable within one year. It is perfectly legitimate to set
objectives which span more than one year

4. Carmarthenshire County Council’s Executive Board key projects and programmes
for the next 5 years, as set out in ‘Moving Forward in Carmarthenshire: the next 5
years’

The New Corporate Strategy is framed by our Well-being Objectives.

As part of budget consultation in December 2017, we consulted on our Well-being
objectives. Over 600 responses were received, with agreement that all should remain.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

o Sir Gar EICH cYNGORaArleinamdani
onser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
R YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cot www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 6



IMPLICATIONS

We confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications
associated with this report.

Signed: Wendy Walters Director of Regeneration & Policy

lan Jones Head of Leisure

Jonathan Morgan  Acting Head of Homes & Safer Communities

Policy, Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
Crime & Management | Implications Assets
Disorder Issues
and
Equalities

YES YES YES YES YES YES YES

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities

Our key strategic policies are addressed throughout our Well-being Objectives
Crime and disorder is identified and addressed through the Well-being Objective 9:
Supporting good connections with friends, family and communities

Equality implications are addressed within the Well-being Objective 15: Building a
Better Council and Making Better Use of Resources

2. Legal

The law states that:-

a) We must carry out sustainable development, improving the economic, social,
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales. The sustainable development
principle is

‘... the public body must act in a manner which seeks to ensure that the
needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.’

b) We must demonstrate 5 ways of working:
Long term, integrated, involving, collaborative and preventative

c) We must work towards achieving all of the 7 national well-being goals in the Act.
Together they provide a shared vision for public bodies to work towards.

A prosperous Wales

A resilient Wales

A healthier Wales

A more equal Wales

A Wales of cohesive communities

A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh Language

A globally responsible Wales

Nooakowdd =~

o Sir Gar EICH cYNGORaArleinamdani
onser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
R ¢ Your counciL doitonline Tudalen 7
“nty Cot www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



3. Finance

We need to continue to strengthen the links between Strategic and Financial
Planning.

The Act requires the publication of a statement detailing how a public body proposes to
ensure that resources are allocated annually for the purpose of taking such steps to
meet the well-being objectives para 53 spsk 1

Our AGS has been revised to take account of the new CIPFA/SOLACE, 7 Principles
of Corporate Governance. This is addressed in the Building a Better Council and Use
of Resources Action Plan aligned to the 7 Principles. Internal Audit undertook a
stocktake during 2017/18 against the guidance specifications and identified any gaps
to be addressed.

4.I1CT

ICT implications are being taken forward within our Digital Transformation Strategy
and feature within the Well-being Objective 15: Building a Better Council and Making
Better Use of Resources

5. Risk Management Issues

Our key strategic risks are identified and addressed within Service Business Plans
that underpin our Well-being Objectives

6. Physical Assets

The key strategic Asset Management Plan incorporates our Well-being Obijectives,
Capital prioritisation takes into account the Objectives.

7. Staffing Implications

People Management Strategy issues are identified in Well-being Objective 15:
Building a Better Council and Making Better Use of Resources

wor Sip Gap EICH cYNGORaArleinamdani
onser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire
Tudalen 8 2

o YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cot www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



CONSULTATIONS

We confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as
detailed below:

Signed: Wendy Walters Director Regeneration & Policy
lan Jones Head of Leisure

Jonathan Morgan Acting Head of Homes & Safer Communities

1. Local Member(s)
2. Community / Town Council
3. Relevant Partners

4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations - All Departments have
been consulted and have had the opportunity to provide comments

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:

File Ref Locations that the papers are available for public

Title of Document . .
No. inspection

Well-being of Future

Generations (Wales ) Act 2015 B The Essentials Guide

Shared purpose:shared future
Statutory guidance on the SPSF 1 Core guidance

Well-being of Future SPSF 2 Individual Role (public bodies)
Generations (Wales ) Act 2015

(Lf(f(?é)c;over”me”t Measure - Local Government Measure (2009)

Corporate Strategy 2015-2020 - Corporate Strategy 2015-2020

Moving forward in

Carmarthenshire: the next 5 ) Moving forward in Carmarthenshire: the next 5

years years
Well-being Objectives 2017-18 - Well-being Objectives 2017-18

wor Sir Gar EICH cYNGORaArleinamdani
onser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
¢ YOUR counciL doitonline Tudalen 9
“nty Cot www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales


http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/160915-spsf-1-core-guidance-en.PDF
http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/160225-spsf-2-individual-role-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/localgov/100713part1lg.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/3342/corporate-strategy.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1212982/moving-forward.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1212982/moving-forward.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/2799/ccc-wbo-plan-17-18-final.pdf

Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Moving Forward in Carmarthenshire
The Council’s New Corporate Strategy 2018-2023

June 2018

b A www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Carmarthenshi

G

oo Sir G "y EICH CYNGorarleinamdani
S .‘r-i\ YOUR counciLdoitonline Tudalen 11

ity Cont’ www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Contents

Page
Introduction 3
Carmarthenshire’s Well-being Objectives
Help to give every child the best start in life and improve their early life
experiences 8
Help children live healthy lifestyles 9
Continue to improve learner attainment for all 12
Reduce the number of young adults that are Not in Education, Employment or
Traini 13
raining
. Tackle poverty by doing all we can to prevent it, help people into work and
improve the lives of those living in poverty 16
Create more jobs and growth throughout the county 17
Increase the availability of rented and affordable homes 21
Help people live healthy lives (tackling risky behaviour and obesity) »3
Support good connections with friends, family and safer communities ’8
. Support the growing numbers of older people to maintain dignity and
independence in their later years 29
. A Council wide approach to support Ageing Well in Carmarthenshire 30
o3 é . Look after the environment now and for the future 32
QL c
3 .g . Improve the highway and transport infrastructure and connectivity 33
>
= . Promote Welsh Language and Culture 34
© 3
i ?g_ . Building a Better Council and Making Better Use of Resources 38
=3
a
Appendices 39-49
Tudalen 12
crr Sir Gar ™ your counciL doitonline Page 2 of 50

Carmarthenshire www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales
L
ey



Moving Forward in Carmarthenshire: the next 5 years

In January 2018, Carmarthenshire County Council’s Executive Board presented its key aspirations for
the next 5 years — ‘Moving Forward in Carmarthenshire: the next 5 years’. This plan identified a
number of key projects and programmes that the Council will strive to deliver over the next five
years. It seeks to continuously improve economic, environmental, social and cultural well-being in the
County.

Given this direction, the Council needs to publish a New Corporate Strategy that consolidates and
aligns our existing plans.

The Challenges facing the Council

Following a period of engagement and consultation, the Carmarthenshire Well-being Assessment was
published in March 2017. The assessment looked at the state of economic, social, environmental and
cultural wellbeing in Carmarthenshire through different life stages and provides a summary of the
key findings.

A copy of the Carmarthenshire Well-being Assessment (2017) can be found on:
www.thecarmarthenshirewewant.wales. A precis of the Assessment’s Executive Summary is
outlined in Appendix 5

As the Council plans for the future we must take account of a number of challenges that we face.
Most of these challenges are driven by factors outside of the Council’s control but they are factors
that we have to consider as we develop and, in some instances, change the way that we work and do
things.

1. Acting in a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs (WbFG principle) - TBC
Increasing demand and complexity for services

Increasing expectations of provision at the same time as managing decreasing budget
Challenging economic climate and local economy

vk W

Increasing need to strengthen the digital infrastructure and support digital inclusion for

individual residents as well as public, private and third sector organisations looking to develop

economic prosperity and agile working

6. Changing demographic profile of the county and in particular its ageing population

7. Increasing risks to ensure children and young people are protected from harm

8. Adapting to environmental change

9. Increasing deprivation and poverty with growing inequities between communities

10. Increasing legislation and regulation from Welsh Government

11. Managing the workforce risks associated with the pace of change required by the
organisation.

12. Developing a dynamic economy in the context of Brexit - TBC

Tudalen 13

omeor - Sir Géﬁ : -
. 1 YOUr counciLdoitonline P
Carmarthenshire www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales Fage 3 of 50

G susn
Sy o



http://www.thecarmarthenshirewewant.wales/

The Council’s Core Values

In delivering this strategy it is important that we maintain our core values in everything we do:-

Core
values
One
Team
Take
Responsibility

o Sir Gac e EICH cYNGorarleinamdani
cmor Sir Gar wwwisirgarllyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire B .
[ Your counciLdoitonline
"ty Cout® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Customers First — we put the needs of our citizens at the heart of everything that we do

Listening — we listen to learn, understand and improve now and in the future

Excellence — we constantly strive for excellence, delivering the highest quality possible every time by

being creative, adopting innovative ways of working and taking measured risks

Integrity — we act with integrity and do the right things at all times

Taking Responsibility — we all take personal ownership and accountability for our actions

Bringing Plans together

This New Corporate Strategy consolidates the following plans into one document:-

1. It supersedes the 2015-20 Corporate Strategy

2. ltincorporates our Improvement Objectives as required by the Local Government Measure 2009
(See Appendix 1).

3. Itincludes our Well-being Objectives as required by the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales)
Act 2015. For the first time in Wales, there is a shared vision and set of goals for all public bodies
to work towards, our Well-being Objectives are set to maximise our contribution to these (See
Appendix 1).

4. Itincludes Carmarthenshire County Council’s Executive Board key projects and programmes for
the next 5 years as set out in ‘Moving Forward in Carmarthenshire: the next 5 years’.

Tudalen 14

iy meowendsitontine Page 4 of 50

By o™



Bringing Plans together

New Corporate Strategy
2018-2023

This document includes our Well-being Objectives and Key Improvement
Objective priorities which deliver key projects and programmes within
‘Moving Forward in Carmarthenshire: the next 5 years’

The above document
The above document shows how we will
The above document replaces the separate deliver Key projects and
replaces the Corporate Well-being Objective programmes within the
Strategy 2015-20 document which ‘Moving Forward in
included our Key Carmarthenshire: the
Improvement Objective next 5 years’
Priorities

Reviewing our Well-being Objectives
The Council’s new administration reaffirmed the Well-being
Objectives in August 2017 but also introduced the
additional Objective of Promoting Welsh Language and
Culture.

As part of budget consultation in December 2017, we again
consulted on our Well-being objectives. We had over 600+
responses - support was high and has increased for all.

Priorities

‘Moving Forward in Carmarthenshire: the next 5 years’ makes it clear that regeneration is the Council’s
number one priority. Our 15 Well-being Objectives cover the broad range of Council Services to
ensure economic, environmental, social and cultural well-being.

The allocation of resources to deliver these objectives is outlined in Appendix 2.

The Council’s Vision can be summed up as follows:-

‘Life is for living, let’s start, live and age well in a healthy, safe and prosperous environment’

Tudalen 15

oo Sir GarZg ™ your counciLdoitonline p
Carmarthenshire www.carmarthenshire. gov.wales Page 5 of 50

q,%‘;-




Start Well

1. Help to give
every child the
best start in life
and improve
their early life
experiences

2. Help children
live healthy
lifestyles

3. Continue to

//.

./‘

live and age well in a
healthy, safe and
prosperous environment

5. Tackle poverty
by doing all we can
to prevent it,
helping people into
work & improving
the lives of those
living in poverty

6. Creating more
jobs and growth
throughout the
county

7. Increase the

10. Support the
growing numbers
of older people to
maintain dignity &
independence in
their later years

Healthy, Safe &
Prosperous
Environment

12. Looking after
the environment
now and for the
future

13. Improving
the highway and
transport
infrastructure

www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

improve leamer ?gr?tllz%b!% of and connectivity
attainment for all

affordable homes

. 11. A Council

8. Help people live wide approach
4. Reduce the ZZ?EHX;‘:;% to supporting
number of young . : Ageing Well in ,
adults that are behaviour & eoesity) Carmarthenshire reouclold

: ; Welsh language

Not in Education, . and culture
Training connections with

friends, family and

safer communities

15. Building a Better Council and Making Better Use of Resources
Tudalen 16 N
Cafxz-tﬁi:n?hii‘f " vour counciLdoitonline Page 6 of 50

oy o



Start Well

(Infographics on the following will be ready for publication)

18% (32,846) of Carmarthenshire’s population
are aged between 0 and 15

there are currently;
751 Children in Need;

97 children on the
Child Protection
Register and 194

Looked After
Children in

Carmarthenshire

12.3% of children in
Carmarthenshire are
living in workless
households

There are 98 Primary
Schools (12,000
pupils) and 14
Secondary schools
(11,000 pupils) in the
County

30.7% of 4-5 year
olds being
overweight or obese

Tudalen 17

Page 7 of 50



Well-being Objective 1

Start Well - Help to give every child the best start in life and
improve their early life experiences

So why is this important? . g AU
- _ obally
e Giving every child the best ] S | coneswe [ GEEER R
start in life is crucial to /\ Lav:
reducing inequalities across /

the life course.

e What happens during these early years has lifelong effects on many aspects of health and well-being
- from obesity, heart disease and mental health, to educational achievement and economic status.

e Looked After Children (LAC) are more likely to have been exposed to Adverse Childhood Experiences
(ACE’s) associated with poor long term outcomes before entering care (Jones, 2011%).

Why this should concern us?

e For every 100 adults in Wales, 47 have suffered at least one adverse childhood experience (ACEs)
during their childhood and 14 have suffered 4 or more.

e 12.3% of children in Carmarthenshire are living in workless households, lower than the 2015 figure
of 15.3 and just below Wales (13.9%) but above UK (11.6%).

e In Carmarthenshire there are currently; 751 Children in Need; 97 children on the Child Protection
Register and 194 Looked After Children. (these are Qtr 3 figs, to be amended at Qtr 4)

What do we need to do?
e We need to give every child the best start in life and ensure development throughout early childhood.
e We need to build resilience against adverse experiences.

How will we do this?

A. We will support families by:
a. promoting bonding and attachments to support positive good parent-child relationships.
b. better equipping parents and care-givers with the necessary skills to avoid ACEs arising
within the home environment and encourage development of social and emotional well-
being and resilience in the child.
c. identifying and intervening where children may already be victims of abuse, neglect or
living in an adverse environment.
d. continuing to provide attachment awareness training in schools to ensure they become
attachment awareness schools.
e. ensuring that our specialist substance misuse team meets the needs of children by:
i. Providing specialist advice and support for front line teams
ii. Raising awareness of the dangers of substance misuse and support people to make
informed decisions to prevent the harm caused by substance misuse.

B. We will ensure that every child with identified additional learning needs (ALN) in all Carmarthenshire
schools will have access to delegated ALN funding and appropriate integrated support services — e.g.
Educational and Child Psychology, Sensory Impairment support and Advisory Teachers.

We will continue to develop the Flying Start programme, promoting early intervention for
disadvantaged families with children (0-3) living in specific deprived communities.

We will ensure the Council fully responds and delivers key childcare and play requirements moving
towards delivering 30 hours of free education and care for working parents.

Co More Information - You can see our detailed action plan to achieve this objective here

qahédadﬁﬁaltgs associated with outcomes for looked after children and young people: a correlates review of the literature Child:
care, health and development Page 8 of 50



Well-being Objective 2

Start Well - Help children live healthy lifestyles

A Wales of

Vibrant

So Why iS this important? Pros:erous A'::':“e"t ] Cohesive ‘:'I‘_:t'_'"_e& R{\e:ﬂ::;::re
ales S . riving
e Projections suggest an increase ales \ Welsh w
. . . Languag~
in trends for childhood obesity W __

going forward with figures
showing males between the ages of 2 — 15 being at greatest risk.

e The Play Sufficiency Assessment identified playing outside as the most popular setting for children
but also found that 32% of parents worried so much about their child’s safety that it affected their
children’s opportunity to play.

e Assessment engagement activity with primary school children showed being physically active to be
the second most important factor for positive well-being of children aged 6 — 11, after connections
with family and friends.

e Living healthy lives allows children to fulfil their potential and meet education aspirations.

e Habits established early in life remain with people to allow them to play a full part in the economy
and society of Carmarthenshire.

Why this should concern us?

e Carmarthenshire is the third worst County in Wales for levels of childhood obesity with 30.7% of 4-5 year
olds being overweight or obese, almost 5 percentage points higher than the Welsh average of 26.2%.

e Engagement with primary schools identified a strong link between physical activity and
opportunities to play in outside spaces, and to feel safe in that environment.

e 10% of people aged 5 to 16 have mental health disorders and 7% under 12 deliberately self-harm.

What do we need to do?

e We need to work with partners to ensure children across Carmarthenshire: eat healthily, are
physically active and maintain good mental health.

e We need to review if current measures and actions are making any difference.

e We need to measure activity through schools.

How will we do this?

A. We will increase the range of physical activity opportunities available for children, and target those
at higher risk of inactivity, using activities such as swim sessions (Free, Splash, School, Wave, Skills
Clubs), Actif Play and Storytime, Actif Passport to Physical Literacy, Dragon Multi-Skills and Sport,
5x60 and Focus Sport activity developments.

B. We will address mental health including reducing exposure to adverse childhood experiences.

C. We will promote eating healthy, including through school meals, the Healthy Schools scheme and the
School Holiday Enrichment Programme (previously Holiday Hunger scheme).

D. We will increase awareness of healthy lifestyles including promoting the Public Health Wales’ 10
Steps to a healthy weight preventative programme to help beat childhood obesity.

E. We will continue to develop, promote and deliver the Flying Start Programme.

We shall implement the School Holiday Enrichment (Holiday Hunger) Programme (SHEP),
supporting families and children during school vacations to cook healthy meals, particularly aimed
at pupils eligible for Free School Meals.

Through the Healthy Schools Scheme we will continue to increase the level of physical activity by
developing the Carmarthenshire Outdoor Schools Project

CO More Information - You can see our detailed action plan to achieve this °bje°“"e|"fféf'alen 19

Page 9 of 50


http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/888/news/40753/
http://www.wales.nhs.uk/sitesplus/888/news/40753/

Well-being Objective 2

Start Well - Help children live healthy lifestyles

How will we do this? Our detailed action plan to achieve this objective

(Lemon highlight means that this is not the Action or Measure’s main objective)

Actions and Measures

A Increase physical activities for children

We will work with Town & Community Councils and other community

1 organisations to look at ways to invest in upgrading Local leisure provisions March 2019
Part of MF5-71

We will ensure best use is made of school facilities to support wider community

2 o March 2019
activity. (Action also included in Objective 8, 9 and 11) MF5-30

3 We will review and implement an improved pathway of aquatics provision that P
enables participants to reach their full potential. (Also in Well-being Objective 8)
Through the Healthy Schools Scheme we will continue to increase the level of

a physical activity by developing the Carmarthenshire Outdoor Schools Project, March 2019

continue to hold our annual Pedometer Challenge and continue to embed the
Food & Fitness Health topic within Schools.

We will continue to work towards addressing the gaps identified in our most
recent Play Sufficiency Assessment (2016-2019) in order to ensure that local

5 children and young people have access to wide and varied play opportunities June 2019
and experiences including the potential of utilising school grounds, outside of
teaching hours. (Also in Well-being Objectives 1 and 5)

We shall increase the % of children who can swim 25m aged 11 (3.4.2.1)

6 (Also in Well-being Objective 8) (2017/18 Result 77.3%) toe

7 We shall maintain the number of young people (0-16) accessing free swim -
sessions (3.4.2.2) (2017/18 Result tbc)

3 We shall increase the number of attendances at Sporting Opportunities -
facilitated by Sport & Leisure Officers (3.4.2.8) (2017/18 Result - tbc)

9 We shall increase the number of visits to leisure centres per 1,000 population -
(PAM/017) (Also in Well-being Objective 8) (2017/18 Result -tbc )

B Address mental health
We will reduce exposure to adverse childhood experiences - these are addressed in Objectivel—
Help to give every child the best start in life.

Through the Healthy School Scheme we will continue to support schools in
their implementation of the Mental & Emotional Health and Well-being Health
topic including Anti-bullying strategies and healthy coping mechanisms such as
mindfulness and Speakr.

C Promote healthy eating

March 2019

We will seek to further develop healthy eating in schools, beyond statutory
Welsh Government regulations.

2 We will seek to increase take-up of school meals (including free school meals). March 2020
We shall implement the School Holiday Enrichment (Holiday Hunger)

3 Programme (SHEP), supporting families and children during school vacations to

cook healthy meals, particularly aimed at pupils eligible for Free School Meals.
(Also in Well-being Objective 5)

We shall continue to ensure that schools are abiding by the Healthy Eating in

4 Schools (Wales) Measure 2009 and the Healthy Eating in Schools (Nutritional
Tudd&lerf2€s & Requirements) (Wales) Regulations 2013, during cluster meetings,
schools visits and assessments.

March 2019

March 2018

March 2019

T
Q)
«
[0
—
(@]
@)
-
n
o



Actions and Measures

We will increase the % of schools achieving phase 4 of the Healthy Schools
Initiative (8.3.1.5) (2017/18 Result - tbc)

Date/
Target

tbc

We shall increase the percentage of children seen by a registered dentist within
3 months of becoming looked after (scc/30) (2017/18 Result - tbc)

tbc

We shall increase the percentage of children looked after at 31 March who
were registered with a GP within 10 working days of the start of their
placement (scc/31) (2017/18 Result — tbc)

tbc

Increase awareness

We shall continue to work in partnership with the Sustainable Pre-School
Healthy Schools Scheme in promoting the ‘10 steps to a Healthy Weight’

March 2020

We will continue to promote and raise awareness to campaigns specific to
healthy eating, physical activity and mental health such as ‘Walk to school
Week’, the ‘Daily Mile’, National Obesity Awareness Week and Mental Health
Awareness Week and promote the School Health Research Network through
the Healthy Schools’ Twitter account, Healthy Schools Network on Hwb, cluster
meetings and raise awareness with parents and carers via parents evenings.

March 2020

Flying Start Programme

We will continue to develop the Flying Start programme, promoting early
intervention for disadvantaged families with children (0-3) living in specific
deprived communities, ensuring good multi agency support to families across
the spectrum of need by developing clear pathways with internal and external
partners. MF5-82 (Action also included in Objective 1 and 5)

March 2020

Success Measure
Childhood obesity (Child Measurement Programme NHS)

Tudalen 21

Page 11 of 50




Well-being Objective 3

Start Well - Continue to improve learner attainment for all

So why is this important? A Hlorant AGlobally
e We all want all of our children Prosperous | A hesiient | cohesive [ CHRES R ( Respansible

Wales Wales

and young people to have the p | Language
best possible start in life by ~
supporting them to gain the skills and knowledge they need to lead happy, healthy, fulfilling lives.

e We want to improve outcomes for all ages through lifelong learning, to enable them to thrive in 215t
Century living and the world of work.

e Research by The Institute of Education suggests that attending a good pre-school and primary school can
have more impact on children’s academic progress than their gender or family background (Taggart, 2015)

e Our service remains committed to both the principles and priorities as outlined in the Welsh
Government’s most recent strategic document ‘Education in Wales: Our National Mission.’

Why this should concern us?

e There is currently a gap nationally (including Carmarthenshire) between the performance of pupils
eligible for free school meals (eFSM) and those who are not. This aspect of our end of key stage
performance and achievement continues to challenge and concern us.

e We have schools that need to improve in specific areas as recognised through the National
Categorisation system* (for 2017; 27% of Primary schools are rated ‘Amber Support Category’ and
1% of Primary schools is rated ‘Red Support Category’).

*Four levels of ‘Support Category’ exist — Green, Yellow, Amber and Red. All Secondary schools are currently
rated in the Green or Yellow Support Category.

e The 2015 PISA results (Programme for International Student Assessment), for which Kirsty Williams,
Welsh Government Cabinet Secretary for Education, has stated “remains the recognised
international benchmark for skills”, continue to show Wales adrift from the rest of the UK.

What do we need to do?

e We need to continue to improve results further for all learners, placing a focus on those entitled to Free
School Meals and vulnerable learners - see also Tackling Poverty Well-being Objective 5.

How will we do this?

A. We will ensure a relentless emphasis on improvement in education outcomes for all children and

young people across all learning phases, with a particular focus on vulnerable learners and those

entitled to Free School Meals.

We will continue to improve school attendance and learner well-being.

C. We will provide an excellent school in the right place by:

a. Improving the condition, suitability and resource efficiency of our schools network through
the Modernising Education Plan.

b. Developing an engaging, relevant and authentic Local Curriculum, within a clear framework of
national guidance, which will fully prepare our children and young people for the challenges
and opportunities of adult life.

D. We will continue workforce development and succession planning by:

a. Developing and supporting a collaborative self-improving school system to ensure high quality
leadership and provision for all learners.

b. Investing in further developing the skills of our teachers and support staff.

@

E. We will continue the development of Welsh in all our services, thus moving towards ensuring that
every pupil is confidently bilingual. Pupils can fulfil their potential in gaining skills to operate as
bilingual citizens in their communities, the workplace and beyond.

We will increase the Average Caped 9 points score which is currently regarded as the key measure
of achievement at the end of compulsory education.

udalen 22
More Information - You can see our detailed action plan to achieve this objective here
Page 12 of 50


http://gov.wales/docs/dcells/publications/170926-education-in-wales-en.pdf
http://www.oecd.org/pisa/

Well-being Objective 4

Start Well - Reduce the number of young people that are
Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET)

So why is this important? A e of
. & A Resilient i 2 Wale_s ot Culture & L Glnha?lly
e Reducing the number of NEET Prosperous | Syyjeg | conesive | rvine. (RS
young people reduces the effects | Languiane j
of poverty and the wider cost to W __4 v _

society of support services, reliance on benefits and offending.

e |tis essential to maximise the life opportunities of children, ensuring that as many young people as
possible are able to progress to school 6™ forms, Further Education Colleges, apprenticeships,
training provision or work.

e |t enables young people to contribute positively to their local communities.

Why this should concern us?

e The % of Carmarthenshire Year 11 pupils who became NEET in 2016 was 2.1% (40 pupils) although it
is a reduction on 2015 of 3.5% (69 pupils), while the % of Carmarthenshire Year 13 pupils who
became NEET was 2% (14 pupils) in 2016 down from 2.8% (21 pupils) in 2015.

e Carmarthenshire ranks 16™ (of 22) Local Authorities in Wales for Year 11 pupils becoming NEET and
above the All-Wales average of 2%.

What do we need to do?

e We need to ensure that all children and young people in Carmarthenshire have the best possible
opportunities to study, train and gain worthwhile employment locally, regionally or nationally.

e We will ensure that all vulnerable learners including those with a disability or additional learning
needs are not excluded from programmes.

e We need to continue to deliver the six elements of the Welsh Government’s Youth Engagement and
Progression Framework (YEPF) which comprises of:

0 Identifying young people at risk of becoming NEET,;

Providing brokerage and co-ordinated support for young people;

Improve tracking and transition support;

Ensuring provision meets the needs of young people;

Strengthening employability skills and entrepreneurship;

Ensuring we are accountable for our actions.

O O 00O

How will we do this?

A. We will implement the six Youth Engagement and Progression Framework Actions above.

B. We will deliver the local elements of the Cynnydd and Cam Nesa European Social Fund projects
(guaranteed funding till 2018-2020) which assists young people in progressing to further education,
training and employment during the Post 16 education phase.

C. We will implement the recommendations of the Carmarthenshire 11-19 Education Strategic Review.

D. We will build on existing partnership relationships with local businesses and the public sector
through the Carmarthenshire Curriculum Review to focus skills demands and employability of new
and existing labour market entrants within Carmarthenshire to ensure that local and regional
demands are met.

Also see Well-being Objectives 5+6 Action Plans re Hub and Regional Learning Partnership

We will work with partners to develop further opportunities for apprenticeships within the County.

We shall support care leavers where possible to ensure that they are in education, training or
employment at 24 months after leaving care.

CO More Information - You can see our detailed action plan to achieve this objectivd iggalen 23

Page 13 of 50



Tudalen 24

Page 14 of 50



Live Well

(Infographics on the following will be ready for publication)

59% (110,102) of Carmarthenshire’s population
are of working age (16-64)

Over 7 in 10 (73%;
78,600) of
Carmarthenshire’s
working age
population (16-64)
are economically
active

We created 280 jobs
and accommodated
200 jobs with
Regeneration

assistance during
2017/18

Over 1in 3 (35%) of

households are living

in poverty, according
to the Welsh

Government definition

— households with less
than 60% of GB median
income

There were over 1.5
million visits to our
leisure centres during
2017/18

Tudalen 25
Page 15 of 50



Well-being Objective 5

Start Well/Live Well - Tackle poverty by doing all we can to prevent it,
help people into work & improve the lives of those living in poverty

So why is this Important? A Wales of

Vibrant

. . A - . A Wales of A Globally
e Poverty and deprivation have Prosperous | peslient | cohesive [ Siture : T
. . Wal \ iti Wall
serious detrimental effects =es =
. anguage
across all aspects of well-being. p __ e

It limits the opportunities and
prospects for children and young people, damages the quality of life for families and communities.

e Poverty can be a barrier to full participation in society and is too often an intergenerational experience
which poses a significant threat to experiencing positive well-being both now and in the future.

e Research shows that children growing up in workless households experience consistently poorer
outcomes than other children whose parents are always working, in relation to educational
attainment and cognitive ability. 3,400 (12.3%) of Children are living in workless households.

Why this should concern us?

e 35% of households in Carmarthenshire can be defined as living in poverty, (Welsh average 33%).

e 13% of households In Carmarthenshire are living in severe poverty, which means they have an
income of less than £10,000 a year. Although this has fallen by 3% from the previous year.

e Of the 28,223 households living in poverty across Carmarthenshire, 33% (15,869) are rural.

What do we need to do?

e We need to prevent poverty — There is a strong correlation between being born poor and experiencing
a lifetime of poverty and many of the triggers of poverty experienced in childhood and later life are
preventable if identified and addressed in a timely manner. Providing early, targeted and holistic
interventions can therefore help reduce the likelihood of poverty occurring in our communities.

e We need to help people into work - work is one of the most fundamental and effective means of
tackling poverty in all its forms. Work provides income and opportunities for social, emotional and
cerebral development as well as improved health and well-being. Latest figures show that the median
income for Carmarthenshire is £23,365 which is below the Welsh figure of £26,580 and a decrease on
the median income for Carmarthenshire in the previous year.

e We need to improve the lives of people living in poverty by supporting those in poverty and
improving access to help to maintain basic standards of living.

How will we do this?

A. Our children and education services will work to prevent poverty through delivering key early
intervention programmes such as flying start and team around the family (TAF). In addition services
such as housing will take a more proactive, preventative approach to addressing key triggers of
poverty to prevent escalation of issues such as homelessness and fuel poverty.

B. We will help people into work by building their confidence and skills through the dedicated
Communities 4 Work programme and targeted support for those who are furthest from the labour
market e.g. those who are Not in Employment, Education or Training (NEET).

C. We will improve the lives of those living in poverty through promoting and supporting greater
financial literacy via services such as trading standards and housing benefits. We will also deliver
initiatives to support key vulnerable groups including the School Holiday Enrichment Programme
(SHEP), Toy Box and Hamper appeal.

We will develop a pilot project in the Tyisha ward to develop ways of addressing poverty in the
area. We will undertake a comprehensive multi-service community engagement programme with a
view to identifying key community and physical regeneration actions the Council, in partnership
with other stakeholders, can take to support the community to develop future opportunities and
prospects.

dalen 26
More Information - You can see our detailed action plan to achieve this objective here
Page 16 of 50



Well-being Objective 6

Live Well - Create more jobs and growth
throughout the county

A Wales of

Vibrant

A A Wales of A Globally

So Why iS this important? Prosperous AI\!;::I::M ] | Cohesive ‘EI"II:::J\:len& Responsible
s . Wales \ L] Welshg Wales
® Providing secure and well paid Language
. . _
jobs for local people is central to , .

everything we are seeking to achieve.

® Increasing employability is fundamental to tackling poverty, reducing inequalities and has a dramatic
impact on our health and ability to function in everyday society.

e With an ageing workforce, feeling stimulated, using skills and social interaction are much more important to
positive well-being in work than wage levels or job stability (well-being assessment survey).

Why this should concern us?

e Out of Carmarthenshire’s 73.4% employed working age workforce @Sep 2017, 58% of the workforce are
within the professional/technical/skilled trade occupations — well below the Welsh average of 63%,
whilst 42% are within the caring/leisure/customer service/machine operative occupations — well above
the 37% Welsh average.

Also see Well-being Objective 4 —Reduce the number of young adults that are NEET (Not in Education, Employment or Training)

e We must tackle a GVA (gross value added) gap that is widening between UK GVA & Wales GVA;
GVA is the measure of the value of the wages and profits from goods and services produced in an area.

What do we need to do?

e We need to build a knowledge-rich, creative economy by maximising employment & training places for local
people through creating jobs and providing high quality apprenticeships, training and work experience
opportunities, in order to have an on-going skilled and competent workforce to face the future.

e We need to evolve Carmarthenshire’s position in the Swansea Bay City Region (Swansea, Carmarthenshire,
Pembrokeshire and Neath Port Talbot) into a confident, ambitious and connected county.

e We need to continue to invest in our local rural, infrastructure, including transportation to attract
businesses, tourism/leisure to the county to promote economic growth and activity by building better
connections and generating a strong tourism industry (see Improving the highway & transport
infrastructure and connectivity Well-being Objective 13).

e We need to continue to invest in the strategic regeneration of our 3 principal towns, key strategic
employment sites and continue to support business growth.

e We need to support Welsh Governments’ - Prosperity for All-the National Strateqy:Economic Action Plan

How will we do this?

A. Regionally, by co-ordinating and delivering the Swansea Bay City Deal and specifically the
Carmarthenshire based projects — Yr Egin and the Life Science and Wellness Village

B. Locally, by delivering the Transformational Strategy Area Plans targeting bilingual urban, coastal and
rural Carmarthenshire

C. By identifying and addressing the issues facing rural communities

D. By developing learning, skills, employability and encouraging a spirit of entrepreneurship throughout
the county to support new businesses in the county (Regional Skills & Learning Partnership)

E. By developing Carmarthenshire as a dynamic economy, in the context of BREXIT.

We will ensure the County fully benefits from the opportunities that will be created through the
£1.3 billion investment through the Swansea Bay City Deal

We will establish regeneration initiatives to focus on the development of the rural market towns in
the County.

CO More Information - You can see our detailed action plan to achieve this objective—'aﬁrdalen 27

Page 17 of 50



http://gov.wales/topics/businessandeconomy/welsh-economy/economic-action-plan/?lang=en

Well-being Objective 6

Live Well - Create more jobs and growth
throughout the county

How will we do this? Our detailed action plan to achieve this objective
(Lemon highlight means that this is not the Action or Measure’s main objective)

Date/

Ref Actions and Measures
Target

A | Regionally, by coordinating and delivering the Swansea Bay City Deal

As part of the City Deal we will deliver the project plan for the Life Science and
Wellness Village. To include:-

e the development of detailed planning and space specifications

e the delivery of full planning and commencement of the design and build phase | June 2019
ensuring community and public engagement in the development of the Village and
use this to promote community connectivity and participation to ensure
sustainability MF5-72a (Action ID 12985)

We will support the delivery of the £24million Yr Egin; to ensure the County fully
2 benefits from the opportunities that will be created through the £1.3 billion March 2023
investment through the Swansea Bay City Deal MF5-72¢

3 | We will maintain the Swansea Bay City Deal Regional Office MF5-72d March 2019

Locally, by delivering the Transformational Strategy Area Plans targeting urban, coastal and
rural Carmarthenshire.

We will deliver the Carmarthen, Ammanford & Rural transformational plan and
deliver initiatives and projects to support:

e Jobs created

e Jobs accommodated

e Floor space created
1 e Numbers into training

) March 2019
e Numbers into work
e Private sector funding
Via Carmarthenshire Rural Enterprise Fund; Property Development Funds;
Projects including Pendine attractor; Margaret Street road widening; Carmarthen
wetlands and Jacksons Lane Carmarthen development; Business Account
Management and Business Start Ups and Incubation.
2 We will deliver a Property Development Fund worth £8.6million (£3million from March 2019

the Council and circa £5.6million private sector investment MF5-73f

We will deliver the Cross Hands Growth Zone, Llanelli and the Coastal Belt
Transformational Plan and deliver initiatives and projects to support
e Jobs created
e Jobs accommodated
e Floor space created
3 e Numbers into training March 2019
e Numbers into work
e Private sector funding
Via Llanelli Town Centre Loan; Projects including Opportunity St, Llanelli; Cross
Hands East Phase 2; Strategic Employment Site; Workways + Buccaneer; Business
Account Management; Beacon Bursary; Business growth fund and start up fund.

We will develop Local Employment Sites across the County as part

. . . . March 2019
Transformations: strategic regeneration plan for Carmarthenshire MF5-73e

PFudaleniRBvelop a programme to support small business across the County. MF5-78 March 2019

Page 18 of 50



Date/

Ref Actions and Measures
Target

6 We will Deliver Transformational town centre developments in Llanelli MF5-73a March 2023

7 We will further develop the Carmarthenshire Coastal Belt at Pembrey MF5-73¢ March 2023

8 We will further develop the Carmarthenshire Coastal Belt at Pendine March 2023

9 We will deliver phase 2 c_)f th(-é development of Glanaman Workshops to provide March 2020
improved workshop availability. MF5-10

C By identifying and addressing the issues facing rural communities
We will deliver-the Rural Enterprise Fund worth £4.3million (E2million from the

1 . . - . . March 2019
Council and circa £2.3million private sector investment). MF5-73g
We will consider opportunities to work with other local authorities and partners to

2 . . March 2019
establish a Rural Deal to focus on rural regeneration. MF5-77
We will establish a Task Group to consider the issues effecting the rural

3 communities in Carmarthenshire & identify actions the Council, in partnership with | March 2019
other public bodies and organisations, can take to address those issues. MF5-76
We will consider options for ensuring the most effective use of the Council farm

4 R March 2020
estate to support affordable farming initiatives. MF5-14.

5 We will establl_sh regeneration initiatives to focus on the development of the rural March 2019
market towns in the County MF5-73b

D By developing learning, skills, employability and encouraging a spirit of entrepreneurship
throughout the county to support new businesses in the county.
We will deliver the £30million Skills and Talent Initiative to ensure the County fully

1 benefits from the opportunities that will be created through the £1.3 billion March 2023
investment through the Swansea Bay City Deal. MF5-72b
We will extend the Hwb model developed in Llanelli to Ammanford and

2 Carmarthen, making front line support services more accessible to residents Mr5-83 | March 2019
(Also in Well-being Objective 5)

E Developing Carmarthenshire as a dynamic economy

1 We will |nvestlgate and monitor the impact of BREXIT on the economy of March 2019
Carmarthenshire MF5-84

2 We. v§/|.ll maximise external funding in order to realise county wide economic March 2019
activities
Work with partners to address issues in terms of superfast broadband access and

3 . . ) . . March 2019
mobile phone signal across the County and in particular in rural areas. MF5-74

4 W.e will continue to maximise external funding and to support the growth of the March 2019
third sector.
We will ensure the Council uses its stock and assets to facilitate economic

5 L March 2019
development within the County. MF5-79 & MF5-92
We will lead on and complete all land acquisitions required to facilitate strategic

6 highway schemes such as Cross Hands Economic Link Road and Towy Valley March 2019
Cycleway
We will develop and deliver the Countywide Tourism Destination Management

7 Plan 2015-2020 and support the promotion of Carmarthenshire as an attractive March 2019
and quality place to visit and stay.
We will deliver a transformation plan for the existing Museums provision at the
County Museum Abergwili, Parc Howard, Kidwelly Industrial Museum and Museum

3 of Speed Pendine to improve the provision for residents and visitors whilst also March 2022
maintaining links with and promoting independent museums within the County. In
addition, it is intended to undertake work to further develop Oriel Myrddin. MF5-64
(Action also in Well-being Objectives 8 & 14)
We will begin the museums transformation plan with the delivery of a £1.2 milli ket

9 redevelopment of the County museum at Abergwili. MF5- 65 O.FUdM 29

Page 19 of 50




Date/

Ref Actions and Measures
Target
(Action also in Well-being Objectives 8 & 14)
10 We will reyiew ahd re-de\{elop "che‘ Council’s Theatre Services provision. March 2019
MF5-66 (Action also in Well-being Objectives 8 & 14)
Improve and develop the infrastructure and facilities at Pembrey Country Park to
11 | enable it to become a first class facility for residents and visitors. March 2020
MF5-67 (Action also in Well-being Objective 8)
12 Del!ver a £'2m|II|on‘progr'arr?me to re-develop Burry Port Harbour. MF5-69 March 2019
(Action also in Well-being Objective 8)
We will support community groups and organisations to promote and publicise the
13 rich variety of community event being held in Carmarthenshire from agricultural March 2019
shows, festivals and carnivals to exhibitions, concerts and performances MF5-85
(Action also in Well-being Objectives 9 & 14)
F | Overarching Performance Measures
1 We will aim to create TBC more jobs (Econb/001) (2017/18 Result - TBC) TBC
2 We will aim to accommodate TBC jobs (Econb/002) (2017/18 Result - TBC) TBC
3 We will aim to place TBC people into jobs (Econb/003) (2017/18 Result - TBC) TBC
4 We will aim to place TBC people into training (Econb/004) (2017/18 Result - TBC) TBC
5 We will aim to create TBC sqft of Floorspace (Econp/006) (2017/18 Result -TBC) TBC sqft
6 Level of Private Sector Investment / external funding secured £ TBC (Econb/008) - G
(2017/18 Result -TBC)
7 We will ensure that a high percentage of undisputed invoices are paid within 30 o
days to help local businesses cash-flow (crH/006) (2017/18 Result — TBC %) 0
3 We will ensure that we conduct trading standards inspections for all high risk 100%
businesses (ppn/001i) (2017/18 Result — TBC %) °
9 We will ensure that we conduct animal health inspections for all high risk 100%
businesses (pPPN/001iii) (2017/18 Result — TBC %) °
Employment figu FeS (ONS — Annual Population Survey) (National Well-being Indicator)
Gross weekly pay (Median) (ONS — Annual Survey of hours and earnings)
Number qualified to NVQ Level 4 or above (stats Wales) (National Well-being
Indicator)
People moderately or very satisfied with their jobs (national survey for wales)
(National Well-being Indicator)
Tudalen 30

Page 20 of 50



Well-being Objective 7

Live Well - Increase the availability of
rented and affordable homes

So why is this important? A ies of
. & A Resilient i AWaIe.s of Culture & AGInha_IIy
e Good quality affordable homes Prosperous | =y jeq | Cohesive Thriving | Recpensible
promote health and well-being, \ Lancme J
meeting the individual needs of W 4

the residents, building strong sustainable communities and places where people want to live.

e Good quality energy efficient affordable homes are good for the People and the Environment - as
the energy use within the home will be reduced, having a significant effect on reducing the fuel costs
for the occupying residents. It will also have a significant effect on reducing pollutants in the
atmosphere and mitigating fuel poverty in our communities.

e It's good for the Social Structure - well-placed affordable housing developments allow communities to
welcome a wide range of families and to create a vibrant, diverse, group of residents.

e |t's good for the Economy - in order to thrive, new businesses need easy access to its workforce.
Affordable housing developments ensure that working families will remain in their community.

Why this should concern us?

e People told us during our consultation on affordable Housing in 2015 that we need to:

O Target help where the need is highest, in both urban and rural areas, by delivering more
affordable homes for rent.

0 Be more flexible - whether by bringing wasted homes back into use, buying existing homes or
building new ones.

0 Do whatever it takes by developing innovative and creative ways to deliver more homes.

0 Use our resources in the best possible way to ensure as many new homes as possible.

0 Use the expertise, skills and resources of those we work with.

What do we need to do?

e We need to provide additional affordable homes to meet the needs of residents in Carmarthenshire.

e We need to build new council homes across the County.

e We need to actively work with private landlords to encourage them to make their properties
available at affordable rental levels, including bringing more private sector homes into the
management of our in-house ‘Simple Lettings Agency’.

e We need to work in partnership with Housing Associations in Carmarthenshire to maximize the
supply of new build affordable homes.

e We need to actively work with property owners to bring empty homes back into use.

e We need to purchase homes from the private sector and increase the Council Social Housing stock.

e We need to maximize the number of affordable homes delivered through developer contributions from
the planning system.

e We need to maximize all funding opportunities for both the Council and Housing Associations.

How will we do this?

A. We will deliver all of the above through our Affordable Homes Delivery Plan by building new council
homes directly through the Housing Revenue Account. By bringing empty homes back into use to
increase choice and accessibility of homes in the areas of greatest housing need.

We will develop a wider range of homes through our recently established Housing Company.
We will purchase private sector homes to increase the Council’s housing stock in the areas of
greatest housing need.

We will continue to manage private sector homes, for Private Landlords, through the ‘Simple
Lettings Agency’.

Ce More Information - You can see our detailed action plan to achieve this objective-FHgalen 31
Page 21 of 50



http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/documents/s4418/Report.pdf

Well-being Objective 7

Live Well - Increase the availability of
rented and affordable homes

How will we do this? Our detailed action plan to achieve this objective

(Lemon highlight means that this is not the Action or Measure’s main objective)

Ref Actions and Measures DG
Target
A Affordable Homes Delivery Plan
We will increase the number of affordable homes in the County by delivering 2018/19 - 236
1 the affordable homes plan (7.3.2.24 MF5-44) (2017/18 Result - TBC) 2019/20 - 210
2020/21- 196
2 We will increase the number of new additional properties managed by our TBC
internal social lettings agency. (7.3.2.25) (2017/18 Result - TBC)
We will deliver a clear affordable homes commissioning plan which will inform
3 . . . y . June 2018
the newly established Local Housing Trading Company’s Business Plan. MF5-45
We will deliver the Swansea Bay City Deal programme to develop ‘Homes as
a Power Stations’ to help generate sustainable and affordable homes and March 2021
address fuel poverty for our residents. MF5-46 (Action also in Well-being Objectives 5
&12)
5 We will engage with tenants and key partners to maintain the Dec 2018
Carmarthenshire Home Standard for all Council owned properties. MF5 48
We will support all Council tenants through Welfare Reform as changes are
6 implemented and deliver Universal Credit action plan in order to maximise March 2021
income and develop new training and employment opportunities. MF5-49
(Action also in Well-being Objective 5)
We will develop a new Homelessness Strategy to ensure vulnerable residents
are supported appropriately to include:
7 - Develop housing options for single people ' Dec 2018
- Develop a plan to ensure homeless people have access to health services
- Review our approach to how we manage temporary accommodation
MFS5 50 (Action also in Well-being Objective 5)
We will develop actions to deliver a sustainable future for the Station Road
area in Llanelli by:
3 - Engaging with the community Dec 2018
- Creating an ambitious but sustainable master plan Jun 2019
- Development of a costed delivery plan Dec 2019
MF5 51 & MF5-47
We will increase the % of empty private properties brought back into use TBC%
9 (PAM/013) (2017/18 Result - TBC% - TBC dwellings) T dwe”?ngs
This measures include all previously empty properties and not only affordable homes.
We will increase the number of new homes created as a result of bringing
10 empty properties back into use (PAM/014) TBC
(2017/18 Result - TBC additional dwellings) | Additional dwellings
This measures include all previously empty properties and not only affordable homes.
Number of affordable homes in the County (7.3.2.24)
Tudalen 32

Page 22 of 50




Well-being Objective 8

Live Well - Help people live healthy lives
(tackling risky behaviour and obesity)

So why is this important? R
. . . & A Resilient i - Culture & & Glob‘?"v
e Our way of life is changing, i Ll Wales { Cohesive Thriing (SRR
people are living longer with a ) L:::.i';e J
higher quality of life. W 4

e The challenge is to prevent ill health.

e Living healthy lives allows people to fulfil their potential, meet educational aspirations and play a full
part in the economy and society of Carmarthenshire.

e Many of the preventive services and interventions required to maintain health, independence and
well-being lie outside health and social care.

e Playing a part in providing accessible, inclusive, exciting, sustainable services, which promote and
facilitate learning, culture, heritage, information, well-being and leisure.

Why this should concern us?
e There is a significant gap in life expectancy and a healthy life expectancy. In Carmarthenshire:-
o Life expectancy for males is 78.6 years (2014-16) compared to a healthy life expectancy of 65 years

(2010-14)

o Life expectancy for females is 82.2 years (2014-16) compared to a healthy life expectancy of 66 years
(2010-14)

e Healthy life expectancy of both males and females are below the Welsh average of 65.3 and
66.7 years.

o 21% of adults are still smoking in Carmarthenshire and 57% of adults are overweight or obese
(Welsh Average of 59%) Welsh Health Survey 2016/17

What do we need to do?
e We need to work with partners to ensure people across Carmarthenshire:
O Eat and breathe healthily
O Are physically active; and
0 Maintain good mental health.
e We need to remove inequalities around opportunities for people to address these 3 key areas

How will we do this?

A. Eat and breathe healthily: We will provide healthy vending and food options as part of their catering
provision at our Leisure facilities and continue to ensure that our outdoor recreation facilities i.e. Country
Parks, rights of way networks remain well maintained and accessed safely and enjoyed by everyone.

B. Physical Activity: We will continue investment in the new state of the art Wellness Village in Llanelli;
promote in partnership the ethos of getting “more people more active more often” and enable
employers in the workplace to support the health and well-being of their workforce through
Workplace Health initiatives.

C. Mental Health: We will continue to work with health and third sector partners to transform mental
health services and improve access to information, advice, preventive and crisis services in
Carmarthenshire. We will aim for people to experience the positive health benefits of taking
inspiration from museum collections to promote creativity, mindfulness and self-confidence and imbed
the New Mobile Library Fleet to improve information, digital and health literacy across the county.

We shall invest in the County’s leisure centre provision with the development of a new facility in Llanelli
as part of the Wellness Village.

We will implement the Cycling Strategy for Carmarthenshire that will focus on 5 key strategic themes:
Education, Development & Training; Infrastructure & Facilities; Marketing & Branding; Tourism & Events

C More Information - You can see our detailed action plan to achieve this objective ;rel#éjalen 33
Page 23 of 50



Well-being Objective 8

Live Well - Help people live healthy lives
(tackling risky behaviour and obesity)

How will we do this? Our detailed action plan to achieve this objective

(Lemon highlight means that this is not the Action or Measure’s main objective)

Ref

Actions and Measures

Also see:
Objective 1 — Help to give every child the best
Objective 2 — Help children live healthy lifestyles and improve their early life experiences

Date/
Target

Eat and breathe healthily

Review catering provision across the Leisure Division

July 2018

We will continue to monitor air quality (nitrogen dioxide) for the residents of and
visitors to the County. This will be carried out by regular assessments and, where
necessary, sampling programmes.

March 2019

Monitor private water supplies to ensure safety for the residents in
Carmarthenshire. The service will explore the possibility of extending the
programme to testing for the presence of radon and remediation as necessary.

March 2019

We shall ensure that a very high percentage of food establishments meet food
hygiene standards (PAM/023) (2017/18 Result -TBC%)

TBC%

We shall ensure that all high risk Food businesses that are liable to a programmed
inspections are inspected. (PPN/001ii) (2017/18 Result — TBC%)

100%

We will utilise information from the population needs assessment to plan the
service at a locality level within the 3 Locality areas, which incorporate the GP
clusters.

» TTT - Carmarthen Area

» Aman Gwendraeth Area

» Llanelli Area
This will provide a more detailed understanding of what the populations needs
are and will allow planning of health and social care services at Locality Level and
will consider the key objectives outlined in our ‘model of delivery’ section.

April 2021

We will work with community organisations to improve access to the network of
footpaths and bridleways across the County. MF5-68

March 2019

Report 6 monthly

Physical Activity

We will support and manage a Workplace health champion to effect change in
physical activity levels and general well-being of staff and adults on a sustainable
basis.

June 2019

We will ensure a range of targeted physical activity interventions are put in place
across the life course to increase the activity levels of those who are inactive or at

risk of becoming inactive and increase social and community cohesion. (Action also
in Well-being Objective 11)

March 2019

We shall invest in the County’s leisure centre provision with the development of a
new facility in Llanelli as part of the Wellness Village. MF5-61

March 2019

We will implement the Cycling Strategy for Carmarthenshire that will focus on
5 key strategic themes. 1- Education, Development & Training; 2-
Infrastructure and Facilities; 3-Marketing & Branding; 4-Tourism and 5 -
Events. (Part of MF5-1- Carmarthen Velodrome)(Action also in Well-being Objective 13)

March 2023

We will review and implement an improved pathway of aquatics provision that
enables participants to reach their full potential. (Also in Well-being Objective 2)

March 2019

Fud

a\/I\l I)fné nsure best use is made of school facilities to support wider community
activity. MF5-30 (Action also in Well-being Objective 2)

March 2020

Page 24 of 50




Actions and Measures

We will develop a new 3G pitch and improved parking facilities in Ammanford
and track improvements at Carmarthen leisure centre. MF5-62

Date/
Target

March 2019

We shall strive to continue to increase the number of visits to leisure centres per
1,000 population (PAM 017) (Also in Well-being Objective 2) (2017/18 Result - TBC)

TBC per 1,000

population

We shall increase the % of children who can swim 25m aged 11 (3.4.2.1)
(Also in Well-being Objective 2) (2017/18 Result 77.3%)

Tbhc %

10

We shall increase the percentage of people referred to the National Exercise
Referral scheme that attend the initial consultation of the programme (3.4.2.6)
(2017/18 Result TBC%)

Thc %

11

We shall increase the percentage of people referred to the National Exercise
Referral scheme that complete the 16 week programme (3.4.2.7)
(2017/18 Result TBC%)

Thc %

Mental Health

We will contribute to health led transformation programmes in mental health
and redesign of services within learning disability

Dec 2018

We will develop the ‘Stordy Digidol’ digital project to widen access to our

County’s collections and cultural services and promote improved mental health.
(Action also in Well-being Objective 14)

March 2019

We will deliver a transformation plan for the existing Museums provision at the
County Museum Abergwili, Parc Howard, Kidwelly Industrial Museum (via the
KIM Trust) and Museum of Speed, Pendine to improve the provision for residents
and visitors whilst also maintaining links with and promoting independent
museums within the County. In addition, it is intended to undertake work to

further develop Oriel Myrddin. MF5-64
(Action also in Well-being Objectives 6 & 14)

March 2022

We will begin the museums transformation plan with the delivery of a £1.2

million redevelopment of the County museum at Abergwili. MF5-65
(Action also in Well-being Objectives 6 & 14)

March 2020

Review and re-develop the Council’s Theatre Services provision. MF5-66
(Action also in Well-being Objectives 6 & 14)

March 2019

We shall improve and develop the infrastructure and facilities at Pembrey

Country Park to enable it to become a first class facility for residents and visitors.
MF5-67 (Action also in Well-being Objective 6)

March 2020

We will deliver a £2million programme to re-develop Burry Port Harbour.
MF5-69 (Action also in Well-being Objective 6)

March 2019

We will celebrate and promote Carmarthenshire’s rich cultural and sporting
achievements and diversity. MF5 70 (Action also in Well-being Objective 14)

March 2019

(Annual)

We shall increase the number of library visits per 1,000 population (PAM/016)
(2017/18 Result TBC)

TBC

Success Measures

Adults who say their general health is Good or Very Good (national Survey for Wales)

Adults who say they have a longstanding illness (national survey for wales)

Adult mental weII-being SCOre (National Survey for Wales) (National Well-being Indicator)

Adults who have fewer than two healthy lifestyle behaviours (vational survey for
Wales) (National Well-being Indicator)

(Not smoking, drinking > 14 units or lower, eating at least 5 portions fruit & veg the previous day, having a healthy
body mass index, being physically active at least 150 minutes the previous week).

Tudalen 35

Page 25 of 50




Tudalen 36

Page 26 of 50



Age Well

(Infographics on the following will be ready for publication)

Almost 1in 4 (23%, 42,662) of
Carmarthenshire’s population are of
pensionable age (65+)

Life Expectancy is
78.6 for men and
82.2 for women but a
Healthy Life
Expectancy is 65 for
men and 66 for
women

Carmarthenshire has an
ageing population. By
2039, around 1in 3
(31%; 58,900) of
residents will be aged
65 and over

1in 3 have a limiting
iliness

48% (close to the
National average of
50%) of
Carmarthenshire
residents feel they live
in cohesive
communities

Tudalen 37

Page 27 of 50



Well-being Objective 9

Live Well/Age Well - Support good connections with
friends, family and safer communities

So why is this important? A Wales of
. . . . Vibran
* Loneliness and social isolation oross A Resilient i Awales of (e e
] rosperous Wales | 0 esn:re_ e Responsible
are harmful to our health, with pales \ Welsh aes

research showing that lacking _4 _ -
social connections is as
damaging to our health as smoking 15 cigarettes a day and is worse for us than well-known risk
factors such as obesity and physical inactivity.

e Social networks and friendships not only have an impact on reducing the risk of early death and
illnes, but they also help individuals to recover when they do fall ill .

e Social isolation puts individuals at greater risk of cognitive decline with one study concluding that
lonely people have a 64% increased chance of developing clinical dementia

e The lack of connectedness is not just an issue of older people with a recent report suggesting that
almost two-thirds (65%) of 16-24-year-olds said they feel lonely at least some of the time, and
almost a third (32%) feel lonely often or all the time .

e Loneliness amongst young people has been shown to increase the likelihood of poor physical & mental
health, the risk of becoming involved in criminal activity and reduce future employment opportunities.

Why this should concern us?

e In our well-being survey of 2,500 residents, good relationships and a sense of belonging was the 3™
highest thing that mattered.

e The importance of family in positively influencing well-being is evident in findings from primary
engagement activities delivered as part of Carmarthenshire’s Well-being assessment. Family and
friends were overwhelmingly identified as the most important factor in experiencing positive well-
being by over 500 adults and children taking part in an exercise.

o 48% (close to the National average of 50%) of Carmarthenshire residents feel they live in cohesive
communities. 72% agreed that local people treat each other with respect and consideration, 68%
agreed that people from different backgrounds get on well together and 70% feel they belong to
their local area. (National Survey for Wales, 2016/17).

e Safety-related issues were highlighted throughout the Carmarthenshire Wellbeing Assessment and
feeling safe at home and in the local community impacts on everyone’s sense of well-being

What do we need to do?
e We need to ensure services respond to the needs of families and communities.
e We need to continue to build greater community cohesion and to support and empower
communities to address their safety, collective well-being and the well-being of those within the
community, including the building of social bonds within groups and social bridges between groups
in our communities.
e We need to encourage promotion of independence, wellbeing, community engagement & social inclusion.
e We need to keep our communities safe when delivering our services.

How will we do this?

A. We will continue to develop and implement how we provide information, advice and assistance

across social care services.

We will promote and develop strong connections for people, places and organisations.

C. We will identify the strengths and resources within communities which can contribute to promoting
and supporting the health and wellbeing of neighbours.

D. We will continue to support community safety to help increase people’s sense of personal security
and their feelings of safety in relation to where they live, work and spend their leisure time.

®

We will implement the new Mid and West Wales Community Cohesion Regional Delivery Plan.
udaT’en"épé

More Information - You can see our detailed action plan to achieve this objective Page 28 of 50




Well-being Objective 10

Age Well - Support the growing numbers of older people to
maintain dignity and independence in their later years

A Wales of

So why is this important? A y _ vibrant  f* o
C I . h Prosperous a '::::L':"t | Cohesi\_ﬂe_ (EI‘_:::"J:I: Responsible

° onsultations have Wales i Wales
demonstrated that ‘what Langusee g

matters’ to individuals is to be
able to be as independent and well as possible for as long as possible.
‘Being respected as an older person and not being seen as a burden on the local health and social care system’

e Research shows that a vital factor of healthy aging is for older people to feel included and useful.

e Older people contribute to the economy in Carmarthenshire by caring for their grandchildren or other
family members. Figures from the Family and Childcare trust report that 2.3 million grandparents say
that they look after their grandchildren in order to enable the children’s parents to go to work. In the UK
as a whole those aged 65 and over contributed £61bn to the economy through employment, informal
caring and volunteering.

e The Royal Voluntary Service have described older people as the ‘social glue’ of communities.

Why this should concern us?

e The census in 2011 found that 28% of the adult population is over the age of 65, and by 2030 the
proportion of older adults will increase to 34%, although age is increasingly redundant as a means to
analyse need, evidence does indicate that older people are more likely to need care and support.

e Life expectancy in Carmarthenshire is increasing but this is not matched by disability free life
expectancy, we have lower expectancy of disability at 71 for males and 72.2 for females compared to
the national average.

e Our frail population demographic is increasing & will require support to remain as independent as possible.

e ltis essential that we lay robust foundations to future proof the availability of services that promote and
support ongoing well-being and independence for our frail older adult population.

What do we need to do?

e We need to continue to integrate health and social care at population health level to address the
complex needs associated with age related multiple conditions and frailty.

e We need to work with individuals and communities together with the public, private and voluntary
sectors to develop and promote innovative and practical ways to make Carmarthenshire a good place to
grow older for everyone (see Objective 11 on Ageing Well).

e We need to develop service provision on a smaller footprint which are population based, integrated
across health & social care and seek to reduce demand and growth in the future

How will we do this?

A. We will improve population health which requires efforts to change behaviours and living conditions
across communities. It also means that accountability for population health is spread widely across
these communities. We will develop a ‘social’ model of health and care that focuses on physical,
mental and social wellbeing rather than ill health. This will be done on a population level.

B. We will continue to promote our ‘offer’ across three tiers — Tier 1, Help to help yourself; Tier 2 — Help
when you need it and Tier 3 — Ongoing help when you need it.

c.  We will strive to develop ‘place based systems of care’ that will enable health and care providers to
work together for the population they serve. We will modernise our workforce to ensure they are fit
for purpose and sustainable into the future. A multi-professional and multi-organisational approach to
care is required. (Also see Well-being Objective 9 - Support good connections with friends, family and safer communities)

We shall provide support for carers, and young carers in particular, to enable them to continue
providing the invaluable care they offer to family and friends in need

C More Information - You can see our detailed action plan to achieve this objective here
Tudalen 39

Page 29 of 50



Well-being Objective 11

Age Well - A Council-wide approach to support
Ageing Well in Carmarthenshire

This Well-being Objective now supersedes the Councils Ageing Well Plan 2015-2018
So why is this important?

A Wales of

. . Vibrant
e Wider services can make an o :e o AResient ) ;:: \:::!I:isu:f o ;; :;:::::L
important contribution in Wales wales | . iti e w

supporting and sustaining the W 4 Languar

independence of older people
and reducing the demand on Social Services and Health Care.

e When planning services for older people, we need to listen to what they have told us.

e In deciding what to do, we need to ask ourselves, would this service be ok for me or my relatives? If
not, how can we improve?

e Tackling the causes of loneliness and social isolation is a national priority for the Welsh Government.

e Older people’s rights must be promoted and protected so they can live free of abuse, neglect, ageism
and discrimination and are able to participate fully in their communities and thrive in older age.

Why this should concern us?

e Older people are a significant asset to Wales, worth over £1bn to the Welsh economy annually. We
must take forward an asset-based approach which, rather than focusing on the costs of providing
services for older people, considers instead the cost of not investing in older people. Older people
provide around £469m worth of volunteering every year, including childcare - the value of which is
around £750m per annum.

e Carmarthenshire has an ageing population and by 2039 around 1 in 3 residents will be aged 65 +.

e Older people who are supported by tailored services and living in inclusive communities, are able to
contribute more to the local economy and society.

e When surveyed older people have told us that they want as much support as possible to help them
do the things they enjoy and to be able to manage day to day.

What do we need to do?

e We need to ‘join-up’ our diverse divisions and departments to support independent living and to
help older people live in their communities. Making sure that the impact of all service changes on
elderly people are carefully thought through.

e We need to consult in a meaningful way with older people who are often ‘experts by experience’ and
know the services they need to remain active and independent in their communities.

e We need to focus on an outcome based approach to draw out the changes and improvements seen
in an individual’s life — we need to build services around the outcomes older people need.

e We need to examine how we will work with the Public Service Board (PSB) to achieve the Older
People’s Commissioner for Wales’s targets for inclusion in the PSBs Well-Being Plan.

How will we do this?
e We will take forward the 5 priority aims of the National Ageing Well in Wales Plan 2014-19
A. By developing Age Friendly Communities
B. By developing Dementia Supportive Communities
C. By working to help prevent falls
D. By creating opportunities for employment and new skills
E. By supporting people who are experiencing loneliness and isolation

We will work with partners to provide more opportunities for vulnerable and older people to
socialise in order to reduce loneliness.

@d%féﬁllﬁ@'mation - You can see our detailed action plan to achieve this objective here

Page 30 of 50




Healthy, Safe & Prosperous Environment
(Infographics on the following will be ready for publication)

Carmarthenshire has a population of 185,610

47 crimes per 1000
population (8,624
recorded crimes
during 2016/17); 79%
feel safe in their area

64% of waste from
87,000 households was
recycled during
2017/18

There are over
3,300Km of roads in
Carmarthenshire

Carmarthenshire has
the highest number of
Welsh speakers in
Wales at 80,700

Tudalen 41
Page 31 of 50



Well-being Objective 12

Healthy & Safe Environment - Look after the environment
now and in the future

Why is this important? A Wales of

Vibrant

The Natural Environment is a core A A Resilient c Awalesof [ L e [ AGlobally
. Prosperous Wales Cohesive it Responsible

component of sustainable Wales Weleh Wales

development. The Environment // /‘ Langusze

(Wales) Act 2016 expands the duty . % " " -

placed on public bodies, requiring them to maintain & enhance biodiversity and promote ecosystem resilience.
A biodiverse natural environment, with healthy functioning ecosystems, supports social, economic and
ecological resilience. Carmarthenshire’s natural environment is the natural resource on which much of our
economy is based — tourism, farming, forestry, and renewable energy. It is a major factor that attracts people,
both young and older to live, work and visit the county, bringing inward investment with them.

The conservation and enhancement of biodiversity is vital in our response to climate change and key
ecosystem services such as food, flood management, pollination, clean air and water.

60% of the County’s people live in rural areas and the remaining 40% live within 400m of natural or semi-
natural green space.

The Well-being Needs Assessment survey identified a strong relationship between residents’ well-being and
their surrounding environment from providing recreational opportunities, to psychological positivity, health
benefits and a connection to heritage and culture.

The ‘Resilient Wales’ goal set out in the Well-being Future Generations Act requires public bodies to set
objectives to achieve a ‘biodiverse natural environment with healthy functioning ecosystems’

Why this should concern us?

The environment contributes £8.8 billion of goods and services annually to the Welsh economy, 9% of
Welsh GDP and 1 in 6 Welsh jobs; with the environment being relatively more important to the Welsh
economy than is the case for the other UK nations.

A biodiverse natural environment, with healthy functioning ecosystems, supports social, economic and
ecological resilience, as well as our health and well-being.

Responses from the Well-being Assessment survey showed that a clean environment is important to well-
being and that residents are concerned with preserving and enhancing the local environment with repeated
references to tipping, littering and recycling.

Rising sea levels are likely to impact not only the 5,587 properties in Carmarthenshire already at risk of tidal
and rising river level flooding, but additional properties along the coastal & river communities. A biodiverse
natural environment will be more resilient to both climate change, and changes in sea level.

What do we need to do?

We need to ensure that in delivering all our strategies, plans, projects and programmes for development,
economic growth and the attraction of inward investment, we deliver our S6 Environment (Wales) Act duties
and actively maintain and protect biodiversity and promote ecosystem resilience.

We need to sustain and enhance natural & built spaces to encourage healthy living for residents & visitors.
We need to support resilience within our rural and urban communities.

How will we do this?

A.

'FQEHa'FéW'WZ' our communities.
CO More Information - You can see our detailed action plan to achieve this objective here

We will advise the whole Authority and partners on our need to address the environmental requirements of
the Environment (Wales) Act 2016.

We will monitor delivery of CCC’s Environment Act Forward Plan, as required by the Environment (Wales Act
2016), so demonstrating its compliance with the Biodiversity & Resilience of Ecosystems Duty

We will continue to implement and promote the increased use of renewable energy.

We will protect our environment and properties through delivering our Flood & Waste Management Plan;
and protect and manage our coast by delivering the Shoreline Management Plan.

We will deliver actions from the ‘Towards Zero Waste strategy’, to become a high recycling nation by 2025
and a zero waste nation by 2050.

We will finalise Flood Risk Management Plans as part of the strategy for identifying, managing and mitigating

Page 32 of 50



Well-being Objective 13
Healthy & Safe Environment - Improve the highway and transport

infrastructure and connectivity

A Wales of
A A Wales of RIBIER A Globally

Why iS th is i m po rta nt? Prosperous A Resilient i Cohesive Culture & Responsible

. . Wales Wales E . Thriving Wales
e Transportation & highways play a Welsh

¥ Language
key role in sustaining our community // // C

and deliver ‘Prosperity for All.” A modern, successful economy is reliant upon the safe and efficient
movement of people and goods; providing opportunities for people to gain access to employment,
education, health, leisure, social and retail services.

e United & connected is one of the four Welsh Governments’ aims in its “Taking Wales Forward’ plan.
Providing integrated and affordable access for businesses, for residents and visitors can stimulate
economic development, reductions in deprivation and social exclusion and an increase in well-being.

e Sustaining access to services will deliver improvements in health and wellbeing for all sections of the
community e.g. that includes: walking, cycling, passenger and road transport.

e By 2030 South West Wales will be a confident, ambitious and connected City Region.

Why this should concern us?

e Our survey identified transportation and highways as important and in the top 10 priorities for the
community was road maintenance, bus services and pavement maintenance.

e In our survey on satisfaction with services and the importance of services - Road Maintenance and Repairs
were identified as one of the highest importance with low satisfaction.

e Our highway network is the second largest in Wales covering 3,343 Kilometres, more than double the
Welsh average of 1,566 Kilometres; covering 16 million square metres of carriageway.

e The condition of our roads was ranked 17t out of 22 across Wales in 2016/17.

e 18.8% of residents do not have access to a car or van. However, 43.5% of households have one car per
household, which may indicate reduced accessibility in areas not well served by public transport.

e Only 55% aged 80 or over have access to a car/van therefore public transport and community based
services are important to enable people to continue to live within their communities; it can mean the
difference between a person staying independent at home or entering residential care.

e Air quality is emerging as a concern is Llandeilo, Carmarthen and Llanelli.

What do we need to do?

e We need to develop and support access to services to improve connectivity, reduce congestion and
improve competitiveness.

e We need to sustain investment into our public and community transport systems and facilitate travel to
and from schools to support our Modernising Education Programme.

e We need to also invest in infrastructure to support more sustainable journeys. For example through cycle
ways, footpaths and public transport infrastructure.

e We need to continue to sustain investment in our existing highway infrastructure to improve connectivity;

e We need to maintain our focus on road safety and deliver our road safety strategy priorities.

e We need to ensure our fleet of vehicles is modern, efficient and safe.

How will we do this?
A. We will develop the highway infrastructure to meet the priorities of our Regeneration Plan. We will
develop new highways at Carmarthen West, Cross Hands and Ammanford and continue to develop key
active travel sites and the Towy Valley Path.
. We will continue the successful integrated public transport network such as Bwcabus/LINC and Traws Cymru.
. We will plan to redesign our school transport network to support the Modernising Education Programme.
. We will continue to support community transport.
We will meet our objectives set out in our Road Safety Strategy.
We will continue to modernise our vehicle fleet to improve efficiency and reduce emissions.

mTMoOO®

We will continue to invest in strategic transport infrastructure links to support economq qid¢g|erm4R.
CO More Information - You can see our detailed action plan to achieve this Page 33 of 50




Well-being Objective 14

Healthy & Safe Environment - Promote Welsh Language and Culture

A Wales of

So why is this important? A A Reslient : : riorant [ A lobally
. . Prosperous Wales | Coheswe_ T Responsible
e Carmarthenshire is a stronghold Wales \ et Wales

) \
for the Welsh language and is //J/ _4 _4 _

considered to be of high strategic
importance in its future.

e There are many advantages to bilingualism, including increased cognitive skills,

e |tis aunique selling point. Tourist and hospitality industries throughout Europe are now realising the
importance of offering unique experiences. Having two languages and a sense of Welsh history and
culture places Carmarthenshire in a strong position.

e Engaging in cultural activity has demonstrable positive impact on starting well, living well and ageing
well.

Why this should concern us?

e According to result of the 2016/17 National Survey for Wales 40% of people in Carmarthenshire said
that they spoke Welsh.

e The 2011 Census showed that the number of welsh speakers in Carmarthenshire had reduced to
43.9% compared to 50.1% in 2001.

e The Welsh Government’s ambition through the Cymraeg 2050 - Welsh language Strategy is to see
the number of people able to enjoy speaking and using Welsh reach a million by 2050.

e The Welsh Government’s Light Springs through the Dark: A Vision for Culture in Wales is reinforcing
the importance of culture as a priority.

What do we need to do?

e We need to ensure compliance with the Welsh Language Standards under the Welsh Language
Measure (Wales) 2011 and monitor progress across the Authority.

e We need to promote the use of the Welsh Language in our communities and work with partners such
as the Mentrau laith, the Urdd and Mudiad Meithrin to realise the vision and outcomes set out in our
Welsh Language Promotion Strategy

e We need to promote and support adult learners through our Welsh for Adults provision. Support and
encourage our children and young people to become confident bilingual citizens, who chose to
continue with bilingual education throughout their educational pathway and encourage more people to
learn the Language.

e We need to increase the number of people participating in cultural activity.

e We need to ensure that our collections and our County’s heritage assets are protected and
accessible for future generations

How will we do this?

A. We will implement and monitor the Welsh Language Standards under the Welsh Language
Measures 2011 across the Council, to the citizens of Carmarthenshire and other public services

B. We will implement the Welsh Language Promotion Strategy - which will facilitate the use of Welsh
in everything we do across all communities

C. We will continue the development of Welsh in all our Education services, thus moving towards
ensuring that every pupil is confidently bilingual. Pupils can fulfil their potential in gaining skills to
operate as bilingual citizens in their communities, the workplace and beyond/worldwide.

D. We will promote our Welsh Culture & Heritage

To promote the Strategy for Welsh Language - We will increase the numbers acquiring basic and
further skills in Welsh through the education system and through language transmission in the home.
We will also deliver a new archives and storage service for Carmarthenshire.

@uglg}]glﬂfo‘}éation - You can see our detailed action plan to achieve this objective here

Page 34 of 50


http://gov.wales/topics/welshlanguage/welsh-language-strategy-and-policies/cymraeg-2050-welsh-language-strategy/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/culture-tourism-sport/arts/a-vision-for-culture-in-wales/?lang=en
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1885670/20170321-hysbysiad-cydymffurfio44-cyngor-sir-g%C3%A2r-en-.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1915665/-Strategaeth-Hybu-S.pdf
https://learnwelsh.cymru/courses/find-a-course/

Well-being Objective 14

Healthy & Safe Environment - Promote Welsh Language and Culture

How will we do this? Our detailed action plan to achieve this objective

(Lemon highlight means that this is not the Action or Measure’s main objective)

Ref

Actions and Measures

Date/
Target

A

Implement and monitor the Welsh Language Standards

In June each year, we will prepare an Annual Report to the Welsh Language
Commissioner detailing the steps taken to comply with the Welsh language
Standards

June 2019

We will develop an integrated Welsh Language Programme for our staff
(Action ID 12425)

March 2020

To facilitate good decision making, we will introduce an integrated Impact
Assessment which consolidates Equality, Welsh language and Well-being of
Future Generations requirements.

March 2019

We will promote the use of the Welsh Language to our citizen’s and other
public services

March 2019

The Welsh Language Promotion Strategy

To promote the Strategy for Welsh Language - We will increase the numbers
acquiring basic and further skills in Welsh through the education system and
through language transmission in the home

March 2021

To promote the Strategy for Welsh Language - We will increase the
confidence of Welsh speakers and therefore the use of the Language in
every sphere of life, and encourage and Support the county’s organisations
to make the Welsh Language an increasingly natural medium for their
Services. MF5-86 (Action ID 12939)

March 2021

To promote the Strategy for Welsh Language - We will take purposeful steps
to positively affect population movements attempting to attract our young
people to establish or re-establish themselves in the county so that the
gains that are made in terms of Welsh speakers through the education
system are not lost. Also, to make significant efforts to assimilate
newcomers and ensure that new planning developments do not have a

detrimental effect on the viability of the Welsh language.
MF5-86 (Action ID 12940)

March 2021

To promote the Strategy for Welsh Language - We will target specific
geographic areas within the county, either because they offer the potential
to develop or because they cause linguistic concern to increase the numbers

of residents in those areas who can and do use Welsh.
MF5-86 (Action ID 12941)

March 2021

To promote the Strategy for Welsh - We will market and promote the Welsh
language. Raising the status of Welsh and awareness of the benefits of
bilingualism and bilingual education. And by raising awareness of these

benefits, attracting more residents of the county to acquire the language.
MF5-86 (Action ID 12942)

March 2021

We will further strengthen the provision and use of the Welsh language
within social care services to be able to provide services in the language of

service users’ choice and ensure compliance with the 'Active Offer'. MF5-56
(Action also in Well-being Objective 10)

March 2019

We will develop a suite of measures to support our progress on promotion

of the Welsh Language -
I

March 2019

1 Al

ndalan AL
ulaiclli a9

Page 35 of 50



Actions and Measures

The development of Welsh in all our Education services

We will implement the content of the ‘WESP’ Welsh in Education Strategic
Plan in partnership with school leaders for the benefit of all
Carmarthenshire learners. (Action also in Well-being Objective 3)

March 2020

We shall increase the percentage of pupils to receive a teacher assessment
in Welsh (first language) at the end of the Foundation Phase

(new Measure, ref no. tbc) (2017/18 Result — tbc - 16/17 Academic Year)
(Measure also in Well-being Objective 3)

Thc %

We will work with the County’s primary and secondary schools to move
them along the Welsh language continuum and also ensure that individual
pupils within relevant schools are provided with opportunities to continue

with their Welsh medium education throughout all key stages.
MF5-31 (Action also in Well-being Objective 3)

March 2019

Promoting our Welsh Culture & Heritage

We will develop the ‘Stordy Digidol’ digital project to promote improved
mental health in conjunction with show casing Carmarthenshire’s heritage
collections. (Action also in Well-being Objective 8)

March 2019

We will start to implement our Libraries Development plan 2017 — 2022 and

as part of that plan roll out the new mobile library service. (Action also in Well-
being Objective 11)

March 2022

We will deliver a transformation plan for the existing Museums provision at
the County Museum Abergwili, Parc Howard, Kidwelly Industrial Museum
and Museum of Speed Pendine to improve the provision for residents and
visitors whilst also maintaining links with and promoting independent
museums within the County. In addition, it is intended to undertake work to
further develop Oriel Myrddin. MF5-64 (Action also in Well-being Objectives 6 & 8)

March 2022

We will begin the museums transformation plan with the delivery of a £1.2

million redevelopment of the County museum at Abergwili.
MF5-65 (Action also in Well-being Objectives 6 & 8)

March 2020

We will review and re-develop the Council’s Theatre Services provision.
MF5-66 (Action also in Well-being Objectives 6 & 8)

March 2019

We will deliver a new archives and storage service for Carmarthenshire
MF5-63

March 2019

We will celebrate and promote Carmarthenshire’s rich cultural and sporting
achievements and diversity. MF5-70 (Action also in Well-being Objective 8)

March 2019

(Annual)

We will support community groups and organisations to promote and
publicise the rich variety of community event being held in Carmarthenshire
from agricultural shows, festivals and carnivals to exhibitions, concerts and
performances. MF5-85 (Action also in Well-being Objectives 6 & 9)

March 2019

Success Measures

Can speak Welsh (national survey for Wales( (NSW)(National Well-being Indicator) (NWBI)

Pupils receiving a teacher assessment in Welsh (first language) at the
end of the Foundation Phase (ref no. tbc)

People attended arts events in Wales in last year (vsw)

People visited historic places in Wales in last year (vsw)

People visited museums in Wales in last year (vsw)

Tudalen 46

Page 36 of 50



Building a Better Council &

Better Use of Resources
(Infographics on the following will be ready for publication)

Carmarthenshire County Council Employs
over 7,700 people

**% People agreed that
The Council’s Budgetis| the Council asks for
kxEk** for 2018/19 their views before

setting it’s budget

? ‘Do it online’ 1.4 million visits to our
payments website?

Tudalen 47

Page 37 of 50



Well-being Objective 15

So why is this important? T
& A Resilient i AC\ALaIe.s of Culture & : Glnha_::ly
® The general purpose of the Well- Prosperous | Wales A coohesive | Thriving | Neipensele

being of Future Generations Act // //‘ Pty
(Wales) 2015, is to ensure that . - . ) = s
the governance arrangements of public bodies for improving the Well-being of Wales take the needs
of future generations into account.

e There are increasing demands and expectations yet less resources are available. Under these
conditions we need to work even more efficiently and effectively to maintain services and improve
where we can, delivering ‘more (or even the same) for less’.

Why this should concern us?

e We need to further improve links between our financial, strategic and business planning. Improving
these links was a Proposal for Improvement in Wales Audit Office’s Corporate Assessment.

e Further financial pressures are likely to arise from such things as rising energy costs, an increasing
number of older people needing services from us, offices, school buildings and highways that require
significant investment, and this is in addition to the current uncertainty in the economic outlook as
the UK embarks on the process of leaving the European Union.

What do we need to do?

e Our Transform, Innovate and Change (TIC) programme will support the achievement of a sustainable
financial future by delivering more efficient and effective services.

e We will conduct the work of the Council in an open and accessible way, ensuring we are properly
accountable for the decisions we make.

e Weintend to invest somewhere in the region of an additional £200 million pounds of capital funding
in our corporate priorities over the next five years.

e We will make better use of our resources which will help to minimise the impact on services
primarily by making smarter use of our buildings, our people and our spending.

How will we do this?

A. By transforming innovating and changing the way we work and deliver services.
Our Transform, Innovate and Change (TIC) programme is aimed at thinking differently, acting
differently and therefore delivering differently. The programme takes into account factors such as
the potential to deliver financial efficiencies, service improvement, opportunities to work
collaboratively with other public sector partners and transformational projects with potential to
deliver greater efficiency savings.

B. We shall follow the 7 Principles of Good Governance set out Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy (CIPFA)/ Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) -:-
B1. Integrity and Values - (Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values,
and respecting the rule of law)
B2. Openness and engagement — (Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement)
B3. Making a difference - (Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, & environmental benefits)
B4. Making sure we achieve what we set out to do - Determining the interventions necessary to
optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes.
B5. Valuing our people; engaging, leading and supporting - (Developing capacity and the capability of
leadership and individuals).
B6. Managing risks, performance and finance.
(Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management)
B7. Good transparency and accountability
(Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability)

We will further develop the Council’s consultation and engagement approaches.

dalen 48

More Information - You can see our detailed action plan to achieve this objective here
Page 38 of 50




Appendix 1

Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 and
Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015

The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 and the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales)
2015 are separate but interconnected legal obligations and it makes sense to ensure that these
requirements are fully aligned and combined in this New Corporate Strategy.

The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009

e The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 requires the Council to set Improvement
Objectives every year. They do not have to change every year, or be deliverable within one year.

e Our Improvement Objectives are essentially the same as our Well-being Objectives as they are
based on a thorough evidence-based understanding of the communities we serve and local
needs. We compare our Service performance and satisfaction results with all Councils in Wales
to make sure we improve where we most need to.

e We have a duty to improve, often delivering ‘more (or even the same) for less’.

Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015

This is an Act introduced by the Welsh Government which will change aspects of how we work. The
general purpose of the Act, is to ensure that the governance arrangements of public bodies for
improving the well-being of Wales, take the needs of future generations into account. The Act is
designed to improve the economic, social and environmental well-being of Wales, in accordance with
sustainable development principles. The new law states that:-

a) We must carry out sustainable development, improving the economic, social, environmental and
cultural well-being of Wales. The sustainable development principle is
‘... the public body must act in a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present
are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.’

b) We must demonstrate 5 ways of working:
Long term, integrated, involving, collaborative and preventative (see Appendix 1)

c) We must work towards achieving all of the 7 national well-being goals in the Act. Together they
provide a shared vision for public bodies to work towards.

A globally A prosperous
responsible Wales
Wales

A Wales of
vibrant culture
and thriving
Welsh
Language

A resilient
Wales

A Wales of
cohesive
communities

A healthier
Wales

A more equal
Wales

For the first time in Wales, the Well-being of Future Generations Act, provides a shared vision for all

public bodies in Wales to work towards. As a public body subject to the Act we were required to set and
ublish Well-being Objectives that maximised our Contribution to the Well-being Goals

P S 8=%%Tudalen 49

Page 39 of 50



Appendix 1 (Continued)

How our Well-being Objectives contribute to the 7 National Well-being Goals

Carmarthenshire’s

2017/18 Well-being Objectives / KIOPs

Start Well

Live Well

Age Well

In a Healthy, Safe &
Prosperous Environment

Help to give every child the best

>
=
=
(]
Q.
(7]
o
=
a.

7 National Well-being Goals

Resilience

Healthier

More equal

Cohesive
Communities

&

Vibrant culture

Welsh Language

responsibility

1 | startin life and improve their early v v v v
life experiences.
2 | Help children live healthy lifestyles v
3 Con'que to Improve learner v v v v v
attainment for all
Reduce the number of young
4 | adults that are Not in Education, v v v v
Employment or Training
Tackle poverty by doing all we can
5 to preven'F it, help peop.le into v v v v
work and improve the lives of
those living in poverty
6 Create more jobs and growth v v v v v
throughout the county
7 Increase the availability of rented / v v v v
and affordable homes
Help people live healthy lives v v v v v
8 (tackling risky behaviour & obesity)
Support good connections with
9 | friends, family and safer v v v
communities
Support the growing numbers of
10 olde.r people to mallntaln.dlgnlty v v v v v
and independence in their later
years
11 A CounC|I-W|Fie apprqach to v v v v
support Ageing Well in the county
12 Look after the environment now v
and for the future
Improve the highway and
13 | transport infrastructure and v v v v v
connectivity
14 Promote Welsh Language and v v v v v
Culture
f5 BU|Id.|ng a Better Council and v v v v v v v
en Méxing Better Use of Resources

Page 40 of 50




Appendix 2

Financing the Council’s Well-being Objectives

The financial position faced by local authorities has had a consistent theme over recent years, with the
level of resources available to public services seeing significant reductions, which means that we have
less money to invest in services now than we have in the past. Over the last five years we have had to
manage reductions in service budgets of £53m, whilst at the same time the pressures on the budget
have been increasing in terms of demand and expectations. So far, we have been able to manage this
situation by reducing our spending without any significant impact on the frontline services valued by our
communities.

1. Help to give every child the best start in life and improve their early life experiences @

Our Flying Start programme is reliant on grant funding from Welsh Government of nearly £3.8m annually.
To achieve it we need to ensure we recruit and retain trained Health Visitors.

The Families First programme for this area has Welsh Government revenue funding of £1.3m for
2017-18.

To achieve this objective we need to ensure appropriate investment in the early years and through our
community resources such as Integrated Children’s Centres and Family Centres.

2. Help children live healthy lifestyles Y Q

In order to deliver against this objective the key points above also apply.
School meals in Carmarthenshire follow healthy eating legislation, for which annual core funding is £1.8m.
This includes the cost of the Primary School Free Breakfast initiative.

Healthy activities for younger people are supported by existing sports development, and leisure facility
programming budgets, supplemented by the Local Authority Partnership Agreement (LAPA) Grant of over
£500k (17/18) which we access from the Welsh Government via Sport Wales. This helps pay for activities

such as Free Swimming and the Active Young People Programme. /‘\

s M

3. Continue to improve learner attainment for all ' -

This key objective requires comprehensive support and resourcing from across our services.
Carmarthenshire is committed to ensuring a detailed and forward-thinking programme in support of
improved attainment for all our children and young people. Schools receive £108.8m of delegated funding
as well as approximately £18.5m through Welsh Government grants

In addition, our Modernising Education/21st Century Schools Programme will cost £87m to deliver the first
tranche of priority projects (Band A), with £43m coming from the Welsh Government. The second tranche
of projects (Band B) is projected to cost £129m, with £65m coming from the Welsh Government. To
ensure ongoing comprehensive support and challenge for our schools, we require some £6.5m to resource
our School Improvement and Additional Learning Needs (ALN) Teams and their valuable provision. A
further £3m is needed to continue to provide wider learning and achievement experiences and resources
such as museum, gallery and archive services.

4. Reduce the number of young adults that are Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET)

The Youth Support Service has a lead role in delivering this work in school and community settings. Annual
core funding for this service is £530k. The service depends on annual external grants including the Welsh
Government Youth Support Service (YSS) Grant (£204k) and Families First (E660k). Securing further
funding from the Families First successor grant will be essential for this well-being target to be met.

In addition to these funding sources, we have been successful in gaining European Social Funding (ESF) for
the Regional Cynnydd project which is further supported by match funding. There is a further £700k of ESF
for the Regional Cam Nesa project which is also supported by £400k of match funding has begn awargﬁfj.
Both of these projects seek to reduce the number of young people becoming NEET in th LY ﬂtﬁn

Page 41 0of 50



5. Tackle poverty by doing all we can to prevent it, help people into work and improve 9
the lives of those living in poverty

It is difficult to estimate the resource implications for delivering initiatives to tackle poverty as this work is
delivered across a wide spectrum of services. Some of this work is our core business for example
homelessness support (E1m), and other targeted elements are grant funded such as previously mentioned
Families First and Flying Start, along with the Pupil Deprivation Grant (£4.8m). In addition, as a result of
the diverse nature of poverty and the many different influences that can result in someone experiencing
poverty, many of the councils services contribute towards tackling poverty indirectly. For these services
tackling poverty is not the ultimate goal but is a result of the work they do to support individuals and
communities.

6. Create more jobs and growth throughout the county i, -

Carmarthenshire’s spend per head of the population on Economic Development is above the Welsh

Average in Wales. Regeneration of the economy and jobs is the number one priority of the Council. Our 15

year regeneration plan will create over 5,000 jobs and see over £199 million investment over the next 5

years alone.

As part of the Swansea Bay City Deal we will have two major projects in Carmarthenshire:-

e At the Creative Digital Cluster at Yr Egin a total project cost worth £24m (£5m City Deal+£16m Public
Sector £3m Private) will be delivered creating 200+ jobs over the next 15 years.

e At the Life Science & Well-being Village project, a total project cost of £200m (£40m City Deal, £32m

Public Sector Funding and £127m Private Sector) will create 1800+ jobs over the next 15 years.
Also see Objective 3 for the 2157 Century Schools building programme and Objective 7 Affordable Homes.

7. Increase the availability of rented and affordable homes

Our Affordable Homes Delivery Plan aims to deliver over 1000 homes and invest £60m into our
communities. This will be funded through £31m from the HRA, £17m of Social Housing Grant, £11m
private finance and £1m Welsh Government grant.

8. Help people live healthy lives (tackling risky behaviour and obesity)

This objective will bring together a lot of work done by services and in some cases it is difficult to isolate
expenditure under this heading. However Capital expenditure over the next 5 years will be:

e £16m on a new Llanelli leisure centre

e f£700k on Rights of Way, £2.5m on the development of open spaces including at Pembrey Country Park
e £5m for the Tywi Valley cycle way and £1.7m on walking and cycling linkages

¢ In addition to over £600k on safer routes in communities

In Revenue expenditure for 2017/18 we will be investing:-

e f£1.4m on children getting 60 minutes of exercise 5 times a week and the exercise referral scheme

e £5.8m running leisure, sports and swimming facilities

e f£5.2m on outdoor, countryside and coastal park

¢ In ensuring cultural well-being across facilities we will be spending £6.8m on delivering services

e For Learning Disability Services £34m and Mental Health services £9.7m and Support Services including
Safeguarding and Transport £6.2m

e To support the physically disabled we will be spending £6.4m and £2.5m on supported employment

e We ensure Public Health Services (Food Safety, Air and Water Quality etc.) £2.3m

e Provision of Trading Standards £1m

Tudalen 52

Page 42 of 50



9. Support good connections with friends, family and safer communities ‘é

When we ask people what things in life matter to you? They tell us that loved ones, family, friends,
neighbours and community matter to them. In Children’s Services our range of family support services
contribute to this objective and it is difficult to break down the costs of this from some of our other
objectives on helping children get the best start in life and improving early life experiences. In total nearly
£23m is spent across the Children’s Services Division.

Services to support carers and home support services help people to continue to live at home, with their
families and in their communities — Also see Objective 10

We are also working to ensure broader community cohesion with a range of initiatives - Link to Objective 13

10. Support the growing numbers of older people to maintain dignity and independence
in their later years |

In terms of Capital expenditure we will be spending £10m on disabled facility grants over the next five

years and £7m on the Llanelli Area Review in 2017/18.

We will be spending nearly £55m of our revenue budget in 2018/19 on Older People Services. This will

include:

e £3.7m on Commissioning, £8.1m on Local Authority (LA) Residential homes, nearly £20m on Private
Sector Residential Homes and £700k on extra care

e On Homecare Services £5.8m LA provision and £10.2M on Private provision

e Meals on Wheels £300k, Direct Payments £600K and grants to voluntary organisations £500k

e f£1.7m on care-line service, £2.2m on enablement and £1.1m on Community Support & Day Services
Also see Objective 11

11. A Council wide approach to supporting Ageing Well in Carmarthenshire e

It is difficult to estimate the level of investment in this objective because it cuts across diverse services.
This is about making sure that in everything we do, we think about supporting Ageing Well in
Carmarthenshire.

Put simply, older people are net contributors to the economy rather than beneficiaries with their
contributions to the employment market, volunteering, mentoring and caring sectors. The work Council
services deliver to help people live independent lives reduces the need for expensive health and social
care interventions - Also see Objective 10

12. Look after the environment now and for the future

This priority can be addressed without the need for large additional investment. We will mainly focus on
achieving this objective through the existing work we do within the Rural Conservation Team, advising and
educating colleagues with regard to how our existing services can be further improved, so as to help
sustain and enhance the natural environment.

With regard to delivery of actions relating to the Towards Zero Waste Strategy, Flood & Waste
Management Plan and Shoreline Management Plan, these actions are already covered by the relevant
budgets. The Waste & Environmental Services division’s revenue budget of £20.5m (18/19) aims to fund
the collection and disposal of waste which incorporates numerous recycling initiatives, street cleansing,
environmental enforcement, grounds and parks maintenance, flood and coastal defence as well as
maintaining public conveniences ensuring that we look after the environment now and in the future.

In addition the Welsh Government’s Environment & Sustainable Development Directorate Single revenue
grant (£3.7m in 2017/18) supports the integrated delivery of results and multiple benefits across three
priority areas — namely Natural resource management, Waste & resource efficiency and Local
environment quality and conservation. Consideration of resource implications for actions in future years
will form part of the discussion during 2017/18, in putting together the forward plan for Services.

Tudalen 53
Page 43 of 50



13. Improve the highway and transport infrastructure and connectivity (=

Carmarthenshire’s Local Transport Plan sets out our priorities for infrastructure investment. The priorities
are aligned to our corporate objectives and set within the objectives of the Swansea Bay City Region. Our
current approved capital programme includes over £30m for investment into the highway infrastructure,
with around £14m reliant on external grant funding if available, along with developer contributions as new
development is commenced.

The Highways and Transport division’s revenue budget of £28.6m includes a sum of £8.2m for the
highways infrastructure as well as funding for school and public transport, car park maintenance and
administration, the upkeep of public lighting for the county and the development of transport strategies
to maintain the connectivity of the highways infrastructure for Carmarthenshire.

The introduction of the transformation projects such as those included within the City Deal and integrated
transport projects, supported through external funding, will provide opportunities for investment into the
infrastructure and transportation services to support the safe movement of people and goods.

14. Promote Welsh Language and Culture

This priority can be addressed without the need for large additional investment. We will mainly focus on
achieving this objective through the existing work we do within Regeneration & Policy, Leisure & Culture
and Education & Children’s Services, advising and educating colleagues with regard to how our existing
services can be further improved and how we can promote a vibrant culture and ensure the Welsh
language is thriving.

Additional support may become available through the Welsh Government’s ‘Cymraeg 2050 — Welsh
Language Strategy’ and we will closely monitor any opportunities for Carmarthenshire to access this
support.

15. Building a Better Council and Making Better Use of Resources

Addressing this priority cuts across all service areas and is both about investment as well as efficiency
savings. The Council is committed to financially sustainable delivery models - there are many examples of
this across different departments, such as increased Extra Care provision where it better meets service
user needs, a move towards agile working, thus reducing the Council’s estate costs in the future.

Over a sustained period of budget reductions, the council has sought to maximise the proportion of
managerial savings, thus minimising the impact on frontline services. The Council’s medium term financial
plan includes £11.1 million of “managerial” proposals, or 43% of total budget reduction proposals.

The council has committed to improving ways of working through the work of the “Transformation,
Innovation & Change” programme (TIC), which is underpinned by the TIC team (£208k)

Tudalen 54

Page 44 of 50



Appendix 3

Statements of Intent

Well-being Statement
We welcome our duties under the Well-being of Future Generations Act. We have already addressed
much of the new Acts requirements but recognize that we can do more.

1. We feel that our Well-being Objectives contribute significantly to the achievement of the National
Well-being Goals. Our Well-being Objectives relate to different aspects of life’s course and address
well-being in a systematic way.

2. These Well-being Objectives have been selected with considerable consultation feedback and a
basket of different sources of information on need, performance data and regulatory feedback. In
developing action plans to achieve these objectives we will involve people (in all their diversity) with
an interest in achieving them.

3. The steps we take to achieve the Well-being Objectives (our action plans) will look to ensure that
long term, preventative, integrated, collaborative and involvement approaches are fully embraced.

4. An Executive Board member has a specific responsibility for the overall Act. In addition, each
Executive Board portfolio holder will have responsibility for the relevant Well-being Objectives.

5. To ensure that we take these action plan steps we will use our in house developed Performance
Information Monitoring System dashboard. All the action plans will be monitored and reported on
guarterly to Department Management Teams, Corporate Management Team and Executive Board.
In addition progress will be reported to Scrutiny Committees. The Council will prepare an Annual
report on its Well-being Objectives and revise the objectives if required.

6. The content of action plans to achieve the Well-being Objectives are adequately resourced and
embedded in Service business plans (see financial breakdown Appendix 2). To achieve these
objectives services will ‘join-up’ and work together, work with partners and fully involve citizens in
all their diversity.

7. Our Objectives are long term but our action plans will include milestones that will enable monitoring
and assurance of progress.

8. To ensure that our Well-being Objectives are deliverable and that the expectations of the Act are
embraced we will adapt financial planning, asset management, risk assessment, performance
management and scrutiny arrangements.

Community
Covenant

In delivering these Well-being Objectives we will uphold the principles of the Community Covenant.

These are, that the Armed Forces Community:

e Should not face disadvantage compared to other citizens in the provision of public and commercial
services; and that

e Special consideration is appropriate in some cases, especially those who have given the most, such as the

injured or bereaved.

Community Covenant t
i

Code of practice: Ethical employment in supply chains
e Statement to follow
e http://gov.wales/topics/improvingservices/bettervfm/code-of-practice/?lang=en

Tudalen 55

Page 45 of 50



http://www.armedforcescarmarthenshire.org.uk/media/1656/armedforces28_covenant.pdf
http://gov.wales/topics/improvingservices/bettervfm/code-of-practice/?lang=en

Appendix 4

The County of Carmarthenshire’s Well-being Plan - To be published by May 2018

The Well-being of Future Generations Act puts a well-being duty on specified public bodies across
Carmarthenshire to act jointly and establish a statutory Public Services Board (PSB). The
Carmarthenshire PSB was established in May 2016 and is tasked with improving the economic, social,
environmental and cultural well-being of Carmarthenshire. It must do so by undertaking an assessment
of well-being in the County and then preparing a county Well-being Plan to outline its local objectives.

e The assessment looks at well-being in Carmarthenshire through different life stages. The key
findings can be found at www.thecarmarthenshirewewant.wales

e The PSB must publish a Well-being plan which sets out its local objectives to improving the
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of the County and the steps it proposes
to take to meet them. The first Carmarthenshire Well-being Plan will be published May 2018

The Well-being Objectives of the Carmarthenshire PSB are not intended to address the core services
and provision of the individual partners, rather they are to enhance and add value through collective
action. The statutory partners of the PSB (Council, Health Board, Fire & Rescue Service and Natural
Resources Wales) each have to publish their own Well-being Objectives

Carmarthenshire PSB’s draft Well-being Objectives are:-

¢ Healthy Habits: people have a good quality of life, and make healthy choices about their lives
and environment

e Early Intervention: to make sure that people have the right help at the right time; as and when
they need it

e Strong Connections: strongly connected people, places and organisations that are able to adapt
to change

e Prosperous People and Places: to maximise opportunities for people and places in both urban
and rural parts of our county

Tudalen 56

Page 46 of 50


http://www.thecarmarthenshirewewant.wales/

Appendix 5

. . . . . WBO
Precis of Carmarthenshire’s Well-being of Future Generations Assessment - Executive Summary Ref No
Adverse childhood experiences are hugely detrimental, and have effects that
A Good Start ¢ exp ge ’ 1
can last through life.
. Poor maternal and infant health can have significant long term impacts for
Prevention . . o 1
children and families. Prevention is better than cure
Levelling the | Not all children have the same start in life and too many are born into 1
playing field | circumstances that make it harder for them to thrive.
2 . Healthy habits learned early can last a lifetime. With one of the highest rates
é Healthy Habits v e I . & 2
> of overweight or obese children in Wales.
E Play Carmarthenshire’s children want to play, particularly in outdoor settings 2
n Carmarthenshire’s learning environments offer opportunities to nurture
Learning children’s educational, social and personal development. Consideration needs 3
Environments | to be given as to how to facilitate these aspects of well-being for those who
cannot or chose not to attend formal school settings.
. Gaps in attainment levels of young people from the least and most deprived
Forging futures b young peop P 3
backgrounds.
Poverty 35% of households and 20% of Carmarthenshire’s children are living in poverty | 4/5/6
Making
) People feel strongly that tolerance and respect is key to positive well-being. 9
connections P g P yiop &
Nurturing Building community networks can act as a support to parents and families and 9
networks build a sense of belonging and resilience.
. Socialising, communicating and playing safely in the ‘virtual world’ are
Virtual World & P LA Y 9
important to young people.
Staving on Adolescence presents a range of opportunities to develop a sense of identity
= ying and independence, some of which have negative implications for well-being. 9
o track L :
= Risks include smoking, alcohol and drugs
g Stron Fewer people in Carmarthenshire feel they belong to their community
- g . however engagement activity identified community togetherness and 7/9
communities . i .y . .
cohesion as important for positive well-being in Carmarthenshire.
Stavin Older people want to remain in- dependent for as long as possible & remaining
ying embedded within one’s community enhances social, emotional and physical 9
connected : . : . . S
well- being, whilst also helping to build and enhance community resilience.
Carers improve the well-being of those they care for and also support
Caring economic well-being of wider society however their own needs are often 10
misunderstood so it is important we listen and respond to our carers.
= Ageing well Carmarthenshire has an ageing population. 11
= Nature A connection to nature has a positive effect on well-being, physical & 8/11/
iy psychological health and cooperative behaviour. It also encourages
< Connectedness . . . : 12
environmentally sustainable attitudes and behaviours.
Rurality and the significant distances to cover in Carmarthenshire, poses
= Ruralit challenges to well-being in terms of connectivity and access to services for 6/12/
ﬁ fc_) urality example. The recent rise in alternative technologies such as telehealth may 13
% 5 provide a potential resource for accessing some services & support.
v = . . , - - .
= 2 Climate Action is required to harness the positive and mitigate the negative and
< 5 : 12/13
=R Change longer-term effects of climate change.
[ . : . o :
2 3 Celebrating the heritage, history, traditions and language of Carmarthenshire
S
o . . is important to residents and in the main opportunities to do so are well-used
< 2 | The right time Po . PP o .
£ 3 and enjoyed. However, 1in 3 cannot access cultural activities and this is 14
= and place . . .
o particularly pronounced in some areas (e.g. rural) and within some groups
(e.g. disabled).
Tudalen 57

Page 47 of 50




Appendix 6

How we will measure success

The Council, working with local, regional and national partners, will strive to improve the following measures.

Well-being Objective Success Measures
1 Best Start in Life Children in care who had to move 3 or more times (panm/029)

Children - Healthy

2 Lifestyles Childhood obesity (Child Measurement Programme NHS)

Educational attainment - Average Capped 9 points score (vear 11 pupils) (ref tbe)
(Pupils best 9 results including English/Welsh, Mathematics—Numeracy, Mathematics and Science)
Improve Learner
Attainment for all School attendance rates (Primary) (pam/007) (Secondary) (pamyoos)

Satisfaction with child's primary school (nvsw)

4  Reduce NEETs Number of leavers Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEETSs)
(PAM/009) Year 11 & Year 13 (5.1.0.2)

Educational attainment - Average Capped 9 points score (Year 11 pupils)
who are eligible for Free School Meals (ref tbc) (nwi)

(Pupils best 9 results including English/Welsh, Mathematics—Numeracy, Mathematics and Science)
Households successfully prevented from becoming homeless (pam/012) (nwai)
5 Tackle Poverty Working age population in receipt of out of work benefits (5.6.3.4) (ons)
Households in material deprivation wwai)
Households Living in Poverty (cacr’s ‘Paycheck’ Data)
Adults that are able to keeping up with bills without any difficulties vsw)
Employment figures (ons - Annual Population Survey) (NWBI)
Creating Jobs and Average Gross weekly pay (ons - Annual Survey of hours and earnings)
Growth Number qualified to NVQ Level 4 or above (stats wales) (\wBl)

People moderately or very satisfied with their jobs vsw) (vwai)
7 | Affordable Homes Number of affordable homes in the County (7.3.2.29)

Adults who say their general health is Good or Very Good (nsw)
Adults who say they have a longstanding illness (vsw)
8 Healthy Lives Adult mental well-being score (nsw) (vwai)
Adults who have fewer than two healthy lifestyle behaviours (vsw) (vwai)

(Not smoking, drinking > 14 units or lower, eating at least 5 portions fruit & veg the previous day, having a
healthy body mass index, being physically active at least 150 minutes the previous week).

Tudalen 58

Page 48 of 50



Well-being Objective Success Measures

% Say they have a sense of community (vswyvwasi)

9 supporting Good (Derived from feeling of belonging; different backgrounds get on, treat with respect'.)
Connections People feeling safe (vsw)wvwai)

(At home, walking in the local area, and travelling)
The rate of people kept in hospital while waiting for social care (pam/025)

10 Independent Lives Agree there's a good Social Care Service available in the area (vsw)
Number of calendar days taken to deliver a Disabled Facilities Grant
(PAM/015)

11  Ageing Well People who are lonely (vswywwai)

" Healthy and Safe Use of renewable energy

Environment .
Rates of recycling (pamyo30)

Road conditions (pam/020, PAM/021 & PAM/022)
13 Highways & Transport
Road casualties (5.5.2.21)

Can speak Welsh (vsw)mvwai)

Pupils receiving a teacher assessment in Welsh (first language) at the end

of the Foundation Phase (ref no. tbc)
14  Welsh Language &
Culture People attended arts events in Wales in last year (vsw)

People visited historic places in Wales in last year (vsw)

People visited museums in Wales in last year (vsw)

‘Do it online’ payments

People agree that they can access information about the Authority in the
way they would like to. (vsw)

Building a Better People know how to find what services the Council provides (vsw)

Council and Making People agree that they have an opportunity to participate in making
Better Use of Resources | decisions about the running of local authority services. (nsw)

Staff sickness absence levels (pamyo01)

Organisational ‘running costs’

People agree that the Council asks for their views before setting its budget.
(NSW)

Key: PAM — Public Accountability, National Measures; ONS —Office for National Statistics; NSW - National Survey for Wales;
NWBI — National Well-being Indicator

One of the fundamental approaches advocated by the Well-being Future Generations Act is a shift in
focus from gains in service output to a stronger link between the actions of public bodies and the
outcomes that enhance the quality of life of citizens and communities both now and in the future. The
Act is founded on Outcome Based Accountability which encourages a focus on the difference that is
made, rather than just the inputs and processes that an organisation has. Success in the context of this
Act is seeing positive action drive a positive contribution to the achievement of all the well-being goals
through individual or collective action. (Paragraph 9 SPF2 — Statutory quidance) Tudalen

Page 49 of 50



We would welcome your feedback — please send your thoughts,
views and opinions to:

] Performance Management
Regeneration and Policy
Chief Executive’s Department
County Hall

Carmarthen

Carmarthenshire SA31 1JP

Tel: 01267 224486
Email: performance@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Follow us and add your comments on the Council’s Facebook page

¢«<HE

Follow this plan and add your Tweets on our Twitter page - #CarmsReport

Tudalen 60

Page 50 of 50


mailto:performance@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
http://www.facebook.com/CarmarthenshireCC
http://twitter.com/CarmsCCPress
http://www.facebook.com/CarmarthenshireCC
http://twitter.com/CarmsCCPress

Eitem Rhif 6
PWYLLGOR CRAFFU - CYMUNEDAU
DYDDIAD: 11 MAI, 2018

PWNC:
STRATEGAETH DIGARTREFEDD
Y Pwrpas:
Amlinellu'r dull gweithredu o ran datblygu Strategaeth Digartrefedd.

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt:
Argymell i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol:

e Cymeradwyo'r dull a'r cynllun ymgynghori a amlinellir.
e (Cadarnhau ein bwriad i ddatblygu cyfleoedd i weithio ar sail ranbarthol.

Y RHESYMAU:

e Bydd pob awdurdod lleol yng Nghymru yn gorfod llunio strategaeth ddigartrefedd erbyn
mis Rhagfyr 2018.

e Bydd datblygiad y strategaeth yn gofyn am ymagwedd gynhwysfawr wrth ymgysylltu ac
ymgynghori &'r holl randdeiliaid allweddol. Bydd hyn yn cynnwys defnyddwyr
gwasanaethau, aelodau lleol a phartneriaid mewnol ac allanol.

e Cafwyd trafodaethau cychwynnol & Cheredigion, Sir Benfro, a Phowys i weithio ar sail
ranbarthol. Bydd hyn yn cynnig cyfleoedd o ran dull rhanbarthol posibl yn natblygiad y
strategaeth, yn enwedig wrth ddiffinio rhai egwyddorion allweddol o ran yr ymagwedd
at ddigartrefedd a fydd yn llywio cynlluniau gweithredu lleol.

e Bydd datblygu dull rhanbarthol yn fwy manteisiol oherwydd gallem rannu'r gwaith sydd
ynghlwm a chyfuno ein gwybodaeth a'n sgiliau.

Angen cyfeirio'r mater at y Bwrdd Gweithredol / Cyngor er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad:

Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad - OES - 4 Mehefin, 2018
Angen i’r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad - Nac Oes

Yr Aelod o'r Bwrdd Gweithredol sy'n dal y Portffolio:
Y Cynghorydd Linda Evans (Deiliad Portffolio Tai)

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth Swydd: Rhifau ffon:

Cymunedau 01267 228960

Enw Pennaeth y Pennaeth Dros Dro Cartrefi a 01554 899232

Gwasanaeth: Chymunedau Mwy Diogel.

Jonathan Morgan Cyfeiriadau E-bost:
Rheolwr Cyngor a Chymorth jmorgan@sirgar.gov.uk

Awdur yr Adroddiad: Tenantiaeth jnwillis@sirgar.gov.uk

Jonathan Willis

P EICH CYNGorarleinamdani
onser Sir Gér www.sirgarllyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire

%2 YouRcouncidoitonline Tudalen 61



mailto:jmorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:jnwillis@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 11™ MAY, 2018

SUBJECT:
HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to outline the approach with regard to the development of a
Homelessness Strategy.

Context

The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 introduced new responsibilities on local authorities to prevent
homelessness. In Carmarthenshire we undertook a service review prior to the new legislation
coming into force. Key changes involved the re-alignment of our Housing Options Service which
involved creating a single point of contact for service users seeking housing advice. The team
pooled a range of expertise and the team now has a range of specialist advisors and partners
whose aim it is to tackle the root cause of any particular housing problem presented.

Partnership working has been key to meeting these new duties and providing a better service.
Key partners who are co-located with our housing teams are:

e The Wallich who provide mediation services.

e Shelter, who provide money advice and general advocacy.

e Care and Repair who support older people install adaptations and help with other home
improvements.

e Pobl who provide financial support to access the private rented sector.

The changes have had a significant effect on the number of people who are defined as
homeless under the Act. In 2013 there were in excess of 500 households defined as homeless
compared to 135 in 2016.

What do we need to do next?

The Housing (Wales) Act 2014 also requires local authorities to regularly review their
homelessness services. Welsh Government produced guidance last year and confirmed that
local authorities should formulate homelessness strategies by December 2018. Once a
strategy is produced there is a requirement to review its content at least every four years.

The main elements of a homeless strategy should relate to how local authorities:

e Prevent homelessness.
e Secure accommodation for people who are homeless or threatened with
homelessness.

P EICH CYNGorarleinamdani
onser Sir Gér www.sirgarllyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
ar2 YOUR counciLdoitonline

@, =222y A
T U d al e n 6 2 Oy o www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales




e Provide support to those homeless or threatened with homelessness.

Strategic approaches should reflect Welsh Government’s Ten Year Homeless Plan which
emphasises prevention, placing the service users at the centre of service delivery and making
the best use of resources.

Welsh Government have also suggested that local authorities may wish to consider developing
a regional approach. With this in mind, officers have had preliminary meetings with colleagues
from Powys, Ceredigion and Pembrokeshire. There are clear advantages of adopting a
regional or sub-regional approach. These include:

e There are many similarities between the issues faced by local authorities which could
be addressed together;

e Many third sector organisations work across authority boundaries so there could be a
joint approach;

o Research and development work can be shared; and

e There is a broader pool of expertise.

In terms of managing the approach it is proposed that a set of key principles will be developed
regionally, based on the review of data and the stakeholder engagement process. These
principles will then underpin our local action plans.

How will we approach it?

In terms of developing the strategy it is proposed that the process will involve the following
steps:

1.Review of data and information

This will essentially be a desk top exercise which will involve an analysis of a range of
homeless statistics such as the numbers of homeless, cases prevented and re-housed, trends
and causes. Other relevant information about housing supply and demand, and the resources
dedicated to prevention, will also be considered.

2. Stakeholder engagement

This will be done by gathering feedback locally and regionally from stakeholder events and
surveys. A range of service users and local members will be involved with the aim of
gathering their views, needs and experiences. Similarly there will be a range of internal and
external partners who need to be involved such as third sector organisations, teams providing
services to children, care leavers, older people and those with mental health problems.
Appendix 1 outlines the intended approach.

3. Strategy Development and Statement of Principles

This is likely to involve the collation of key findings and statement of broader principles which
will be applicable across the region. For example, we may wish to place more emphasis on
much earlier prevention of homelessness, with greater involvement of other services, such as
Health and Education, and third sector organisations. We may also wish to broaden the

P EICH CYNGorarleinamdani
onser Sir Gér www.sirgarllyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire
(\0 s

s Youcounci doitonline Tudalen 63




range of housing solutions for groups who are more likely to become homeless, such as
young, single people.

4. Development of Local Action Plans

This will involve individual actions applicable to each local authority. For example, education
campaigns amongst young people who are at risk of homelessness; ensuring access to
mental health services for people who are at risk of homelessness; reducing the time spent in
temporary accommodation, particularly high-cost supported housing projects, by faster move-
on into ordinary housing.

5. Formal Public Consultation on Draft Strategy and Action Plan

A report on the draft Strategy and Action Plan will be prepared for consultation

To recommend to Executive Board:

e To approve the approach and consultation plan with regard to the development of a
homeless strategy.

e To confirm our intention to develop opportunities to work on a regional basis.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? NO -
Attached - Appendix 1
Homelessness Strategy -Consultation and stakeholder
engagement

P EICH CYNGorarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gir wwwisirgarllyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire

Tudalen 64 “seZs  Your councidoitonline




IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Jonathan Morgan Acting Head of Homes and Safer Communities
Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

YES YES YES NONE NONE NONE NONE

1.Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities

This report sets out a proposal in relation to the development of a new homeless strategy. The
homeless strategy will need to link with a range of other service strategies and Future
Generations five ways of working.

2. Legal

Section 50 of the Housing (Wales) Act 2014 places a duty on local authorities to carry out a
homeless review and formulate a homeless strategy.

The Welsh Government Code of Guidance for Local Authorities on the Allocation of
Accommodation and Homelessness Chapter 5 sets out how local authorities plan homeless
services.

4 Finance

Any review of homelessness services will need to consider if there are sufficient resources to be
able to meet our statutory duties. This will be fully considered as part of the new strategy
development.

o i A ’i EICH cYNGorarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gir wwwisirgarllyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire

s A

i doitonline
%2 YouRcouncidoitonline Tudalen 65




CONSULTATIONS

| confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Jonathan Morgan Acting Head of Homes and Safer Communities

1. Local Member(s)

Local Members will be involved in stakeholders’ activities/events and will be consulted as part
of the political process when the new strategy document has been produced.

2.Community / Town Council
Community and Town Councils be involved as part of the stakeholder activities/events.
3.Relevant Partners

Relevant partners will be involved in stakeholders’ activities/events and will have the
opportunity to comment on the new strategy document.

4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Relevant staff will be fully involved throughout the process

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Wels Government Welsh Government Website
Code of Guidance for
Local Authorities on
the Allocation of
Accommodation and
Homelessness

wo Sir Gag i EICH cYNGorRarleinamdani
onser Sir Gér www.sirgarllyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire B -
Tudalen 66 U IR COUNC Aot e




Appendix 1

Homelessness Strategy -Consultation and stakeholder engagement

Stakeholder Description

Method of Engagement

Service Users (Those who have
approached the service because
they have been threatened with or
made homelessness)

e Focus Group meetings.
e Face to face interviews.

Current applicants on the register

Emails/letters/text messages sent to existing applicants on the housing register where there is a mobile number,
directing them to the consultation page on the website.

Website Questionnaire posted on the website under the consultations section which an electronic feedback survey.
Facebook Notice posted on the wall which links to the Carmarthenshire website.

Press Release Article placed in press informing public of the engagement exercise and ways of providing us with feedback.
Tai Pawb Letter, questionnaire will be sent.

Tenant Networks

Sessions held with all tenant networks.
> A&G
> Llanelli
> TTT

Partner Organisations

Discussions will be held at the Homeless Forum. Homeless Forum group included:

The Wallich, Shelter Cymru, NHS, Gwalia Care and Support, Leaving Care team, Hafan Cymru, Prison Service,
Careers, Hywel Dda, Christians Against Poverty, Probation, Llety, Catrefi Hafod, Mental Health Team, CAB, Red
Cross

Housing Associations

Workshop as part of regular meetings in relation to the running of our Housing Choice Register (Family Housing,
Pobl, Wales & West Housing Association, Bro Myrddin Housing Association).

Landlords Forum

Work shop involving the forum

Other Council Divisions

Meetings with officers from key divisions/teams including Legal Services, Education and Children’s Services, Mental
Health and Learning Disabilities, Care Line, Community Resource Teams. E-mail forwarded to Heads of Service
with our proposals.

Staff Focus Group

Sessions held with staff of council and housing associations.

Local Members

Consultation via member’s seminars/meetings of the political groups.

AM’s | MP’s Letters ,questionnaire copy of the draft policy will be sent to AMs/MPs.
Neighbouring Local Authorities We will share findings as a minimum but are looking to develop a regional or sub-regional approach.
Welsh Assembly Letter will be sent outlining our proposals
g_ Welsh Local Government Agency Letter will be e-mailed outlining our proposals.
| Community/Town Councils Questionnaire will be sent to all with e-mail addresses and letters sent to the remainder informing them of the internet
D) link to look at documents and provide feedback.
-]
o
\l




Tudalen 68



Eitem Rhif 7

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU - CYMUNEDAU
DYDDIAD: 11 MAI, 2018

PWNC:
NEWID I'R POLISI ADNEWYDDU TAI Y SECTOR PREIFAT

Y Pwrpas:

Newid y Polisi Adnewyddu Tai y Sector Preifat i adlewyrchu'r newidiadau yng
nghynllun Benthyciadau Gwella Cartrefi a chynllun Troi Tai'n Gartrefi
Llywodraeth Cymru.

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt:

e Argymell i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol mabwysiadu’r meini prawf diwygiedig
cynllun Benthyciadau Gwella Cartrefi a chynllun Troi Tai'n Gartrefi
Llywodraeth Cymru.

Y rhesymau:

e Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi newid ei chynllun Benthyciadau Gwella Cartrefi
a'i chynllun Troi Tai'n Gartrefi i roi mwy o hyblygrwydd i awdurdodau lleol o
ran sut y maent yn gwario'r cyllid a ddyrannwyd.

e Parhau i fanteisio ar y cyllid, bydd angen i ni ddiwygio ein hymagwedd.

Angen cyfeirio'r mater at y Bwrdd Gweithredol / Cyngor er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad:

Angen i'r Bwrdd Gweithredol wneud penderfyniad OES - 4 Mehefin, 2018
Angen i’'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

YR AELOD O'R BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:-
Y Cynghorydd Linda Evans (Deiliad Portffolio Tai)

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Swyddi: Rhifau ffon:
Cymunedau
y Pennaeth Dros Dro Cartrefi a 01267 228960 / 01554 899232
Chymunedau Mwy Diogel
Enw Pennaej(h y Cyfeiriadau E-bost:
Gwasanaeth: Jonathan
Morgan jmorgan@sirgar.gov.uk
. Rheolwr Asiantaeth Gwella
Awdur yr Adroddiad: Cartrefi rievansa@sirgar.gov.uk
Rob Evans

wor Sir Gaph EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
2 YOUR counciL doitonline Tudalen 69

QA .
Yty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales


mailto:jmorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 11™H MAY, 2018

SUBJECT;
AMENDMENT TO THE PRIVATE SECTOR RENEWAL POLICY

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to seek approval to amend the Private Sector Renewal Policy to
reflect changes with the Welsh Government’'s Home Improvement Loan and Houses to
Homes schemes.

Context

The Regulatory Reform (Housing Assistance) (England and Wales) Order 2002 gave local
authorities more wide ranging powers to offer financial assistance. Each Authority had to
publish a Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy outlining the support and assistance that it
will provide.

The Council’s Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy was adopted in 2006. The approach at
the time introduced the concept of providing loans for critical improvements to the owner
occupier's home where they were unable to access or couldn’t afford any other forms of
recognised finance.

In 2013 the Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy was amended to offer loans to owners of
empty properties in accordance with the Welsh Government’'s Houses to Homes scheme.
Welsh Government encouraged Local Authorities to work collaboratively within regions and
Carmarthenshire acted as regional lead for the Mid and West Wales region.

In Carmarthenshire we have administered £1.3m of loans for owner of empty properties.
These are short term loans, either over a 2 or 3 year period and are to be repaid as a lump
sum at the end of the loan term. These loans were based on the free equity within the
property and secured as a charge with the Land Registry.

In 2015 the Welsh Government launched a Home Improvement Loan scheme and
Carmarthenshire was awarded £625,000 in funding. A further £625,000 was provided for the
Houses to Homes Scheme.

The Home Improvement Loans scheme is a monthly repayment loan over a maximum term of
10 years for owner occupiers or five years for landlords but this scheme is dependent on the
homeowner being able to afford the monthly repayments. These loans are secured against
the owner’s property with the Land Registry and are subject to the applicant being subject to
an affordability check. The Private Sector Housing Renewal Policy was further amended in
2015 to take account of these changes.

wor Sir GAr EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
o, =22 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 70



What are we proposing?

Whilst there has been a good take up in relation to the Houses to Homes Scheme, local
authorities reported far less take up in the Home Improvement Loan Scheme.

In February 2018 Welsh Government reviewed the criteria around House to Homes and
Home Improvement Loans schemes to give authorities greater flexibility on how they use the
funding provided.

The total funding awarded to each Local Authority will now be pooled together (£1.25m in
Carmarthenshire’s case) and can be used to support all forms of financial assistance for
homeowners to maintain their home.

In allowing authorities to do this, Welsh Government have revised the criteria for some forms
of assistance and we need to ensure our Renewal Policy reflects these changes.

House to Homes

1. Landlords can now apply for £250,000 per application - £25,000 per property for up to
10 properties. Once repaid the applicant can apply for further funding. Previously this
was £150,000 - £25,000 per property for up to 6 properties.

2. The loan term has been extended from 2 and 3 years:

a. Up to a maximum of 2 years if the intention is to sell the property following the
works. The loan is repayable in full either at the point of sale or at the end of the
2 year loan term, whichever is the sooner.

b. Up to a maximum of 5 years if the intention is to rent the property following the
works.

c. Up to a maximum of 10 years if the intention is to rent the property at the
affordable Local Housing Allowance (LHA) rates following the works, with up to
a 10 year commitment for Local Authority tenant nomination rights.

Home Improvement Loans

The original scheme was reliant on applicants being able to afford monthly repayments. If the
applicant failed the affordability check they did not qualify for assistance under this scheme.

The intention under the revised scheme is to offer loans and assistance on the following
basis:

1. Home Improvement Loan —The first stage will be to consider applicants for a
repayment loan. This will be offered on a monthly basis for a fixed term of up to 10
years, subject to the applicant passing an affordability check.

tei -

e
onsor Sir Gar 3 www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
2 YOUR counciL doitonline Tudalen 71

QA .
Yty Con® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



2. Property Appreciation Loan —If applicants cannot afford monthly repayments
consideration will be given if they have free equity within the home. There will need to
be a minimum of 30% free equity within their property and the loan is repaid when the
property changes ownership.

3. Owner Occupier Repayable Financial Assistance — If applicants are unable to service a
loan and do not have sufficient equity they will be offered financial assistance which will
also be repaid upon the sale of the property. This would replace our current Home
Improvement and Emergency Repairs Assistance which currently takes the form of a
grant and is repayable if the property is disposed of within 10 years. By introducing
lifetime repayment conditions the funding will be able to be recycled to assist those in
greatest need.

To recommend to Executive Board:

1. To adopt Welsh Government’s revised Home Improvement Loan and Houses to
Homes scheme criteria.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? No

wor Sir GAr EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire ) ]
o, =22 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
“ty Coot www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 72



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed:  Jonathan Morgan Acting Head of Homes & Safer Communities

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

YES YES YES NONE YES NONE NONE

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities

Adopting the Welsh Government’s scheme will provide us with greater flexibility in utilising the
funding provided and allow the Council to assist more homeowners to maintain their homes which
currently present a risk to the health and wellbeing of the occupants.

2. Legal

Council’s solicitors were consulted on the original scheme and the amended scheme retains the
need for the applicants to accept a land charge or a full legal charge being registered against their
property. There is already an established process in place to register these charges.

3.Finance

The funding for this scheme has been received by the Authority in previous years. We will
amend our approach in line with the new Welsh Government’s proposals.

5. Risk Management Issues

All loans are secured against the property and there is already agreed processes and
procedures in place with debtors and legal to ensure that agreed repayments are being met.

CONSULTATIONS
o Sir Gar EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
omser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
2 YOUR counciL doitonline Tudalen 73

QA .
Yty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Jonathan Morgan Acting Head of Homes & Safer Communities

1.Local Member(s) - N/A

2.Community / Town Council — N/A

3.Relevant Partners - N/A

4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations - N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Locations that the papers are available for public inspection
Ref
No.

Regulatory Reform (Housing http://www.legislation.qov.uk/uksi/2002/1860/made

Assistance) (England and
Wales) Order 2002

CCC Private Sector Housing http://online.carmarthenshire.qov.uk/agendas/eng/
Renewal Policy 2006 C0OC020060412/index.asp
Report to Executive Board — http://online.carmarthenshire.qov.uk/agendas/eng/
13th July, 2015 — Welsh EXEB20150713/index.asp

Government’s Home
Improvement Loan Scheme

(Item 3)
wor Sir GAr EICH CYNGOrRarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
Tudalen 74 2 YOUR counciL doitonline

QA .
Yty Con® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2002/1860/made
http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/agendas/eng/COCO20060412/index.asp
http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/agendas/eng/COCO20060412/index.asp
http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/agendas/eng/EXEB20150713/index.asp
http://online.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/agendas/eng/EXEB20150713/index.asp

Eitem Rhif 8

Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau
11 Mai 2018

Cynllun Datblygu Lleol Diwygiedig 2018 - 2033
Cytundeb Cyflawni Drafft

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt:
e | ystyried a nodir sylwadau a dderbyniwyd, yn ogystal &'r argymhellion, yn sgil y
Cytundeb Cyflawni Drafft.
e | ystyried y newidiadau i'r amserlen
e | nodi cyflwyno’r Cytundeb Cyflawni (gan gynnwys argymhellion yr adroddiad yma) i
Lywodraeth Cymru am ei chytundeb

¢ | nodi estyniad o’r gyfnod ymgynghori ar gyfer cyflwyno safleoedd ymgeisio hyd at 29
Awst 2018.

Rhesymau:

e Er mwyn gydymffurfio gyda rhwymedigaethau statudol y Cyngor yn nhermau paratoi
Cynllun Datblygu Lleol diwygiedig ar gyfer Sir Caerfyrddin yn unol & gweithdrefnau
statudol.

e Er mwyn ymateb i gynnwys y llythyr oddi wrth Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Ynni,
Cynllunio a Materion Gwledig.

e | sicrhau fod paratoi a mabwysiadu CDLI diwygiedig (newydd) yn mynd yn ei flaen yn
amserol briodol o flaen y CDLI yn dod i ben.

Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Bwrdd Gweithredol / Cyngor er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad: OES

AELOD BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY’N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Cyng. Mair Stephens
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth Swyddi: Rhifau ffén 01267 228659

Amgylchedd Cyfeiriadau e-bost:

Enw Pennaeth y

Gwasanaeth: _
Pennaeth Cynllunio LQuelch@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Llinos Quelch IRLIewelyn@carmarthenshire.gov

Awdur yr Adroddiad: . .uk
Rheolwr Blaen-gynllunio

lan R Llewelyn

o™ EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
omser Sir Gar Yo www sirgarllyw.cymru Tudalen 75

Carmarthenshire . .
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales


mailto:LQuelch@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:IRLlewelyn@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:IRLlewelyn@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Community Scrutiny
11t May 2018

Revised Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan 2018 - 2033
Draft Delivery Agreement

1. Brief Summary of Purpose of Report.

This Report follows the approval at County Council on the 10th January 2018 to formally
commence the preparation of a Revised (replacement) Local Development Plan (LDP), along
with the resolution to publish the Draft Delivery Agreement for formal public consultation.

The consultation period for the Draft Delivery Agreement commenced on the 5th February
2018, and closed on the 23 March 2018. In total some 10 representations were received
from a range of organisations, interested parties and members of the public — the details of
which, along with officer responses and recommendations are set out in Appendix 1 of this
report.

Reference is also made to Appendix 2 of this report which identifies a series of recommended
officer based amendments to the Draft Delivery Agreement, including those arising from
contextual changes.

2. Background

The preparation of the Delivery Agreement (DA) represents an important first step in
developing the revised LDP. It reflects the requirement for the Council to prepare, publish
and agree with the Welsh Government (WG) a DA in accordance with Section 63 of the 2004
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act.

In line with statutory regulations and guidance, the DA must consist of the following:

o Community Involvement Scheme (CIS), which sets out how and when stakeholders
and the community can contribute to the plan preparation process, and the timing
and mechanisms used in undertaking such engagement; and

o Timetable for plan preparation and adoption, which once agreed by the Welsh
Government commits the Council to preparing the revised LDP to the timescales
identified.

The DA in setting out a timetable for the key stages in preparing the revised LDP, and a
Community Involvement Scheme (CIS), which sets out how and when stakeholders and the
community can contribute during the Plan’s preparatory process, sets the context for the
Plan’s preparation.

o™ EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
Tudalen 76 onsor Sir Gar X www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



The timetable set out within the Draft DA identified a challenging, but realistic, timeframe for
preparing the Revised LDP. This timetable has however through this consultation, and notably
in light of the content of the letter from Lesley Griffiths AM, Cabinet Secretary for Energy,
Planning and Rural Affairs, been further refined. Further details are set out within this report
and Appendix 2. This notably includes an amendment to the adoption date proposed within the
Draft DA from September 2021 to November/December 2021.

This in part accommodates the Cabinet Secretary’s expectation that the Revised LDP be
prepared and adopted within 3.5 years of formal commencement of the process. It should be
noted the formal commencement of the process corresponds with the WG approval of the DA,
anticipated as July 2018. Consequently the revised timetable reflects the 3.5 year
preparatory process. Critically, this still ensures that the Revised Plan is in place ahead of
the expiration of the current adopted Plan at the end of 2021.

Further detail relating to the letter from the Cabinet Secretary is set out in section 4 of this
report.

A further component of this report relates to the ongoing consultation on the call for
‘Candidate Sites’. Having commenced on the 5th February 2018, the call for ‘Candidate
Sites’ is currently scheduled to close on the 29t May 2018. This report further considers the
length of this consultation and provides the context for its subsequent extension of that period
to maximise the opportunity available for the submission of such sites. This consultation or
“call” for sites provides an opportunity at the outset of preparation of the Revised LDP for
submissions from developers, landowners and the public for sites that could be included for
new development, re-development or protection in the LDP.

3. Key Elements of the Delivery Agreement

The timetable set out within the Draft DA identified a challenging, but realistic, timeframe for
preparing the replacement LDP. From the start of the plan making process it was anticipated
that the revised LDP will be adopted by September 2021.

It should however be noted that following the letter from the Cabinet Secretary on the 29t
March 2018, the timetable proposed in this report has been amended to reflect the
expectations contained within that letter. In this respect the anticipated adoption date has
been revised to November/December 2021, this taking into account the resources available to
the Local Planning Authority. Further information in respect of the letter from the Cabinet
Secretary is set out within section 4 below.

The main stages for plan preparation have been split in to Definitive and Indicative Stages as
follows:

e Definitive Stages — These include the stages in plan preparation up to and including
the statutory deposit stage (i.e. consultation on the ‘Deposit Revised LDP’). These
stages are deemed as under the control of the Council and as such, reflect a realistic
assessment of what can be achieved within particular timescales.

¢ Indicative Stages — These include the stages of the plan preparation process after
statutory deposit stage and up to and including adoption of the revised LDP. Their
indicative nature reflects that the Council is able to exhibit less control over these
stages given that they are influenced by, and subject to external factors, such as the

o™ EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
omser Sir Gar Yo www sirgarllyw.cymru Tudalen 77

Carmarthenshire . .
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



number of representations received at deposit stage and the availability, requirements
and capacity of the Planning Inspectorate.

It should be noted that at the deposit stage, an updated DA with definitive timescales for the
final stages of plan preparation will be prepared and submitted to the WG for agreement.

The Community Involvement Scheme (CIS) sets out why it is important to involve the
community. It identifies who should be involved and suggests how to get involved in the LDP
process. The CIS sets out the Council’s participation strategy; the role of the Local Planning
Authority, Councillors and Officers; the methods of engagement and the bodies, agencies and
organisations to be involved; and the Council’s expectations of all stakeholders and
participants who become involved in the process and what they can expect of the Council.

The CIS also recognises the need to strengthen community involvement in order to achieve
an LDP that has local ownership and is legitimate for the policies that will shape the level and
future distribution of growth and development within the County.

The Appendices of the DA identifies all of the bodies, agencies and organisations that will be
consulted in accordance with the DA. The lists are not, however, exhaustive, and new
consultees can be added at a later date. It should also be noted that an extensive mailing list
has been compiled through the preparation of the current LDP. This mailing list ensures
interested parties who may not be identified as consultees are informed of progress at
appropriate stages of the Plan’s preparation. New interested parties will be encouraged to
register.

4. Letter from the Cabinet Secretary

Members may be aware that on the 13t December 2017 Lesley Griffiths AM, Cabinet
Secretary for Energy, Planning and Rural Affairs wrote to a number of local authorities
outlining the benefits for undertaking Joint LDPs and inviting proposals for the preparation of
such Plans. In this respect Carmarthenshire along with Pembrokeshire and Ceredigion were
identified and invited to consider the preparation of a Joint LDP.

Following this invitation and responses from Council’s across Wales, a further letter was
received from the Cabinet Secretary on the 29" March 2018. This letter outlines a series of
expectations in light of the assurances provided by Local Authorities around the preparation of
individual LDPs. These expectations are as follows:

e That WG receive the DA within 3 months of the date of the letter.

e That the DA demonstrate that plan preparation can be achieved within 3.5 years. (It
should be noted the commencement of the 3.5 year preparatory process commences
with the WG approval of the DA, anticipated as July 2018.)

e That there be a single additional slippage period of 3 months.

The letter also indicates that the Cabinet Secretary will not be minded to agree any further
extensions beyond the initial DA, and that the Planning Inspectorate will be asked to give special
consideration to collaboration and planning outcomes when the LDP is examined.

Reference is also made to Local Government reform and its implications on the preparation of
the LDP: Should the National Assembly agree to reform Local Government ahead of the revised

o™ EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
Tudalen 78 onsor Sir Gar X www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



LDP reaching Deposit stage, the local authority may be required to re-commence the Plan
making process.

5. Sustainability Appraisal (SA)/Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) and
Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA)
It should be noted that the content of the Revised LDP will be informed by a variety of
assessments, including an SA/SEA and HRA. The former is required by Section 62 (6a) of the
Planning Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, while the latter is a requirement of the SEA
Directive 2001/42/EC1. An SEA is a mandatory requirement for plans/programmes.

The DA also consider the integration of SA/SEA and the HRA as part of the Revised LDP’s
preparatory process.

6. Next Steps
Following the Council’s deliberations, the DA will be submitted to the WG for agreement.
Subject to WG agreement the DA commits the Council to producing the Revised LDP to the
stated timescales and through the identified consultation and engagement processes. The DA
forms part of the statutory process in relation to producing an LDP and is therefore a
requirement of the legislation.

Once agreed, the DA will be formally published. It will then commit the Council to producing
the Revised LDP to the stated timescales and consultation processes.

Note: the letter from the Cabinet Secretary places an expectation that the DA be submitted to
the WG for agreement no later than 3 months from her letter dated the 29t March 2018. In
this respect reference is made to the reporting timetable below:

Corporate Management Team - 17 April 2018

Preliminary Executive Board - 30 April 2018
Community Scrutiny - 11 May 2018
Executive Board -4 June 2018

Council - 13 June 2018

7. Call for ‘Candidate Sites’
As outlined above, the consultation or ‘call’ for Candidate Sites represents a key stage as it
provides landowners, interested parties and developers the opportunity to submit sites for
consideration at the outset of the Plan’s preparation. Indeed, it is at this stage where those
wishing to propose sites for inclusion within the Deposit Plan, with its development limits, land
use allocations and other site specific matters, must do so. It also provides an opportunity to
propose areas for protection.

This consultation process is supported by the Site Assessment Methodology (as approved at
the meeting of County Council on the 10t January 2018), and requires proposers of sites to
complete a questionnaire and where appropriate submit supporting information. It seeks to
do this in a proportionate manner reflective of the scale and complexity of sites. Further
information may be sought to further support the consideration of the site. Where a site is
proposed for development purposes, a greater emphasis is now being placed on the inclusion
of sites that are genuinely available and deliverable. As such the process requires the
provision of certain information which supports its deliverability.

o™ EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
omser Sir Gar Yo www sirgarllyw.cymru Tudalen 79

Carmarthenshire . .
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



In light of these additional requirements, it has been considered prudent to extend the
consultation period for the call for ‘Candidate Sites’. This provides an enhanced opportunity
for their submission, and ensures sufficient time is available to ‘spread the message’ as
broadly as possible. It is also prudent in procedural terms to extend the period of consultation
beyond the date of agreement from the WG for the DA to ensure full compliance with the
statutory Regulations on LDP preparation.

Consequently the call for ‘Candidate Sites’ will run until the 29t August 2018. Further
notification on the extension of this period will be advertised and circulated accordingly.

Note: It should be noted that whilst the revised LDP is being prepared, the current adopted
Plan remains extant and will continue to provide the planning policy framework by which
planning applications will be determined.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES

Tudalen 80 oo Sir Garlh EICH cYNGorRarleinamdani

2 x www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
q <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
ity Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors
| Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated
with this report :

Signed: L Quelch Head of Planning
Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues
Equalities
YES YES YES YES NONE YES YES

Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities

The Delivery Agreement identifies the links and requirements necessary to ensure the Plan, and
the processes in its preparation are compatible with Carmarthenshire County Council’s well-being
objectives. It also ensures alignment with the national Well-being Goals set out within the Well-
being of Future Generations Act 2015. Through its land use planning policies, the Revised LDP
will seek to promote the principles of sustainability and sustainable development by facilitating the
creation of communities and local economies which are more sustainable, providing access to
local services and facilities and reducing the need to travel.

The integration of sustainability as part of the preparation of the LDP is reflected in the undertaking
of a Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic Environmental Assessment reflecting national and
international legislative requirements. The formulation of the Revised LDP will closely consider
matters of sustainability and will be prepared with the outcomes of the Plan measured in light of the
Sustainability Appraisal indicators. This iterative approach ensures sustainability is at the heart of
the Plan and that it is reflective of the requirements emanating from the Wellbeing and Future
Generations Act 2015 and the emerging Carmarthenshire Well-being Plan.

The DA, in identifying the timetable and CIS for the preparation of the LDP, recognises and reflects
the requirements emanating from the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act and the implications for
the LDP in general. In this respect, the LDP will have full regard to the national legislative provisions
and will relate and have regard to the Carmarthenshire Well-being Plan. The LDP will assess
compatibility of the LDP and the National and local Well-being Objectives. It is noted that the
Revised LDP will ensure the requirements emanating from the Act are fully and appropriately
considered with the Plan, reflective of its duties.

o™ EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
omser Sir Gar Yo www sirgarllyw.cymru Tudalen 81

Carmarthenshire . .
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales




Legal

The preparation of the Revised LDP reflects the provisions of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004, the requirements of the Planning (Wales) Act 2015 and secondary legislation
in the form of the Local Development Plan (Regulations) Wales (As amended) 2015.

The preparation of the LDP will also have appropriate regard to other sources of primary and
secondary legislation including the Environment (Wales) Act and the Well-being of Future
Generations Act 2015.

The preparation of the Delivery Agreement is in accordance with Section 63 of the 2004 Planning
and Compulsory Purchase Act. It is also in line with national regulations and guidance in relation
to its scope and content.

Finance

Financial costs to date are covered through the financial provisions in place - including growth
items and reserves. Should the Planning Division Budget not be in a position to provide further
funding necessary to meet the statutory requirements to review and prepare a development
plan then an application will be made for a further growth bid.

The Delivery Agreement, in making reference to such matters, outlines the Council’s
commitment to prepare and adopt an up-to-date LDP in accordance with the Council’s
statutory duty.

ICT

Requirements in relation to ICT will seek to utilise existing resources. An additional and revised
data management requirement will be procured to ensure the plan’s preparatory process is
conducted in a speedy, efficient and transparent manner in accordance with regulatory
requirements.

o™ EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
Tudalen 82 onsor Sir Gar X www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Physical Assets

Reference is made to the potential for the submission of Council owned sites and
properties through the call for ‘Candidate Sites’. The preparation of the Revised LDP will
impact on Council land and property holdings through their inclusion or otherwise for
potential development purposes. This will have implications on potential disposal and land
valuations and consequently capital receipts.

Staffing Implications

It is anticipated that the review of the LDP be accommodated in the main by utilising the
existing staff structure. The revised structure subject to current ongoing recruitments is set
out within Appendix 2 of this report. This includes an Officer to oversee SA/SEA and HRA
work (appointment anticipated late Spring 2018).

Provision will be required for a Programme Officer for the Examination into the LDP
(anticipated 2020/21).

o™ EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
omser Sir Gar Yo www.sirgar.llyw.cymru Tudalen 83

Carmarthenshire . .
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales




CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: L Quelch Head of Planning

1. Scrutiny Committee
11t May 2018 — Community Scrutiny.

2.Local Member(s)

The content of the DA has been subject to full public consultation. Members will be engaged
throughout the LDP revision process. The Candidate Site consultation is ongoing.

3.Community / Town Council

The content of the DA has been subject to full public consultation. Town/Community
Councils(s) are a specific consultee at statutory stages throughout the LDP revision. The
Candidate Site consultation is ongoing.

4.Relevant Partners

The content of the DA has been subject to full public consultation. A range of partners are
identified as specific and general consultees throughout the review process. The Candidate
Site consultation is ongoing.

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations

The content of the DA has been subject to full public consultation. Internal contributions will
be sought throughout the revision process. The Candidate Site consultation is ongoing.

o™ EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
Tudalen 84 onsor Sir Gar X www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information

List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document

File Ref No.

Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Adopted

Carmarthenshire Local

Development Plan

http://Iwww.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/resid
ents/planning/policies-development-plans/local-
development-plan/

Supplementary
Planning Guidance

http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/resid
ents/planning/policies-development-
plans/supplementary-planning-quidance/#.V06h-
JwrKUk

Annual Monitoring
Report 2015/16

http://Iwww.carmarthenshire.qgov.wales/media/368
3/annual-monitoring-report-201516-amr-
document-for-web.pdf

Annual Monitoring
Report 2016/17

http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/121
2553/annual-monitoring-report-2016-17.pdf

LDP Review Report

http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/121
3042/Idp-review-report-english-version.pdf

Draft Delivery
Agreement

http://www.carmarthenshire.qgov.wales/media/121
3084/final-draft-delivery-agreement-enq.pdf

Call for ‘Candidate
Sites’

http://www.carmarthenshire.qgov.wales/home/coun
cil-services/planning/local-development-plan-
2018-2033/candidate-sites/#.WsPYouaotMs

P N
omeor Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire

(\ <anl N
L) o
Uty Cow™”

EICH CYNGORaArleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

YOUR counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Tudalen 85



http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/residents/planning/policies-development-plans/local-development-plan/
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/residents/planning/policies-development-plans/local-development-plan/
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/residents/planning/policies-development-plans/local-development-plan/
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/residents/planning/policies-development-plans/supplementary-planning-guidance/#.V06h-JwrKUk
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/residents/planning/policies-development-plans/supplementary-planning-guidance/#.V06h-JwrKUk
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/residents/planning/policies-development-plans/supplementary-planning-guidance/#.V06h-JwrKUk
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/residents/planning/policies-development-plans/supplementary-planning-guidance/#.V06h-JwrKUk
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/3683/annual-monitoring-report-201516-amr-document-for-web.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/3683/annual-monitoring-report-201516-amr-document-for-web.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/3683/annual-monitoring-report-201516-amr-document-for-web.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1212553/annual-monitoring-report-2016-17.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1212553/annual-monitoring-report-2016-17.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1213042/ldp-review-report-english-version.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1213042/ldp-review-report-english-version.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1213084/final-draft-delivery-agreement-eng.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1213084/final-draft-delivery-agreement-eng.pdf
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/local-development-plan-2018-2033/candidate-sites/#.WsPYouaotMs
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/local-development-plan-2018-2033/candidate-sites/#.WsPYouaotMs
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/local-development-plan-2018-2033/candidate-sites/#.WsPYouaotMs

Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1 Appendix 1: Report on Draft Delivery Agreement

Appendix 1

Draft Delivery Agreement — Consultation Responses

The following responses we're received during the consultation period held between the 5"
February and 23 March 2018 in respect of the Draft Delivery Agreement for the Revised
Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan 2018 — 2033. Where appropriate each
representation is accompanied by the comments received (summarised where appropriate)
along with officer comments and recommendations.

Representation No: DA/001

Name: W Thomas
Organisation (where applicable): N/A

Question 1a — Do you consider the content and purpose of the DA to be Clear and
Understandable?: YES

Question 1b — Does the draft DA make clear the appropriate steps/stages in respect of LDP
preparation?: YES

Question 2a — Do you consider the proposed Timetable for the preparation of the LDP to be
realistic and deliverable?: YES

Comment: Mae'r amserlen yn dynn o gofio bod angen trafod gyda nifer sylweddol o
randdeiliaid.

The timetable is tight given that there is a need to discuss with a significant number
of stakeholders.

Question 3a — Does the CIS make it clear how and when you or your organisation can get
involved?: YES

Question 3b — Do you consider that the methods of involvement identified within the CIS are
appropriate?: YES

Question 3c — Do you consider that the appropriate key stakeholders have been identified to
achieve a representative Plan?: YES

Question 3d — Do you consider that the appropriate Consultation Bodies and multi-agency
partnerships have been identified?: YES

Question 4 - Additional Comments/suggestions:
None

Officer Response

Wedi nodi. Er ei bod wedi nodi bod proses paratoi’r Cynllun Datblygu Lleol (CDLI) a’i
amserlen ar gyfer ei pharatoi yn cynnwys nifer o gyfnodau allweddol gan gynnwys y
rheiny pan fydd ymgysylitiad yn arbennig o bwysig. Mae’r amserlen gyfan ar gyfer
paratoi’r CDLI Diwygiedig wedi ei seilio ar gyngor wrth Lywodraeth Cymru a’r
cyfnodau sydd wedi eu gosod yn y rheoliadau statudol. Dylid nodi bod yr amserlen
yn cynnwys elfennau sydd wedi ei gosod yn gadarn, yn enwedig o gwmpas yr
Archwiliad Cyhoeddus pan mae ychydig o ddisgresiwn gyda’r awdurdod i wneud
addasiadau pellach.

Tudalen 87



2 Appendix 1: Report on Draft Delivery Agreement

Noted. Whilst it is noted that the LDP’s preparatory process and its timetable for
preparation includes a number of key stages including those where engagement is of
particular importance. The overall timescale for its preparation of the Revised LDP is
based upon Welsh Government advice and the stages set out within the statutory
regulations. It should also be noted that the timetable includes fixed timetabling
elements, notably around the Examination in Public where there is limited discretion
for the authority to make further adjustments.

Recommendation

Dim newid i’r Cytundeb Cyflenwi. Modd bynnag, dylid cyfeirio at y ‘newidiadau
arfaethedig y swyddogion’ sydd wedi eu gosod yn yr adroddiad yma. Gweler Atodiad
2,

No change to the Delivery Agreement. Reference should however be had to the
‘Officer Proposed Changes’ as set out within this report. See Appendix 2.

Tudalen 88



3 Appendix 1: Report on Draft Delivery Agreement

Representation No: DA/002

Name: F Jones
Organisation (where applicable): West Wales Rivers Trust

Question 1a — Do you consider the content and purpose of the DA to be Clear and
Understandable?: YES

Question 1b — Does the draft DA make clear the appropriate steps/stages in respect of LDP
preparation?: YES

Question 2a — Do you consider the proposed Timetable for the preparation of the LDP to be
realistic and deliverable?: YES

Question 3a — Does the CIS make it clear how and when you or your organisation can get
involved?: NO

Comment: The West Wales Rivers Trust is not listed within the list of consultation
bodies.

Question 3b — Do you consider that the methods of involvement identified within the CIS are
appropriate?: YES

Question 3¢ — Do you consider that the appropriate key stakeholders have been identified to
achieve a representative Plan?: NO

Comment: Environmental Non-Government Organisations should be represented on
the stakeholder group - Wales Environment Link can nominate a person.

Question 3d — Do you consider that the appropriate Consultation Bodies and multi-agency
partnerships have been identified?: NO

Comment: The West Wales Rivers Trust should be included in the list of consultation
bodies.

Question 4 - Additional Comments/suggestions:
None

Officer Response

Noted. The preparatory process associated with the Revised LDP and the Delivery
Agreement is recognised with the value of the Environment and central in the
preparation of the Revised LDP and its policies and proposals.

Whilst it is agreed to add The West Wales Rivers Trust to the list of consultation
bodies. It is not considered necessary to further add to the membership of the Key
Stakeholder Forum as sufficient representation is currently included to facilitate a
discussion across a range of groups.

Recommendation
Amend the Delivery Agreement by adding The West Wales Rivers Trust to the list of
consultation bodies.

Tudalen 89



4 Appendix 1: Report on Draft Delivery Agreement

Representation No: DA/003

Name: C Peters-Bond
Organisation (where applicable): N/A

Question 1a — Do you consider the content and purpose of the DA to be Clear and
Understandable?: No

Comment: If the document is aimed at members of the public, then the plan is dense,
full of jargon and relatively impenetrable.

Question 1b — Does the draft DA make clear the appropriate steps/stages in respect of LDP
preparation?: YES

Comment: If you can get through the language used to describe it.

Question 2a — Do you consider the proposed Timetable for the preparation of the LDP to be
realistic and deliverable?: YES

Question 3a — Does the CIS make it clear how and when you or your organisation can get
involved?: YES

Question 3b — Do you consider that the methods of involvement identified within the CIS are
appropriate?: YES

Question 3¢ — Do you consider that the appropriate key stakeholders have been identified to
achieve a representative Plan?: YES

Question 3d — Do you consider that the appropriate Consultation Bodies and multi-agency
partnerships have been identified?: YES

Question 4 - Additional Comments/suggestions:

The respondent states that the lack of a coordinated development plan with adjoining
Councils is a mistake. While a long list of potential consultees have been listed, it's
not clear how their views will effectively influence the plan which appears quite
inward looking.

Officer Response

Noted. Whilst it is recognised that some aspects around the content of the Delivery
Agreement may not be entirely Plain English its content in places reflects the often
technical nature of its content. The Council will however be preparing an ‘easy read’
publication to support the use of the Revised LDP.

The value attached to working with neighbouring Council’s is reflected in the Welsh
Governments Tests of Soundness against which the appropriateness of the Revised
LDP will be measured and assessed. In this respect the neighbouring authorities
within the region have a long standing and close relationship with collaboration and
information sharing an important part. This remains and each neighbouring authority
are a specific consultee in plan making and have representatives on the Key
Stakeholder Forum. Reference is made to section 1.8 of the Draft Delivery Agreement.

Recommendation
No change to the Delivery Agreement.

Tudalen 90



5 Appendix 1: Report on Draft Delivery Agreement

Representation No: DA/004

Name: J Rollinson
Organisation (where applicable): J4mRoll Solutions

Question 1a — Do you consider the content and purpose of the DA to be Clear and
Understandable?: YES

Question 1b — Does the draft DA make clear the appropriate steps/stages in respect of LDP
preparation?: YES

Question 2a — Do you consider the proposed Timetable for the preparation of the LDP to be
realistic and deliverable?: YES

Question 3a — Does the CIS make it clear how and when you or your organisation can get
involved?: YES

Question 3b — Do you consider that the methods of involvement identified within the CIS are
appropriate?: YES

Question 3¢ — Do you consider that the appropriate key stakeholders have been identified to
achieve a representative Plan?: YES

Question 3d — Do you consider that the appropriate Consultation Bodies and multi-agency
partnerships have been identified?: YES

Question 4 - Additional Comments/suggestions:
None

Officer Response
Noted

Recommendation
No change to the Delivery Agreement.

Tudalen 91



6 Appendix 1: Report on Draft Delivery Agreement

Representation No: DA/005
Name: M. Lindsley

Organisation (where applicable): The Coal Authority

Question 1a — Do you consider the content and purpose of the DA to be Clear and
Understandable?: N/A

Question 1b — Does the draft DA make clear the appropriate steps/stages in respect of LDP
preparation?: N/A

Question 2a — Do you consider the proposed Timetable for the preparation of the LDP to be
realistic and deliverable?: N/A

Question 3a — Does the CIS make it clear how and when you or your organisation can get
involved?: N/A

Question 3b — Do you consider that the methods of involvement identified within the CIS are
appropriate?: N/A

Question 3¢ — Do you consider that the appropriate key stakeholders have been identified to
achieve a representative Plan?: N/A

Question 3d — Do you consider that the appropriate Consultation Bodies and multi-agency
partnerships have been identified?: N/A

Question 4 - Additional Comments/suggestions:

Note comments submitted in light of the Review Report. Having had an opportunity
to review the Review Report and note that no fundamental changes are proposed to
the mineral or unstable land policies, although these policies will respond to any
contextual, evidential or factual changes arising. On this basis we have no specific
comments to make at this time.

Officer Response

It is noted that the comments received predominately relate to the content of the
Review Report. The respondent remains a consultee in the preparation of the Revised
LDP.

Recommendation
No change to the Delivery Agreement.

Tudalen 92



7 Appendix 1: Report on Draft Delivery Agreement

Representation No: DA/006
Name: G Ayres

Organisation (where applicable): Carmarthenshire County Council

Question 1a — Do you consider the content and purpose of the DA to be Clear and
Understandable?: N/A

Question 1b — Does the draft DA make clear the appropriate steps/stages in respect of LDP
preparation?: N/A

Question 2a — Do you consider the proposed Timetable for the preparation of the LDP to be
realistic and deliverable?: N/A

Question 3a — Does the CIS make it clear how and when you or your organisation can get
involved?: N/A

Question 3b — Do you consider that the methods of involvement identified within the CIS are
appropriate?: N/A

Question 3¢ — Do you consider that the appropriate key stakeholders have been identified to
achieve a representative Plan?: N/A

Question 3d — Do you consider that the appropriate Consultation Bodies and multi-agency
partnerships have been identified?: N/A

Question 4 - Additional Comments/suggestions:

Page 4, paragraph 1.4.1 - There is reference here to ‘the Council’s Well-being Plan’.
The respondent wishes to confirm that the Well-being Plan is the responsibility of the
PSB and not the Council. Could this be amended?

Page 4, Soundness tests questions — Whilst appreciating that these questions are
probably set at a national level the respondent points out that the questions relating
to Single Integrated Plan (SIP) will not be relevant after May 2018 as all Counties will
have replaced their SIPs with well-being plans from May 2018 onwards.

Page 13, paragraph 3.3.3 - Key Stakeholder Forum - There is reference to ‘existing
Community Strategy Partnership’. This require clarification.

Page 16, paragraph 3.4.3 - Seldom Heard Groups — Highlights the opportunity to
access some such groups through other Council resources.

Page 17, paragraph 3.4.6 - Town and Community Councils — Reference is made to the
existing network (forum) and the current 7 town and community councils subject to
the Act. Highlights that this is a forum with the Clerks and Development Officers from
those councils and not directly with the Community Councillors. Suggests that there
is an opportunity to utilise such a forum. Makes reference to the requirement for these
Councils from 2019 onwards to prepare an annual report to the PSB on how they’re
working to achieve the objectives of the well-being plan.

Page 46, Appendix 7 — Key Stakeholder Forum - Amend ‘Carmarthenshire Local
Health Board’ to ‘Hywel Dda University Health Board’.

Notes Dyfed Powys Police are named twice. The Police and Crime Commissioner is
now responsible for all Police estates.

Tudalen 93



8 Appendix 1: Report on Draft Delivery Agreement

Officer Response

Noted. The respondent’s points in relation to the tests of soundness are noted
however, these reflect that material issued by the Welsh Government. The Revised
LDP will however have full regard to the Well-being Plan once it supersedes the SIPs.

Welcomes the respondent’s comments in respect of assisting in accessing a number
of groups and forums is welcomed. Reference is made to paragraph 3.4.9 in respect
of engaging with Town and Community Councils, including the forum identified.

The inclusion of Dyfed Powys Police and the Police and Crime Commissioner is
intended to reflect the diversity of responsibilities and the range of contribution they
can make to the Revised LDP’s preparations

Recommendation
Amend paragraph 3.3.3 to ensure it is up-to-date and reflective of current provisions.

Amend paragraph 1.4.1 to clarify that the Well-being Plan is the responsibility of the
Public Service Board.

Amend Appendix 7 to change ‘Carmarthenshire Local Health Board’ to ‘Hywel Dda
University Health Board’

Tudalen 94



9 Appendix 1: Report on Draft Delivery Agreement

Representation No: DA/007
Name: S Luke

Organisation (where applicable): Natural Resources Wales

Question 1a — Do you consider the content and purpose of the DA to be Clear and
Understandable?: N/A

Question 1b — Does the draft DA make clear the appropriate steps/stages in respect of LDP
preparation?: N/A

Question 2a — Do you consider the proposed Timetable for the preparation of the LDP to be
realistic and deliverable?: N/A

Question 3a — Does the CIS make it clear how and when you or your organisation can get
involved?: N/A

Question 3b — Do you consider that the methods of involvement identified within the CIS are
appropriate?: N/A

Question 3¢ — Do you consider that the appropriate key stakeholders have been identified to
achieve a representative Plan?: N/A

Question 3d — Do you consider that the appropriate Consultation Bodies and multi-agency
partnerships have been identified?: N/A

Question 4 - Additional Comments/suggestions:
The respondent agrees with the proposed ‘proposed schedule of works’ as set out
within the draft DA.

The respondent has no further comments.

Officer Response
Noted and welcomed.

Recommendation
No change to the Delivery Agreement.

Tudalen 95



10 Appendix 1: Report on Draft Delivery Agreement

Representation No: DA/008

Name: S Morris
Organisation (where applicable): Pembrokeshire County Council

Question 1a — Do you consider the content and purpose of the DA to be Clear and
Understandable?: N/A

Question 1b — Does the draft DA make clear the appropriate steps/stages in respect of LDP
preparation?: N/A

Question 2a — Do you consider the proposed Timetable for the preparation of the LDP to be
realistic and deliverable?: N/A

Question 3a — Does the CIS make it clear how and when you or your organisation can get
involved?: N/A

Question 3b — Do you consider that the methods of involvement identified within the CIS are
appropriate?: N/A

Question 3¢ — Do you consider that the appropriate key stakeholders have been identified to
achieve a representative Plan?: N/A

Question 3d — Do you consider that the appropriate Consultation Bodies and multi-agency
partnerships have been identified?: N/A

Question 4 - Additional Comments/suggestions:

The respondent notes that the proposals are for a replacement Plan which will run to
2033, which corresponds with that for the proposed Pembrokeshire replacement LDP.
Comments that this is helpful, particularly in the context of the letter from Lesley
Griffiths AM, which proposed a Joint LDP for Carmarthenshire, Pembrokeshire and
Ceredigion. Although the three authorities are currently moving ahead with proposals
for single-authority LDP reviews, it is wise for each to align its review procedures and
co-ordinate evidence preparation wherever possible.

Paragraphs 1.8.2 and 1.8.3 set out Carmarthenshire’s position on Joint Plans and on
the desirability of collaborative / collective work with neighbour Local Planning
Authorities, wherever opportunities allow. The respondent supports
Carmarthenshire’s views in this respect.

The respondent supports their inclusion as a member of the Key Stakeholder Forum
and its listing as a Specific Consultation body for the LDP. The respondent highlights
that it will be pleased to contribute throughout the process of preparing the LDP.

In referencing Table 2 the respondent notes that the timescale is set out as being
September 2018 — June 2020. Should this read September 2019 — 20207

Officer Response
Support Welcomed.
The comments in relation to collaboration and co-ordination of evidence is welcomed.

Recommendation

Amend table 2 of the Delivery Agreement as appropriate (reference should also be
had to the proposed amendments set out within Appendix 2 of this report).

Tudalen 96



11 Appendix 1: Report on Draft Delivery Agreement

Representation No: DA/009

Name: E W Evans
Organisation (where applicable): Llangennech Community Council

Question 1a — Do you consider the content and purpose of the DA to be Clear and
Understandable?: N/A

Question 1b — Does the draft DA make clear the appropriate steps/stages in respect of LDP
preparation?: N/A

Question 2a — Do you consider the proposed Timetable for the preparation of the LDP to be
realistic and deliverable?: N/A

Question 3a — Does the CIS make it clear how and when you or your organisation can get
involved?: N/A

Question 3b — Do you consider that the methods of involvement identified within the CIS are
appropriate?: N/A

Question 3¢ — Do you consider that the appropriate key stakeholders have been identified to
achieve a representative Plan?: N/A

Question 3d — Do you consider that the appropriate Consultation Bodies and multi-agency
partnerships have been identified?: N/A

Question 4 - Additional Comments/suggestions:

The respondent makes a general comment in respect of the Revised LDP highlighting
that they have resolved to oppose any further development in Llangennech. Further
comments/observations will be made during stages of the preparation of the Revised
LDP.

Officer Response
Noted

Recommendation
No change to the Delivery Agreement.

Tudalen 97



12 Appendix 1: Report on Draft Delivery Agreement

Representation No: DA/010
Name: Not identified

Organisation (where applicable): Not identified

Question 1a — Do you consider the content and purpose of the DA to be Clear and
Understandable?: YES

Question 1b — Does the draft DA make clear the appropriate steps/stages in respect of LDP
preparation?: N/A

Question 2a — Do you consider the proposed Timetable for the preparation of the LDP to be
realistic and deliverable?: N/A

Question 3a — Does the CIS make it clear how and when you or your organisation can get
involved?: N/A

Question 3b — Do you consider that the methods of involvement identified within the CIS are
appropriate?: N/A

Question 3¢ — Do you consider that the appropriate key stakeholders have been identified to
achieve a representative Plan?: N/A

Question 3d — Do you consider that the appropriate Consultation Bodies and multi-agency
partnerships have been identified?: N/A

Question 4 - Additional Comments/suggestions:
None
Officer Response

Noted

Recommendation
No change to the Delivery Agreement.

Tudalen 98



1 Appendix 2: Draft Delivery Agreement

Appendix 2

Draft Delivery Agreement - Officer Recommended Changes

The following appendix considers and recommends further amendments where they are
required to address matters of accuracy and implementation, and where they offer clarity

and enhance their meaning and understanding.

The following also sets out further recommended amendments to the timetable arising from
the receipt of the letter from the Cabinet Secretary for Energy, Planning and Rural Affairs,
Lesley Griffiths AM dated the 29" March 2018. This letter followed the earlier invitation to
Carmarthenshire, Pembrokeshire and Ceredigion County Councils to give consideration to

the preparation of a Joint Revised Local Development Plan (LDP).

In referencing the above letter, regard has been had to the requirement for a prescribed
timetable of no more than 3.5 years from formal commencement of the process, with
allowance for a single slippage period of 3 months. It should be noted that the Cabinet
Secretary makes it clear that she is not minded to agree to any further extensions to the

Delivery Agreement (DA) beyond the initial agreement.

Chapter 2. The Timetable

In light of the reference to the Cabinet Secretary’s letter above, and the requirement to
amend the Revised LDP Timetable to reflect no more than a 3.5 year preparatory process, it
is consequently recommended that the timetable for Plan preparation be revised as set out
in figure 1 below. It should be noted the 3.5 year preparatory process commences with the

WG approval of the DA, anticipated as July 2018.

It should be noted that this will form the amended Appendix 1 within the final DA.

It is further recommended that consequential changes be made as required within the
relevant sections of the DA to reflect the changes to the timetable (notably Table 2 —
Timetable — Key Stages and Appendix 2: Timetable and Community Involvement).

For ease of reference, the main changes include:

¢ Extension to the Candidate Site Stage (and consequential changes to the publication

of Candidate Sites) as outlined in the main report.

Tudalen 99



2 Appendix 2: Draft Delivery Agreement

e Removal of the Focused Changes Stage from the timetable. In this respect the
Focused Changes are not a statutory part of the Plan making process, indeed they
may not in themselves be required. The inclusion of this stage within the Draft DA
was in the interests of completeness. It is also noted that the three month slippage
period identified above would suffice in terms of any requirement to undertake
focused changes.

e Removal of the initial stages which preceded the consultation on the Draft DA from
the timetable.

¢ Amendments to timetable to reflect the amended adoption date.

e Rationalisation of the Examination period, including a recognition of the August
recess in scheduling the proposed adoption date for the Revised LDP.

o Consequential amended date for the Adoption of the Revised Carmarthenshire LDP

November/December 2021.

It should be noted that no representations were received which directly to the content of the
DA timetable.

Paragraph 2.2.7
Recommended that the list in relation to the staff resources set out within para 2.2.7 be
amended to read as follows. This reflects the Council’'s commitment to resourcing the

preparation of the Revised LDP:

‘LDP Team

Head of Planning (5%)

Forward Planning Manager (60%)

Forward Planning Officer (x5) (70%)

Sustainability and Ecology Support Officer (Policy) (70%)
Monitoring and Implementation Officer (30%)

Graphic Design and Technical Support Officer (70%)
Technical Assistant (75%)

Forward Planning Assistant (76%)’

Tudalen 100



TOT uarepny

3 Appendix 2: Draft Delivery Agreement
Figure 1 — Revised Timetable

2018 2019 2020 2021
F{MA[M[J |J |JA|IS|O[N|D]J [F |M|A[M]|J [J |A|S[OIN|D|J |F |[M|A|M[J |J |A[S|O|N[D]|J [F [M|A[M]J |J [A|S|O|N|D

Key Stage 1: Delivery Agreement (Regs 5-10)
Prepare and Report draft DA to Council ..

Publication of Draft DA for consultation

Consideration and reporting of consultations received

Submission to WG for approval

Publication of approved DA following WG approval
Key Stage 2: Pre-Deposit Preparation and Participation (Reg 14)

Review and develop baseline information and evidence

Review and develop Strategic Options, Issues & Objectives
SA Stage A: Prepare SA (SEA) Scoping Report
Consultation on the SA (SEA) Scoping Report

Assessment, consideration and reporting (as appropriate) of
representations received on the SA (SEA) Scoping Report

Publication of Candidate Site Register .......

Key Stage 3: Pre-Deposit Consultation (Regs 15, 16, 16A)
Prepare and report SA (SEA) initial / interim report

Invitation for submission of Candidate Sites

Prepare and report HRA Screening Report

Prepare and report the Preferred Strategy

Publication and consultation of Preferred Strategy (inc Strategic
Sites, where applicable)

Publication and consultation of the initial / interim SA (SEA) Report
and HRA Screening Report

Assessment, consideration and reporting of responses received on
the Preferred Strategy, initial SA (SEA) and HRA Screening Report

Publication of Initial Consultation Report

Key Stage 4: Deposit Consultation (Reg 17-21)
Preparation of Deposit Plan, HRA Report and SA (SEA) Report
Reporting of draft Deposit LDP, SA (SEA) and HRA

Publication of draft Deposit LDP, SA (SEA) and HRA for consultation

Assessment and Consideration of the representations received in
respect of draft Deposit Plan, SA(SEA) Report and HRA Report

Reporting of representations of the Deposit LDP, SA (SEA) Report and
HRA Report

Key Stage 5

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII HEENENEEEEEEEEEEN
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII L] ]
e age
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII HEEE
e age
IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Key Stage 9
Monitoring and Review (Reg 37)




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Eitem Rhif 9

Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau
2018

Canllawiau Cynllunio Atodol Drafft — Ynni Gwynt ac Ynni’r Haul
Cynllun Datblygu Lleol Sir Gaerfyrddin

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt:

e | ystyried y Canllawiau Cynllunio Atodol o fewn yr adroddiad ar gyfer ymgynghoriad
cyhoeddus o 6 wythnos

¢ | nodi cyhoeddiad y Canllawiau o ran Effaith Gronnol Tyrbinau Gwynt ar
Amwynder Gweledol a Thirwedd a'r Astudiaethau Sensitifrwydd a Chynhwysedd
Tirwedd fel dogfennau ategol i'r Canllawiau Cynllunio Atodol a'r Cynllun Datblygu Lleol
Diwygiedig sydd ar ddod.

Rhesymau:

e Adlewyrchu'r gofynion a'r ymrwymiadau a nodir yn y Cynllun Datblygu Lleol
Mabwysiedig

e Cefnogi gweithredu polisiau a darpariaethau'r Cynllun Datblygu Lleol Mabwysiedig a
darparu canllawiau yn eu cylch a helaethu arnynt

Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Bwrdd Gweithredol / Cyngor er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad: OES

AELOD BWRDD GWEITHREDOL SY’N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:- Cyng. Mair Stephens
Y Gyfarwyddiaeth Swyddi: Rhifau ffén 01267 228659

Amgylchedd Cyfeiriadau e-bost:

Enw Pennaeth y

Gwasanaeth: _
Pennaeth Cynllunio LQuelch@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Llinos Quelch IRLIewelyn@carmarthenshire.gov

Awdur yr Adroddiad: _ -Uk
Rheolwr Blaen-gynllunio

lan R Llewelyn

EICH CYNGORarleinamdani

Carmarthenshire . .
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

R
omeor Sir Gar X www.sirgar.llyw.cymru —TUdalen 103


mailto:LQuelch@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:IRLlewelyn@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:IRLlewelyn@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Community Scrutiny
11th May 2018

Draft Supplementary Planning Guidance — Wind and Solar Energy
Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

PN
Tudalen 104 onsor Sir Gar X www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

1. Brief Summary of Purpose of Report.

This Report presents the Draft Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) on Wind and Solar Energy
prepared to support and elaborate on the policies and provisions of the adopted Carmarthenshire
Local Development Plan (LDP). The aim of the report is to seek authorisation to undertake formal
public consultation on the SPG and then formally adopt it, reflecting the commitment set out within the
LDP, particularly in Appendix 3.

It should be noted that it is not the purpose of the SPG to devolve policy matters from the LDP, SPGs
set out more detailed guidance on how the policies of the LDP will be applied.

2. Background

The Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan (LDP) was adopted by Full Council on the 10"
December 2014 along with 8 thematic and site specific SPG prepared concurrent to the LDP. Since
this date, the LDP has been the development plan for the County (excluding that area contained within
the Brecon Beacons National Park). The LDP is one of the statutory high level strategies which must
be prepared and approved for the County, setting out in appropriate land-use terms, the priorities
expressed in the Integrated Community Strategy.

In recognising the role of SPG in supporting the Plan, and as a means of providing more detailed
policy guidance, Appendix 3 of the LDP sets out a series of proposed SPG for preparation during the
Plan period through to 2021. These SPG, range from thematic policy guidance through to site-specific
Development Briefs. Each of these is accompanied by an indicative date for their publication and
represents commitments within the Plan. The preparation of the SPG, are key indicators in the LDP
Monitoring Framework and will be subject to reporting to the Welsh Government through the Annual
Monitoring Report (AMR).

3. Draft Wind and Solar Energy SPG
The appended Draft SPG provides further, more detailed guidance for facilitating the development of
renewable energy schemes, focusing in particular on wind and solar energy. The SPG is generally
split over three sections: general guidance; onshore wind; and solar. The SPG is not applicable to
wind farm schemes located within the two Strategic Search Areas within the County (SSA G: Brechfa
Forest and SSA E: Pontardawe) as guidance for renewable energy schemes within the Strategic
Search Areas is covered within Technical Advice Note 8.

General guidance is provided for onshore wind and solar energy applications on issues such as pre-
applications, Environmental Impact Assessment, Habitat Regulations Assessment, grid connection,
community energy, community benefits, agricultural land, ecological considerations, mitigation and

EICH CYNGORarleinamdani

Carmarthenshire . .
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



enhancement.

The Onshore Wind section includes issues such as landscape, cumulative impact, design
considerations, noise, ecological considerations, historic environment and highways. The Solar section
includes issues such as landscape, design considerations, noise, cumulative impact, ecology, historic
environment and highways.

Two studies are referred to in the guidance as providing more detailed information on the
consideration of landscape aspects of the SPG, which are: the Pembrokeshire and Carmarthenshire:
Cumulative Impact of Wind Turbines on Landscape and Visual Amenity Guidance; and the Landscape
Sensitivity and Capacity Studies for Wind Turbine Developments and Solar PV Developments. These
Studies are not intended for public consultation, they have been commissioned by the Council to
provide support to these policy areas.

4. Supporting Studies
The following two studies have been produced and support the content of the SPG:

¢ Pembrokeshire and Carmarthenshire: Cumulative Impact of Wind Turbines on Landscape and
Visual Amenity Guidance
e Landscape Capacity and Sensitivity Studies

The content of the above studies are available for inspection from Planning Services and will
be formally published to coincide with the consultation on the SPG.

Pembrokeshire and Carmarthenshire: Cumulative Impact of Wind Turbines on Landscape and
Visual Amenity Guidance - This guidance provides good practice guidance for applicants,
developers, consultees and Council officers in the Pembrokeshire County Council planning area. The
guidance was commissioned by this Council in conjunction with Pembrokeshire Coast National Park
Authority and Pembrokeshire County Council and was published in 2013.

Landscape Capacity and Sensitivity Studies - The Studies have been commissioned and
completed by Anthony Jellard Associates. The Studies address the landscape capacity and sensitivity
of Carmarthenshire to: -

e Wind turbine development

e Solar PV development

The overall purpose of the studies is to provide guidance to inform the appropriate design and siting of
wind turbine development through setting out a baseline assessment of landscape and visual
sensitivity and capacity in relation to different development classifications.

The studies will form a useful tool for the Local Planning Authority’s Planning Policy and Development
Management Officers in the assessment of the landscape and visual effects of proposals for
windturbine and Solar PV development. The studies are intended to provide a baseline to help achieve
a context for consistent and robust decision making, by both officers and elected members, when
considering planning applications and as guidance for developers.

The studies use a common methodology deriving data from LANDMAP aspect datasets, to provide
baseline assessments of landscape and visual susceptibility and landscape value through 80 distinct
landscape units covering the entire authority area. Assessments of the sensitivity of each landscape
unit to different development classifications, primarily based upon scale, are derived from the baseline
assessments. The studies also provide landscape unit specific comments on landscape capacity and
guidance for siting, and overall guidance on design, site context, and siting.

EICH CYNGORarleinamdani

Carmarthenshire . .
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

PN
omeor Sir Gar X www.sirgar.llyw.cymru —TUdalen 105



5. Next Steps

The Draft SPG will be published for formal public consultation for a six week period, during this time
comments will be invited from a range of organisations, interested parties and members of the public.
There is no identified requirement in relation to the length of any consultation in respect of SPG within
National Planning Policy and statutory regulations. However, the use of the six week period proposed

within this report would ensure that any consultation is consistent in length with the statutory consultation
period for an LDP set out within Local Development Plan Regulations.

The Draft SPG and the representations received will be reported back to a future meeting of Council
for consideration prior to its formal adoption.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES

PR EICH CYNGOR arleinamdani
Tudalen 106 eeer Sir G*!") www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire

YOUR counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

(\ <anl N
L) o
Uty Cow™”



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors
| Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated
with this report :

Signed: L Quelch Head of Planning

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

YES NONE YES NONE NONE NONE NONE

Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities

The provisions of the SPG are compatible with Carmarthenshire County Councils well-being
objectives and notably, Objective 12: Looking after the environment now and for the future. It also
aligns with the national Well-being Goals set out within the Well-being of Future Generations Act
2015 in relation to the creation of ‘A Prosperous Wales’.

The Draft SPG is an elaboration on the policies and provisions of the Local Development Plan.
Through land use planning policies, the LDP seeks to promote the principles of sustainability and
sustainable development by facilitating the creation of communities and local economies which are
more sustainable providing access to local services and facilities and reducing the need to travel.

The integration of sustainability as part of the preparation of the LDP is reflected in the undertaking
of a Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic Environmental Assessment reflecting national and
international legislative requirements. This iterative approach ensures sustainability is at the heart
of the Plan and that it is reflective of the requirements emanating from the Wellbeing and Future
Generations Act 2015 and the emerging Carmarthenshire Well-being Plan.

Finance

Financial costs (including production of the final SPG, translation, publicity etc.) are covered
through the financial provisions in place - including reserves.

o™ EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
omser Sir Gar Yo www sirgarllyw.cymru Tudalen 107

Carmarthenshire i i
> YOUR couNnciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Q, 22N
Oy, o
Uty Cow™”



PN
Tudalen 108 onsor Sir Gar X www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: L Quelch Head of Planning

1. Scrutiny Committee
11t May 2018 — Community Scrutiny.

2.Local Member(s)
Members will be consulted as part of the SPG’s preparatory process.

3.Community / Town Council

Community and Town Councils represent a statutory consultee within the LDP process and
will be consulted as part of the SPG’s preparatory process.

4 Relevant Partners

Statutory consultees, the public, interested parties and key agencies and bodies will consulted
as appropriate.

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations

Contributions have been sought from relevant internal consultees to ensure the draft SPG
reflect the specialist and detailed nature of their subject matter.

EICH CYNGORarleinamdani

Carmarthenshire . .
o <2 YOUR counciLdoitonline
“nty Cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Title of Document

Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Carmarthenshire Local
Development Plan

http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/coun
cil-services/planning/planning-policy/local-
development-plan-2006-2021/

Annual Monitoring
Reports

http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/coun
cil-services/planning/planning-policy/annual-
monitoring-report-amr/

Pembrokeshire and
Carmarthenshire:
Cumulative Impact of
Wind Turbines on
Landscape and Visual
Amenity Guidance

Available to view at Planning Services with formal
publication to coincide with the consultation on the
SPG (details to be confirmed).

Landscape Capacity
and Sensitivity
Studies

Available to view at Planning Services with formal
publication to coincide with the consultation on the
SPG (details to be confirmed).

P N
omeor Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire

EICH CYNGORaArleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

YOUR counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

(\ <anl N
Oy, o
Uty Cow™”

Tudalen 109


http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/planning-policy/local-development-plan-2006-2021/
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/planning-policy/local-development-plan-2006-2021/
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/planning-policy/local-development-plan-2006-2021/
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/planning-policy/annual-monitoring-report-amr/
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/planning-policy/annual-monitoring-report-amr/
http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-services/planning/planning-policy/annual-monitoring-report-amr/

Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Draft Supplementary Planning Guidance

q.',‘-;,A’;Q' :-}r:.:
EY3ismyaty

RN T
K e ~.

Py -

Carmarthenshire Local omsor Sir GAr B

Carmarthenshire

Development Plan Tud



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

Contents

1. Introduction
2. Background

3. Planning Policy Context
3.1 Planning Policy Wales
3.2 Technical Advice Note 8
3.3 Practice Guidance: Planning Implications of Renewable and Low Carbon Energy
3.4 Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

4, General Guidance
4.1 Introduction
4.2 Pre-application advice
4.3 Pre-application consultation
4.4 Environmental Impact Assessment
4.5 Habitat Regulations Assessment
4.6 Grid Connection
4.7 Community Energy
4.8 Community Benefits
4.9 Agricultural Land
4.10 Ecological Considerations
4.11 Mitigation and Enhancement

5. Onshore Wind
5.1 Context
5.2 Strategic Search Areas
5.3 Wind Turbine Developments outside Strategic Search Areas
5.4 Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity
5.5 Landscape and Visual Impacts
5.6 Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA)
5.7 Cumulative Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment
5.8 Direct Landscape Impacts
5.9 Landscape Compensation and Biodiversity Enhancement Scheme
5.10 Noise
5.11 Ecological Considerations
5.12 Historic Environment and Archaeological Settings
5.13 Residential Amenity, Aviation and Electromagnetic Transmissions and Telecommunications
Interference
5.14 Safety, Proximity to Roads, Railways, Buildings and Public Open Spaces and Aviation Safety
(Including Topple Distance)
5.15 Public Accessibility / Rights of Ways
5.16 Highways
5.17 Drainage / Flood Management / Water Quality
5.18 Decommissioning / Site Restoration / Duration of Planning Permission
5.19 Site Security / Safety / Lighting

Tl-tdﬁlﬁlmzl Jnlgjlar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

6. Solar
6.1 Context
6.2 Types of Technology
6.3 Policy Context
6.4 Roof Mounted
6.5 Ground Mounted Panels
6.6 landscape Sensitivity and Capacity
6.7 Landscape and Visual Impacts
6.8 Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA)
6.9 Cumulative Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment
6.10 Noise
6.11 Cumulative Impact
6.12 Ecology
6.13 Historic Environment
6.14 Drainage / Flood Management / Water Quality
6.15 Rights of Way
6.16 Glint and Glare
6.17 Site Security / Safety / Lighting
6.18 Mitigation
6.19 Construction Period
6.20 Highways

Appendix A: Guidance Document for Assessing Noise Impact from Wind Turbine(s)

Appendix B: European Sites

Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance

Tudalen 1213



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

1. Introduction

1.1 This Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) has been prepared to support the Renewable Energy
policies contained within the Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan (LDP). This SPG provides further,
more detailed guidance for facilitating the development of renewable energy schemes, focusing in particular
on wind and solar energy. It is aimed at developers, local communities, landowners and community councils
and seeks to provide a better understanding of how planning applications for wind and solar energy may be
assessed by the Council. This SPG should be read in conjunction with the Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity
Studies for Wind Turbine Development and Solar PV Development and the Pembrokeshire and
Carmarthenshire: Cumulative Impact of Wind Turbines on Landscape and Visual Amenity Guidance.

1.2 This draft SPG will be subject to a consultation exercise conducted in a manner consistent with that
set out within the Delivery Agreement for the LDP. Following consideration of the responses received, the
SPG will be adopted and used in the consideration of renewable energy proposals. The SPG will be a material
consideration in the determination of planning applications.

1.3 Reference is made in this SPG to a number of documents and legislation which may be superseded

by new or amended documents following publication, where this is the case regard should be given to the
most up-to-date and relevant guidance.

2. Background

2.1 Under European Union targets?, the UK has a legally-binding target to generate 15% of its energy
from renewable sources by 2020. The UK Renewable Energy Strategy? sets out the UK Government’s vision
to ensure that this target is met. The Welsh Government is committed to playing its part by delivering an
energy programme which contributes to reducing carbon emissions as part of its approach to tackling
climate change®. Current government policy and guidance is centred on reducing CO2 emissions in an
attempt to slow down climate change, and producing electricity from renewable sources is considered to be
part of the solution. The planning system has an important role to play in supporting, encouraging and
facilitating renewable energy schemes.

2.2 The Council supports the development of renewable energy schemes within the County and seeks to
ensure that they are located in the most suitable locations. The County is well located in terms of tapping
into renewable sources of energy, and the number of applications for such schemes, in particular for wind
and solar, have increased in recent years. The County’s upper areas produce a consistent and high wind-
speed, making these areas attractive for wind turbines, whilst the County offers many other opportunities
for other technologies, particularly solar.

2.3 Brechfa Forest has been designated a Strategic Search Area (SSA) in Technical Advice Note 8 (TAN 8),
for large-scale wind power. In addition to Brechfa, the County also has a small part of the Pontardawe
Strategic Search Area within its area. This SPG is not applicable to wind farm schemes located within
Strategic Search Areas.

1 EU Renewable Energy Directive
2 https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/228866/7686.pdf
3Planning Policy Wales Edition 9 (Section 12.8.1)

Tl-tdﬁlﬁlmzl Jnléljlar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

2.4 The Council is responsible for determining planning applications for renewable energy schemes of
less than 10MW, excluding those smaller householder schemes that are classed as “permitted development”
which do not require planning permission. Permitted Development rights are subject to change over time,
the latest guidance is outlined on the Welsh Government* website.

2.5 Detailed guidance for Renewable Energy schemes is provided by the Welsh Government their
documents: “Practice Guidance — Planning Implications of Renewable and Low Carbon Energy>” (2011) and
“Planning for renewable and Low Carbon Energy: A Toolkit for Planners” (2015)°®. It is recommended that
developers and householders refer to this document for further, detailed guidance on technologies and
general policy.

2.6 Whilst the Council is, in principle supportive of renewable energy developments, it is recognised that
they can, in some instances have a variety of impacts. Appropriate weight will be given to local opinions and
consultation responses during the planning process. This SPG provides information to applicants and
interested parties as to the Council’s expectations and key considerations for planning renewable energy
schemes. This guidance does not set out specific locations suitable for renewable energy technologies. The
Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity Study should be consulted when considering the siting of schemes.

3. Planning Policy Context

3.1 Planning Policy Wales (PPW)

3.1.1 PPW, which is supplemented by Technical Advice Notes sets out the land use policies of the Welsh
Government. PPW seeks to ensure that planning policy on all levels work towards delivering UK energy
targets. The latest version of PPW is edition 9 which was published in November 2016. It states that the
Welsh Government aim “to secure an appropriate mix of energy provision for Wales which maximises
benefits to our economy and communities, whilst minimising potential environmental and social impacts”
(para 12.8.6).

3.1.2 Adefinition of renewable energy is provided in para 12.8.7: “renewable energy is the term used to
cover those sources of energy, other than fossil fuels or nuclear fuel, which are continuously and sustainably
available in our environment. This includes wind, water, solar, geothermal energy and plant material
(biomass). These sources of energy can be utilised to generate power, heat, fuels (for transport) and cooling
through a range of renewable energy technologies such as solar panels and wind turbines.”

3.1.3 The responsibilities for Local Planning Authorities are set out in paragraphs 12.8.9 and 12.8.10.
There is an emphasis of facilitating the development of all forms of renewable and low carbon energy to
move towards a low carbon economy.

12.8.9 Local planning authorities should facilitate the development of all forms of renewable and low carbon
energy to move towards a low carbon economy (see 4.4.3) to help to tackle the causes of climate change (see
4.7.3). Specifically, they should make positive provision by:

— considering the contribution that their area can make towards developing and facilitating renewable and
low carbon energy, and ensuring that development plan policies enable this contribution to be delivered;

— ensuring that development management decisions are consistent with national and international climate
change obligations, including contributions to renewable energy targets and aspirations;

4 http://gov.wales/topics/planning/policy/guidanceandleaflets/householder-permitted-development-rights/?lang=en
5 http://gov.wales/topics/planning/policy/guidanceandleaflets/planningimplications/?lang=en
6 http://gov.wales/docs/desh/publications/151021renewable-energy-toolkit-en.pdf

4
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 115



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

— recognising the environmental, economic and social opportunities that the use of renewable energy
resources can make to planning for sustainability (see Chapter 4); and

— ensuring that all new publicly financed or supported buildings set exemplary standards for energy
conservation and renewable energy production.

12.8.10 At the same time, local planning authorities should:

— ensure that international and national statutory obligations to protect designated areas, species and
habitats and the historic environment are observed;

— ensure that mitigation measures are required for potential detrimental effects on local communities
whilst ensuring that the potential impact on economic viability is given full consideration; and

— encourage the optimisation of renewable and low carbon energy in new development to facilitate the
move towards zero carbon buildings (see 4.11 and 4.12).

3.1.4 PPW acknowledges that wind energy continues to offer the greatest potential for delivering
renewable energy in the short to medium term. There is however, a recognition that the “introduction of
new, often very large structures for onshore wind needs careful consideration to avoid and where possible
minimise their impact” (para 12.8.12). Technical Advice Note (TAN) 8: Planning for Renewable Energy (2005)
identifies the most appropriate location where large turbines should be sited. The TAN identifies areas
known as Strategic Search Areas (SSAs) which will accommodate large-scale (generating over 25MW) wind
energy developments.

3.1.5 PPW contains a number of key points to be considered by Local Planning Authorities in the
determination of applications and by applicants when designing schemes:

e LPAs should facilitate grid network infrastructure to support SSAs (para 12.8.14).

e The development of large wind farms or other large scale renewable and low carbon energy
schemes will not generally be appropriate in internationally or nationally designated areas and sites
(para 12.8.14).

e The contribution the scheme would have in terms of delivering renewable energy to meeting
national targets and any environmental, social and economic benefits the scheme would bring (para
12.10.1).

e Impacts should be minimised on local communities to safeguard quality of life for existing and future
generations and any adverse impacts should be avoided, mitigated or appropriately compensated
(para 12.10.1).

e LPAs should consider the likely impact of on existing or other proposed renewable and low carbon
energy developments and sources (para 12.10.4).

e  Community benefits should be sought but should not be treated as a material consideration (para
12.10.5).

e  Planning conditions or obligations should be used to mitigate impacts and secure the benefits and
opportunities arising from renewable energy schemes (para 12.10.6).

e  OQOutside Strategic Search Areas, the implicit objective is to maintain the landscape character, whilst
within and immediately adjacent to the SSAs, the implicit objective is to accept landscape change.
(para 8.4)

3.2 Technical Advice Note 8 (TAN 8)

3.2.1 Supplementing the guidance provided by PPW, TAN 8, published in 2005 provides guidance for the
land use planning considerations of renewable energy. It is acknowledged in the TAN that wind power offers
the greatest potential for achieving these targets, and as such seven Strategic Search Areas (SSAs), which are
broad-brush areas suitable for large scale wind power proposals have been identified. SSA Area G: Brechfa
Forest and a small part of Area E: Pontardawe fall within the County’s boundary. Indicative targets for each

TUQJM\Q.EH l\lﬁ)lar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

SSA are set out in the TAN, but have since been revised. The Minister for Environment and Sustainable
Development in his letter dated July 2011 set out the maximum capacities for each SSA. For SSA G: Brechfa
Forest, the capacity set was 132MW.

3.2.2 Key points from the TAN to be considered by Local Planning Authorities in the determination of
applications and by applicants in designing schemes include:

e Most areas outside SSAs should remain free of large wind power schemes. LPAs should consider the
cumulative impact of small schemes in areas outside of the SSAs and establish suitable criteria for
separation distances from each other and from the perimeter of existing wind power schemes or the
SSAs (para 2.13).

e Extending or re-powering existing wind farms outside SSAs should be encouraged (para 2.14).

e Some community benefits can be justified as mitigation, while others may be offered not directly
through the planning process (para 2.16).

e The TAN describes a number of other renewable energy processes and their planning considerations
including: Anaerobic Digestion (biomass), Bio-fuels for Vehicles, Combined Heat and Power,
Community (or District) Heating, Energy from Waste, Fuel Crops (including Woodfuel), Hydro-Power,
Methane, Solar Thermal and Solar Photo-Voltaic (PV).

e Appropriate conditions for decommissioning wind farms or turbines, their restoration and proposed
after-use of the site should be used (para 6.4).

3.3 Practice Guidance: Planning Implications of Renewable and Low Carbon
Energy (2011)

3.3.1 This document was published after TAN 8, and provides further guidance to assist Local Planning
Authorities in determining applications for renewable energy development. It provides detailed guidance on
a range of technologies including: wind; biomass; anaerobic digestion; biofuels; small scale hydro; solar —
building integrated and solar PV arrays; ground, water and air source heat pumps; geothermal; fuel cells;
combined heat and power and combined cooling heat and power; district heating; and waste heat.

3.4 Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

3.4.1 Adopted in December 2014, the Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan (LDP) sets out the
Authority’s policies and proposals for future development and use of land. Whilst the Plan should be read as
a whole, there are a number of specific policies that apply to renewable energy proposals. This SPG is
designed to provide further guidance and detail to support and implement these policies.

3.4.2 The LDP contains four dominant policies specific to renewable energy proposals, Policy SP11 is a
Strategic policy, while Policies RE1, RE2 & RE3 are detailed policies.

SP11 Renewable Energy & Energy Efficiency

Development proposals which incorporate energy efficiency measures and renewable energy production
technologies will be supported in areas where the environmental and cumulative impacts can be addressed
satisfactorily. Such developments will not cause demonstrable harm to residential amenity and will be
acceptable within the landscape. Each proposal will be assessed on a case by case basis.

Large scale wind farms will only be permitted within Strategic Search Areas.

Policy RE1 Large Scale Wind Power

Large scale wind farms of 25MW and over will be permitted provided that the following criteria can be met:

a) The development is located within a Strategic Search Area and will contribute to meeting the
indicative generating capacity within the Area;

b)  The development will not have an unacceptable impact on visual amenity or landscape character
through: the number, scale, size, design and siting of turbines and associated infrastructure;

6
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 117



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

c)
d)
e)

f)

g)

h)

j)

The development will not result in demonstrable harm to statutorily protected sites and species, and
habitats and species identified in the Local Biodiversity Action Plan;

The development will not have an unacceptable impact upon areas designated for their landscape
value;

The development will not result in significant harm to the safety or amenity of sensitive receptors and
will not have an unacceptable impact on roads, rail or aviation safety;

The development will not result in unacceptable loss of public accessibility to the area; existing
footpaths, mountain bike trails and equestrian trails will be safeguarded from development with no
permanent loss to their length and quality;

The development will not result in unacceptable electromagnetic interference to communications
installations, radar or air traffic control systems, emergency services communications, or other
telecommunication systems;

The development will not have unacceptable cumulative impacts in relation to existing wind turbines
and those which have permission;

Turbines and associated infrastructure will, at the end of the operational life of the facility, be
removed and an appropriate land restoration and aftercare scheme agreed,;

Proposals will not cause an unreasonable risk or nuisance to, and impact upon the amenities of,
nearby residents or other members of the public.

Policy RE2 Local, Community and Small Wind Farms

k)

1)

m)

Local, Community and Small wind farms or individual turbines will be permitted provided the following
criteria can be met in full:

The development will not have an unacceptable impact on visual amenity or landscape character
through: the number, scale, size, design and siting of turbines and associated infrastructure;

The development will not have an unacceptable cumulative impact in relation to existing wind
turbines and other renewable energy installations and those which have permission;

The siting, design, layout and materials used should be sympathetic to the characteristics of the land-
form, contours and existing features of the landscape;

The development would not cause demonstrable harm to statutorily protected species, and habitats
and species identified in the Local Biodiversity Action Plan;

Turbines and their associated structures will not be sited in, or impact upon archaeological resources,
the setting and integrity of Conservation Areas, Listed Buildings or other areas of historical value;
Proposals will not cause an unreasonable risk or nuisance to, and impact upon the amenities of,
nearby residents or other members of the public;

No loss of public accessibility to the area, and existing bridleways and footpaths will be safeguarded
from development with no permanent loss to their length and quality;

Turbines and associated infrastructure will, at the end of the operational life of the facility, be
removed and an appropriate land restoration and aftercare scheme agreed;

The development will not result in significant harm to the safety or amenity of sensitive receptors and
will not have an unacceptable impact on roads, rail or aviation safety;

The development will not result in unacceptable electromagnetic interference to communications
installations; radar or air traffic control systems; emergency services communications; or other
telecommunication systems.

Policy RE3 Non-wind Renewable Energy Installations

Proposals within Development Limits

Proposals for non-wind renewable energy installations will be permitted within defined Development Limits,
provided they do not cause an unacceptable impact to the character of the local area and to the amenity of
adjacent land, properties, residents and the community. Proposals will not be permitted if they negatively
impact upon archaeology or the setting and integrity of Conservation Areas, Listed Buildings or other
features or areas of historical value.

TLﬂjﬁlﬁuﬁh g-nlaﬂar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

Proposals outside Development Limits

Proposals for small scale non-wind renewable energy installations outside defined Development Limits are
required to satisfactorily justify the need to be sited in such a location. Such proposals should be sited in
close proximity to existing buildings and structures and will not cause demonstrable harm to the landscape.
Large scale schemes located outside defined Development Limits may be permitted in exceptional
circumstances, where there is an overriding need for the scheme which can be satisfactorily justified, and
the development will not cause demonstrable harm to the landscape.

Proposals that would cause demonstrable harm to the landscape, visual impact, noise, ecology, or ground
and surface water as a result of the cumulative effect of renewable energy installations will not be
permitted.

3.4.3 In addition to these dominant policies, there are a number of additional policies which will also be
considered as being key to the determination of planning applications. These are:

e GP1: Sustainability and High Quality Design;

e GP3: Planning Obligations;

e  GP4: Infrastructure and New Development;

TR3: Highways in Developments — Design Considerations;

EQ1: Protection of Buildings, Landscapes and Features of Historic Importance;
EQ3: Regional and Local Designations;

EQ4: Biodiversity;

e EQ6: Special Landscape Areas;

e EP1: Water Quality and Resources;

e EP2: Pollution.

4. General Guidance

4.1 Introduction
4.1.1 This section is applicable to both onshore wind development and solar development. More detailed,
specific advice to each of the developments is contained in sections 5 and 6.

4.2 Pre-application advice

4.2.1 Applicants are encouraged to contact the local authority prior to submitting an application in order
to ascertain what information would be required to be submitted as part of the application. The local
authority will be able to offer pre-application advice before a formal application is submitted in order to
guide applicants through the process’, which may minimise delays later in processing the application. A fee
may be applicable for this service, as set out on the Council’s website.

4.2.2 Pre-application discussions can also help the applicant and the planning authority identify areas of
concern about the proposed development so that consideration is given to amending the proposal before
the application is submitted. The advice and guidance provided at the pre-application stage is given in good
faith, however, it does not guarantee or supply a definitive undertaking as to whether the proposal is likely
to be acceptable.

4.3 Pre-application consultation

7 http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/residents/planning/planning-applications/pre-application-
service/#.WCCuoE2b-Uk

8
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 119



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

4.3.1 New legislation came into effect on the 16" March 2016 with the Planning Wales Act 2015 that
requires applicants of “major developments” to submit a pre-application consultation report as part of the
application. “Major developments” are defined in the Development Management Procedure Wales Order
20128 and for the purposes of Renewable Energy schemes includes “development carried out on a site
having an area of 1 hectare or more”. Detailed guidance is set out in Section 17 of the Planning Wales Act
2015 of the requirements for pre-application consultation.

4.4 Environmental Impact Assessment

4.4.1 Certain planning applications require an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA), under the Town
and County Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (England and Wales) Regulations 1999. An EIA
ensures that when assessing planning applications, consideration is given to the environmental effects of
that application. The EIA process aims to prevent, reduce or offset any significant adverse environmental
effects of development proposals, and enhance positive ones.

4.4.2 Developers should ask for a formal opinion from the Council as to whether or not a scheme requires
an EIA, this is known as a screening opinion. A screening opinion is usually sought for wind energy
developments when the development consists of:

e the installation of more than 2 turbines; or

e the hub height of the turbine or other structure on the site exceeds 15m; or

e the site is located within a “sensitive area” as defined by the Regulations.

4.4.3 Solar energy developments are not specifically mentioned within the Regulations, however,
depending on the size of the array and the potential impacts it may be necessary to undertake an EIA and a
screening opinion should be sought.

4.4.4 When requesting a screening opinion, sufficient information should be provided by the applicant,
this should include:
e adescription of the nature and purpose of the development and of its possible effects on the
environment;
e alocation and site plan; and
e details of the power output.

4.4.5 Further details on screening opinions are contained within the EIA Regulations.

4.5 Habitat Regulations Assessment

4.5.1 In addition to an EIA, some proposals may be subject to Habitat Regulations Assessment (HRA).
Under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010, any proposals that are likely to have a
significant effect on designated European sites will be required to be assessed. European sites include
Special Areas of Conservation (SACs), Special Protection Areas (SPAs), and European Offshore Marine Sites
(EOMS), and under Welsh Government policy, Ramsar sites are also treated as being fully designated.
Appendix B lists the European sites within the County.

4.5.2 Ascreening opinion from the LPA through a Test for Likely Significant Effect (TLSE) will be
undertaken where a European designated site may be impacted. If the TLSE reveals that significant adverse
effects are likely, then an Appropriate Assessment will be required. Appropriate Assessments will be
undertaken by the LPA with sufficient information supplied by the applicant to determine whether the
proposal complies with the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. HRA legislation. Where

8 Development Management Procedure Wales Order 2012, Article 2:
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/wsi/2012/801/pdfs/wsi 20120801 mi.pdf

Tl-tdﬁlﬁlmzl JnZQ)Iar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

an appropriate assessment is necessary, it must be demonstrated that significant effects will be absent with
no reasonable scientific doubt remaining.

4.6 Grid Connection
4.6.1 Some small-scale installations may not require new overhead connections to the electricity grid
network and in the majority of cases, connection to the grid will not be a planning consideration.

4.6.2 The District Network Operator (DNO) is responsible for establishing a connection between the
substation and the electricity grid network. The Council encourages developers to undertake early
engagement with DNO and the placing of cables should avoid areas of high landscape, ecological and
archaeological sensitivity. On site cabling and infrastructure will require careful consideration.

4.7 Community Energy

4.7.1 Community energy has the potential to reap many long term benefits for communities by ensuring
energy security, saving money on energy bills, generating income streams for communities and ownership to
local people. It is the UK Government’s ambition “that every community that wants to form an energy group
or take forward an energy project should be able to do so, regardless of background or location” °.

4.7.2  For the purposes of this guidance, Community Energy can be defined as an energy scheme which is
led by, or meets the needs of the local community. The community must have ownership of the
development, either in full or shared, whilst maintaining full control over it. As a result of a number of
positive case studies and the local benefits involved in such schemes, community energy projects will be
given support and encouragement by the Council.

4.7.3 Developers of renewable energy schemes are encouraged to discuss the potential of shared
ownership with communities. The benefits of shared ownership are numerous, for example, increased local
acceptance, a new financial source from investors in the community, community involvement and
education; and financial benefits from Feed-in-Tariffs. Shared ownership could involve a share in the overall
generated income from a scheme or part or full ownership of the scheme (for example, the community
could own a turbine in a larger scheme).

4.7.4 The decision on the acceptability of a scheme will be made irrespective of who the applicant is and
will be based on an assessment of the impacts. Such applications should be accompanied with a “Community
Benefit Statement” which meets the requirements of the relevant LDP policies and this guidance. The
Community Benefit Statement should include details of the community ownership model, a Terms and
Conditions Document, details of the energy and financial benefits of the scheme to the community.

4.8 Community Benefits

4.8.1 Community funds via contributions from developers are often offered as part of large schemes to
offset negative consequences of development, to help meet local needs or to secure benefits which will
make the development more sustainable. Such financial contributions cannot be taken into account in the
determination of a planning application and should be used by developers to alleviate any negative
consequences of the development and ensure that the community benefits from the development.

4.8.2 Communities and developers are encouraged to work together in deciding how the community fund
should be spent.

4.9 Agricultural Land

° Department of Energy and Climate Change, Community Energy Strategy Update (2015)
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/414446/CESU FINAL.pdf

10
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 121



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

4.9.1 Agricultural land within Carmarthenshire is mainly made up of grade 3 and 4, with parcels of grade 2
located to the east of Llanelli. PPW states that land of grades 1, 2 and 3a, being the best and most versatile
should be conserved as a finite resource for the future. PPW continues by stating that such land “should only
be developed if there is an overriding need for the development, and either previously developed land or land
in lower agricultural grades is unavailable, or available lower grade land has an environmental value
recognised by a landscape, wildlife, historic or archaeological designation which outweighs the agricultural
considerations” (para 4.10 PPW).

4.9.2 Renewable Energy schemes should avoid being developed on agricultural land of grades 1-3a. If
schemes are proposed on grade 3b land, consideration should be given to siting on less versatile land. If this
is not possible, then a full justification should be given in site selection.

4.9.3 Inthe construction and operation of Renewable Energy schemes, disturbance to agricultural land
and boundary features should be minimised. Agricultural land surrounding operational wind turbines should
not be sterilised and should still be used for agricultural purposes.

4.10 Ecological Considerations

Ecological Considerations:

e  Renewable Energy schemes should not be located on ecologically important sites (including Sites of
Special Scientific Interest, Ramsar Sites, Special Protection Areas and Special Areas of Conservation).

e  Ecological benefits and appropriate mitigation should be considered as part of the application.

4.10.1 The development of renewable energy schemes has the potential to harm habitats and species.
Developers will be expected to maximise the ecological potential of the site, whilst ensuring that there is no
demonstrable harm to statutorily protected species, and those habitats and species identified in the Local
Biodiversity Action Plan or the Environment Act 2016, Section 7 list of habitats and species of principle
importance to biological diversity in Wales. All applications are expected to be accompanied by an Ecological
Survey, assessing the potential effects on the development on both habitat and species. The level of the
survey will be dependent upon the scale of the proposal and the sensitivity of the surrounding habitat and
species.

4.10.2 Consideration should be given to enhancing habitats for biodiversity conservation and providing
features for protected and priority species. Retained or new habitats or features that are created will likely
require ongoing management and maintenance to ensure their longevity, and may require a specific habitat
or ecological management plan.

4.10.3 A Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) of the site and immediate surroundings will be required to
support any proposed wind turbine, solar or hydro scheme application regardless of size and number.
Guidelines for PEA Requirements can be found in the 2013 document published by the Chartered Institute
for Ecology and Environmental Management (2013). Details of any invasive species should be noted within
any PEA. The PEA must incorporate an extended phase 1 habitat survey consisting of a broad habitat
assessment and mapping exercise, determining protected species interest.

4.10.4 Where habitats are noted of high ecological interest, a further vegetation survey may be requested,
a National Vegetation Classification (NVC) survey is a detailed method for determining habitat quality.

4.10.5 Useful information can be found in the following documents:
e Guidelines for Phase 1 survey can be found in the document - Joint Nature Conservation Committee
(2010) Handbook for Phase 1 Habitat Survey - a Techniqgue for Environmental Audit Reprinted by
JNCC, Peterborough.

11
Tu&ﬂéﬂmﬁh angjlar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

e Guidelines for NVC survey can be found in the document - Rodwell JS (2006) National Vegetation
Classification: Users’ Handbook JNCC, Peterborough.

4.10.6 Reference should also be made to the SPG on Natural Environment and Biodiversity.

4.10.7 The construction stage of any development raises potential for ecological damage through site
clearance, construction of temporary access roads, installation of services, or storage of materials. In order
to protect a site’s biodiversity value, it is often necessary for certain development works and environmental
management operations to be undertaken at specific times of the year, and often within a restricted time-
scale. The importance of adhering to the correct timing of operations, in line with the results of the
Ecological Survey, is essential to ensure that any unacceptable impacts are to be avoided.

4.10.8 Further guidance can be sought from the County Council’s Ecologist.

Ecological Surveys

e  Surveys will be required to be undertaken by a suitably qualified ecologist.

e  Surveys should be undertaken early in the process in order to inform the scheme’s design and prior to
submitting the application, it is preferable that planning permissions will not be conditioned depending
upon survey results.

e The timing of ecological surveys is mainly seasonal and can only be carried out at certain times of the
year, surveys will be required to reflect this.

e  Surveys should follow best practice standards and methodologies.

4.11 Mitigation and Enhancement

4.11.1 Some developments and installations may cause a negative impact on the ecology. Careful siting,
design and layout of installations can assist in minimising any adverse impacts. Applications are expected to
include a Mitigation Plan detailing the measures and the implementation of them. Mitigation measures
should aim to avoid, reduce or remedy any significant adverse impacts on the landscape and biodiversity.
The SPG on Natural Environment and Biodiversity sets out the Mitigation Hierarchy.

4.11.2 Any mitigation measures proposed should reflect recent survey work and demonstrate a clear
understanding of the site and its ecological considerations. Any mitigation requirements should be
incorporated and highlighted in ecological assessments and surveys.

Avoidance

Mitigation

4.11.3 Applicants must ensure that they take account of all the potential effects of the proposed
development and make sure that avoidance and mitigation are appropriate to the site. All stages of a
development must be considered, as should the extent of any required land take or potential indirect effects
during the construction, operation, and where applicable the decommissioning of the proposed
development.

4.11.4 Itis, however recognised that mitigation often still entails the off-setting of some form of harm.
Where a site or its surroundings have a clear biodiversity value, and the mitigation measures proposed are

12
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 123



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

insufficient to reasonably protect its value then, planning permission may be refused subject to all relevant
considerations having been taken into account. Proposed mitigation measures that are acceptable in
planning terms will likely be a condition of the planning consent. Compensation for lost habitat should not
be construed as making an unacceptable development acceptable. If a compensation approach will be likely
utilised for a development, early discussion is encouraged with the LPA ecologist and if applicable, Natural
Resources Wales. There is also an expectation that biodiversity enhancement is delivered to meet the
requirements of the Environment Act Wales 2016.

4.11.5 Ininstances where harmful damage is unavoidable and will still occur in spite of mitigation,
consideration may be given to compensating for any loss by creating a new habitat at an alternative location,
(on or off-site). Prior to compensation being considered the developer/applicant will be required to
satisfactorily demonstrate that avoidance and mitigation are not possible and that the proposed
compensatory measures would not result in a net loss of habitat of the same habitat type.

5. Onshore Wind

5.1 Context

5.1.1 Onshore wind development first made an appearance in Carmarthenshire in the 1980s in Pembrey,
as part of The Carmarthen Bay Wind Turbine Test Programme. Turbines are a common sight in the
Carmarthenshire landscape today due to the favourable wind conditions that exist in parts of the County.

5.2 Strategic Search Areas
5.2.1 This SPG is not applicable to wind farm schemes located within the Brechfa Forest Area (Strategic
Search Area G).

5.2.2 Major wind turbine developments and wind farms are considered to be necessary in order for the
Welsh Government to achieve committed energy targets. TAN 8 identifies seven areas in Wales that are
considered to be the most appropriate locations for large scale wind farm development, these areas are
known as Strategic Search Areas (SSA). SSA G: Brechfa Forest lies within Carmarthenshire, generating
targets and upper limits for search areas are set by the Welsh Government in TAN 8, but have since been
reviewed in recognition that SSAs have a finite environmental capacity. The revised upper limit for SSA G is
132MW?, SSA E: Pontardawe is mainly located within the Neath Port Talbot and Swansea administrative
boundaries, but a small part of it straddles the County boundary to the east of Ammanford.

5.2.3 Welsh Government TAN 8 policy sets out that major wind turbine development and wind farms
which are larger than 5MW overall installed generating capacity will be restricted to the Strategic Search
Areas.

5.2.4  Alltwalis Wind Farm is currently the only operational wind farm within the SSA, having an installed
generating capacity of 23MW from 10 turbines. Brechfa Forest West is currently under construction and is
due to be operational in 2018. The scheme comprises 28 turbines, each measuring 145m in height which is
anticipated to have an installed generating capacity of 56-84MW. Planning Permission for Brechfa Forest
East was approved on the 17™ December 2013, subject to the applicant entering into a Section 106
agreement with the Council. This scheme comprises 12 turbines, each measuring 145m in height which will
contribute 24-36 MW of installed capacity.

10 L etter from the Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development

13
Tl-tdﬁlﬁlmzl JnZél‘Jlar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

5.2.5 Should the Brechfa Forest East application be implemented, together with the existing Alltwalis
Wind Farm and the Brechfa Forest West wind farm, then the upper limits for the SSA would be met, or
marginally exceeded.

5.2.6  Any new applications for large scale wind farms within SSA G will be discouraged in line with the
Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development letter which imposed upper limits of generating
capacity in SSAs, whilst these applications are valid.

5.3 Wind Turbine Development outside Strategic Search Areas

5.3.1 Individual wind turbine sizes can vary, from roof mounted micro scale turbines up to and exceeding
turbines of 145 meters to blade tip (as approved at the Brechfa West Wind Farm). Wind energy development
can take the form of an individual turbine or as a group of multiple turbines.

5.4 Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity

5.4.1 Wind turbines by their nature are substantial vertical structures, with moving blades. They represent
large man-made elements within the landscape which result in inevitable changes to the landscape and
visual character of an area. The acceptability of turbine development within an area will depend upon the
magnitude of these changes in relation to the sensitivity and capacity of the receiving landscape.

5.4.2 The Carmarthenshire Wind Turbine Development Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity Study
undertaken by Jellard Associates sets out guidance on the sensitivity and capacity of the Carmarthenshire
landscape. The study is intended to inform the appropriate design and siting of wind turbine development
through setting out a baseline assessment of landscape and visual sensitivity and capacity in relation to a
range of typologies relating to turbine size and groupings. The study uses a methodology deriving data from
LANDMAP aspect datasets, to provide baseline assessments of landscape and visual susceptibility and
landscape value through 80 distinct landscape units covering the entire authority area. Assessments of the
sensitivity of each landscape unit to different development typologies, are derived from the baseline
assessments.

5.4.3 The guidance and baseline assessments set out in the study should be used as a basis for the design
of wind turbine development and the assessment of landscape and visual impacts.

5.5 Landscape and Visual Impacts

5.5.1 Appropriate siting and design of wind turbine development in relation to the sensitivity and capacity
of the receiving landscape to minimise landscape and visual impacts is fundamental to the acceptability of
wind turbine development.

5.5.2 The Carmarthenshire Wind Turbine Development Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity Study provides
landscape unit specific comments on landscape capacity and guidance for siting, and overall guidance on site
context, siting and design considerations. The principles of this guidance are set out below:

A Factors Relating to Site Context

Landscape Character

Impacts on landscape character are likely to be related to:

e Scale of the landscape — whether it is small or large, and whether the proposed turbine(s) is/are of an
appropriate scale;

e Topography — turbines can dominate small scale or intricate landform if not carefully sited;

e Skylines — turbines can interrupt the simplicity of skylines or ridges, even if located below such features;

e Settlement pattern —turbines should be sensitively sited in relation to existing buildings and their
relationship with the landscape;

e Influence on the tranquillity of the landscape — turbines create movement, the amount depending on the
particular model, and this disturbance to tranquillity can be greatly enhanced by a darker land or

14
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 125



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

vegetation backdrop, where typical pale surface colours for turbines proposed in mitigation for skyline
effects are rendered completely ineffective.

Areas with a Sense of Remoteness

Rural areas which are particularly valued for their remoteness can be affected by the introduction of
turbines, although this is less likely to be the case if the turbines are of an appropriate scale and if located
close to farms or other existing buildings. However, incremental erosion of the special qualities of
remoteness and tranquillity should be avoided. Some locations close to centres of population are valued as
an important recreational resource yet have a sense of being unspoilt and remote, even though they are
close to urban areas. Locating turbines in these areas should be very carefully considered.

Valued Landscapes and Cultural Heritage Assets

Detailed and specific analysis will be required, in order to fully appreciate the nature of the development,
the site and its surroundings and the likely effects on any locally designated or valued landscapes, including
their essential setting, where appropriate. The siting of turbines should be carefully considered so as to
protect views to and from important landscape and cultural heritage focal features (including Listed
Buildings and Scheduled Ancient Monuments (SAMs), and their wider landscape setting, including the
defined ‘essential setting’ of registered parks and gardens.

B Factors Relating to Siting

Landform

Smaller turbines have greater potential to utilise landform (often in combination with vegetation) to help
reduce their visual impact than larger scale turbines. It is important that the scale of turbine does not
overwhelm the scale of the landform. The human eye tends to be drawn towards the skyline, and turbines
should be set back from the edges of plateaus, ridges and skylines, so as to reduce their visibility within the
wider landscape. The siting of turbines on distinctive or prominent summits or skylines should generally be
avoided, in preference to side slopes or gently undulating landform below ridgelines. Wind turbine
developments should preferably be grouped upon the level or gentler sloping parts of the site, so that the
development appears to be less visually confusing when viewed from different elevations and directions.

Landscape Pattern

Turbines can be sited to reflect the landscape pattern, for example field and woodland boundaries.
Conversely, care must be taken not to site turbines so that they conflict with noticeable patterns in the
landscape. The grouping and numbers of turbines can affect how they appear in the landscape. For example,
several dispersed turbines could be grouped to form a single feature in a visually complex landscape, whilst
in a larger scale landscape, a larger single turbine with the same generating capacity may be preferable.

A small group of smaller scale turbines is most likely to be preferable where sited on valley floors and on
lower valley slopes.

Focal Features

Turbines are likely to become focal features in the landscape. Care is required to ensure that they do not
cause visual conflict or competition with other focal points. The siting of turbines should therefore be
carefully considered so as to protect views to and from important landscape and cultural heritage focal
features. Turbines can draw the eye to features which would otherwise remain unnoticed. For example, a
turbine sited next to an isolated farm could draw attention to its presence when the farm itself is partially
hidden by either landform or trees.

Settlements and Urban Landscapes

Turbines should be carefully sited in relation to nearby settlements, buildings and other structures. In
sparsely settled rural landscapes, turbines should be located near to existing buildings or structures. Views to
or from, or on the approach to settlements (including dispersed properties), should be carefully considered
when siting wind energy developments. Turbines should be located in the least visually prominent location.
The selection of the scale and design of turbines may be influenced by its proximity to a settlement.

15
Tu&ﬂéﬂﬁﬁh JnZﬁJlar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

Turbines should be sited to minimise impacts on views obtainable from promoted or locally valued publicly
accessible viewpoints.

Woodlands and Trees

Although trees and woodlands can cause turbulence which interferes with the efficiency or longevity of
turbines, in some locations there may be the opportunity to screen or assimilate small scale turbines by
locating them close to trees and woodland. Care should be taken to site turbines so that they do not visually
dominate or compete with prominent vegetation such as parkland trees, trees on knolls, and avenues.
Turbines should be located where there is no need to fell trees and woodlands, particularly where these are
important features in the local landscape.

C Design Considerations

Turbine Selection

There is a wider range of design and colour options for smaller turbines, and these matters should be
carefully considered in relation to the landscape characteristics of the area in which they are to be located.
This is particularly important when other turbines are present, in order to ensure that there are no
conflicting design characteristics within the same locality.

Turbine Colour

The colour should be chosen to help assimilate the turbine into the receiving landscape. The same colour
should be used for all external components of the turbine and should be non-reflective. A pale grey is
commonly used because it minimises the visibility of the turbines when they are seen against the skyline,
which is how most large scale turbines are viewed. However, muted colours (such as mid to darker greys, or
blue-grey tones) for the surface finish of towers, hubs, nacelles and rotor blades should be preferred where
there is a significant factor of a land or vegetation backdrop to be considered, when the proposed turbine(s)
is/are viewed from sensitive visual receptor locations on higher ground within the zone of visual influence;
this is particularly relevant to micro and small turbines sited within or adjacent to dense coniferous or
broadleaved woodland. In all cases, the aim should be to minimise the visibility and reflectivity of the
external surfaces of all turbine components.

Turbine Size and Scale

Small scale turbines are likely to have fewer landscape and visual effects than large scale commercial
models. However, they can still visually dominate the nearby landscape or important component features of
that landscape. Identifying the main landscape and visual characteristics of the landscape in which the
turbines are to be sited is therefore an important determinant in selecting the most appropriate size.
Landscapes with a simple, strong and mainly horizontal form are generally able to accommodate taller
turbines and large turbine groups, as the height of turbines appears more proportionate to the landscape.
Small scale turbines, smaller groupings or individual turbines tend to be more suited to smaller scale, more
complex landscapes where there are other features such as buildings, trees or hedges.

It is also important to understand that smaller turbine rotors appear to rotate more rapidly than larger
rotors. If smaller turbines are sited close to larger turbines and appear in the same horizontal arc of view, the
relative speeds of rotation can appear discordant, with the tendency of the more rapid movement to draw
the eye to the smaller turbines. This may consequently increase the visual effects of the whole of the group
of turbines, even though the larger turbines may be more distant

Turbine Layout

Although there may be scope to design a small group of turbines as a coherent visual image, this may be
difficult where there are other built elements such as buildings, wood poles, steel lattice towers and
communications masts present. Where possible, turbine layout should respond to existing landscape
patterns, whether field boundaries, buildings or vegetation patterns. Turbine layout should always seek to
avoid the occurrence of overlapping rotor blades - or the ‘stacking effect’, caused when one or more

16
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 127



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

turbines are seen as closely juxtaposed when viewed from sensitive receptor locations, resulting in
discordant multiple rotor movements being seen within the same angle of view.

In all cases, turbine layout should respect the underlying landform and, where possible, groups of turbines
should be located at very similar elevations.

Micro-siting

Relocation of one or more wind turbines from their original position, referred to as micrositing, often takes
place during construction, due to unforeseen circumstances, such as ground conditions. This can affect the
original design concept, particularly the relationship with nearby vertical features such as trees and masts. It
is preferable that developers undertake pre-application ground surveys to collect geophysical data at
appropriate sufficient degree of detail, so as to minimise the requirement for micro-siting at the
construction stage. It is important to ensure that micro-siting considerations may not only affect wind
turbine locations, but also the horizontal and vertical alignment of access tracks, and that these factors are
properly considered at the stage of assessing the predicted landscape and visual effects of any wind turbine
proposal.

Ancillary Infrastructure

Landscape and visual impacts of any ancillary developments and visual conflicts between turbines and

ancillary structures should be minimised by:

e Sensitive siting and design of ancillary equipment and infrastructure (e.g. using local landform, locally
appropriate materials, architectural style and colours to more successfully integrate them into their
surroundings);

e Using turbines with integral transformers;

e Siting turbines as close as possible to the point of use or grid connection, so as to avoid long sections of
overhead power lines or cable runs (more applicable to large scale wind farm developments). In
particularly sensitive locations, placing the grid connection underground is the preferred option;

e Utilising existing tracks to avoid tree and hedgerow or other vegetation removal, which may have adverse
landscape effects. New tracks, if absolutely necessary, should follow existing landscape features, such as
field and woodland boundaries, wherever possible;

e Minimising cut and fill operations, following contours closely wherever possible for access track
alignments;

e Designing fencing or walling to fit the local situation, whilst maintaining the required security;

e Identifying locations for new tree and shrub planting to provide long term screening or assimilation, and
requiring the appropriate re-seeding of cutting slopes or embankments, in preference to a reliance upon
natural regeneration to re-establish vegetation cover.

5.6 Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA)

5.6.1 The effect on the landscape can be measured as changes in the character, the experience and/or
value of the physical landscape as a result of a change. The significance of the effect on the landscape will be
dependent upon a number of factors including the sensitivity of the landscape and its designation, and the
magnitude of the proposed change.

5.6.2 The impact upon visual amenity can be a subjective one, but ultimately can be measured as being
people’s responses to a change in the composition of views as a result of changes within the landscape.

5.6.3 Applications shall be accompanied by an appropriate Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment
(LVIA), which is expected to adhere to the guidelines issued by the Guidelines for Landscape and Visual
Impact Assessment; Third Edition, April 2013; published by The Landscape Institute and the Institute for
Environmental Management and Assessment (GLVIA3). This is the industry standard for undertaking
landscape and visual assessments.

17

Tl-tdﬁlﬁlmzl JnZ&Iar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

5.6.4 The scope and content of an LVIA for a specific development will depend upon the development
typology and context. Guidance on information requirements should be sought from the case planning
officer as part of pre-application consultation.

5.7 Cumulative Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment

5.7.2 Cumulative impact can be defined as “the additional changes caused by a proposed development in
conjunction with other similar development or as the combined effect of a set of developments, taken
together”’'. Where a Cumulative Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment is required, an assessment of
both combined and additional effects will be required.

5.7.3 The guidance and baseline assessments set out in the following documents commissioned by the
Council should be fully addressed as part of all cumulative impact assessments: -
e Pembrokeshire and Carmarthenshire: Cumulative Impact of Wind Turbines on Landscape and Visual
Amenity Guidance; and
e Carmarthenshire Wind Turbine Development Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity Study

5.7.4 Cumulative scoping assessments should be carried out where the development may be viewed in
conjunction with other wind turbine developments that are already operating, have planning permission or
where a planning application has been submitted. Detailed Cumulative Impact Assessments will only be
required where the proposal could result in significant cumulative impact. Pembrokeshire and
Carmarthenshire: Cumulative Impact of Wind Turbines on Landscape and Visual Amenity Guidance provides
further, more detailed guidance on undertaking such assessments. Further guidance on information
requirements should be sought from the case planning officer as part of pre-application consultation.

5.8 Direct Landscape Impacts

5.8.1 Wind turbine development frequently results in direct physical changes to existing landscape

elements'?:

e at constraint points along the proposed turbine delivery route;

e atsite access from the public highway;

e from construction of the proposed turbine structure and ancillary elements and from associated
construction phase disturbance.

In most situations, adverse direct physical impacts can be effectively mitigated through scheme design,

construction phase management, and mitigation and enhancement proposals.

5.8.2 The following additional information will be required as part of applications for larger scale turbines.

e Physical Landscape Impact Audit (PLIA)
The PLIA should identify all direct physical effects of the proposed development upon existing landscape
elements. The PLIA shall provide clear indication of which landscape elements will be retained,
temporarily disturbed, translocated or permanently removed. Whilst sympathetic siting, design and
layout can reduce the impact on the landscape, mitigation measures should be considered in order to
reduce any adverse impacts.

e Physical Landscape Impact Mitigation Scheme (PLIMS).
All direct landscape impacts identified within the PLIA should be mitigated through an appropriate
Physical Landscape Impact Mitigation Scheme (PLIMS). The PLIMS should provide sufficient details of all
mitigation proposals to enable compliance monitoring and enforcement

11 Taken “Assessing the Cumulative Impact of Onshire Wind Energy Development” Scottish Natural Heritage, March
2012.

12 L andscape Elements are defined in LDP Policy EQ5 as including: existing trees; groups of trees; large shrubs; and all
features identified as contributing to biodiversity and local distinctiveness/qualities of the County in the County, namely:
“Hedgerows, ditches and banks, stone walls, streams, tree belts, woodlands, veteran trees, parklands, green lanes, river
corridoes, lakes, ponds, road verges, or habitat mosaics or networks of other locally important habitats including peat
bogs, heath-land, wetlands, salt marshes, sand dunes and spcies rich grasslands”

18
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 129



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

Further guidance on additional information requirements should be sought from the case planning officer as
part of pre-application consultation.

5.9 Landscape Compensation & Biodiversity Enhancement Scheme

5.9.1 Wind turbine development inevitably results in changes to local landscape character through the
introduction of new, manmade moving landscape elements. The significance of these changes in terms of
magnitude and extent of effect are addressed as part of determination of a planning application, in terms of
their acceptability against planning policy. However, in most situations, approved turbine development will
result in residual adverse impacts upon landscape character. Whilst these impacts may not be of a
significance to justify refusal of the application, it is considered that a suitable Landscape Compensation and
Biodiversity Enhancement Scheme (LCBES), which ensures the retention, protection and enhancement of
existing landscape character should be secured as part of any planning approval. Further guidance on the
requirements of a LCBES should be sought from the case planning officer as part of pre-application
consultation.

5.10 Noise

5.10.1 Turbines produce mechanical noise from generators, gearbox and drivetrain, and aerodynamic
noise, which is produced from the movement of their blades through the air. In order to assess the
acceptability of noise levels produced by a proposed turbine, all planning applications are expected to be
accompanied by a Noise Assessment. Appendix A provies further guidance on how the Council will assess
noise impact from wind turbine(s).

5.10.2 All turbines are required to accord with ETSU-R-97: The Assessment and Rating of Noise from Wind
Farms published by the Department of Trade and Industry. Sites should minimise noise by being located an
appropriate distance from noise sensitive locations.

5.10.3 Noise during construction should also be taken into account at an early stage. Measures to minimise
instances of significant residential disturbance should be implemented. Actions could include avoidance of
weekend and early morning working.

Noise Assessments

e  Assessments must be carried out by a qualified and competent acoustician.

e “A Good Practice Guide to the Application of ETSU-R-97 for the Assessment and Rating of Wind Turbine
Noise”, published by the Institute of Acoustics (May 2013) should be used as reference.

5.11 Ecological Considerations

5.11.1 General guidance on ecological considerations is provided in Section 4 which is applicable to all
renewable energy schemes. However, turbine development has specific concerns relating to bats and birds
which require additional consideration. As of this date, these are the Council’s best guidelines but may be
subject to change as a result of new guidance or up to date surveys.

Bats

5.11.2 Bats and their roosts are legally protected by UK and International legislation. All planning
applications for turbines will require a bat survey, primarily to determine whether the proposed site is used
by, or is likely to be used by bats and which species are present. Surveys will also identify what time of the
year the bats are utilising the site as activity changes throughout the year, this is particularly important for
those species identified as high risk which will exploit open habitats and are more likely to be at risk from
collision with turbines, although all species using the site to any significant extent need to be identified. Bat
activity across and within the site must be established and any roosts (maternity roosts, swarming sites or

19

Tl-tdﬁlﬁlmzl JngQ)Iar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

significant hibernation sites) on or close to the site must be located. Any survey must examine any features
that may be utilised by bats for commuting and foraging.

5.11.3 Guidance on survey effort, timing and methodology is available in Bat Surveys - Good Practice
Guidelines, 2nd Edition published by the Bat Conservation (L. Hundt 2012) — Section 10.

Bat Assessments

e Surveys will be required at least once in spring, autumn and summer for low risk turbine sites or
more if a higher risk is identified.

e The applicant may be able to opt for a curtailment of a turbine after one survey has been
undertaken, based upon the level of risk this survey identifies. This can only be agreed once initial
survey work has been assessed and must be agreed with the LPA Ecologist.

e Both manual (transects) and static surveys are required. Static surveys should be for 5 consecutive
day’s duration.

e Any manual surveys should be carried out on warmer, drier evenings where the wind speed is low.

e Details of temperature and weather conditions during surveys must be included in final report.

Birds

5.11.4 A comprehensive desk study must be undertaken to assess the records for bird activity around a
proposed turbine site. Cumulative impacts must also be considered. A walkover survey of the site and
surrounding area relevant to appropriate disturbance buffer zone distances for relevant species such as Red
Kite, must be undertaken to identify if the desk study reflects the situation on the ground and indicate any
potential sites of avian importance or species that must be considered.

5.11.5 On the basis of the findings of the desk and walkover studies there may, or may not be a
requirement to carry out full vantage point surveys and collision risk assessments. Initial survey work must
be assessed and agreed with the LPA Ecologist pre-application to determine whether further survey will be
required. Any further surveys will need to be carried out following recognised guidance to ensure it has been
carried out to a recognised protocol.

5.12 Historic Environment and Archaeological Settings

5.12.1 Carmarthenshire has an important historic environment, with parts of the County being highly
regarded with features of historic and archaeological importance, many of these features are protected by
legislation. Consideration needs to be given to the County’s historic environment in the early stages of
schemes. Such sites include Scheduled Ancient Monuments, Historic Parks and Gardens, Historic Landscapes,
Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings.

5.12.2 Itis important that turbines do not directly physically impact upon the features of historic interest,
or cause unacceptable visual harm to the setting of historic and archaeological sites. Turbines should be
sited away from known archaeological sites.

5.12.3 An Archaeological Assessment may be appropriate in locations where turbines are proposed close
to known or undiscovered archaeological sites. Such surveys should be undertaken by an appropriately
qualified professional to standards set by the Institute of Archaeologists. Early engagement with Dyfed
Archaeological Trust and Cadw is recommended.

5.12.4 Reference should be made to the Archaeology and Development Supplementary Planning Guidance
for further, more detailed advice.

20
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 131



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

5.13 Residential Amenity, Aviation and Electromagnetic Transmissions and
Telecommunications Interference

5.13.1 Insiting turbines, regard should be had to the amenities of the residents and occupants of nearby
properties. This requirement, in line with TAN 8 should reduce the potential nuisance arising from wind
turbine operation, noise, shadow flicker, safety risk, and radio or telecommunications interference. Local
circumstances will dictate the appropriate distance based on topography, the orientation of nearby
properties and the existing nature and landscaping surrounding the site.

5.13.2 Shadow flicker occurs at certain times of the day when the sun passes behind the rotors of the
turbine which then casts a shadow which flicks on and off in time with the movement of the rotor. If shadow
flicker is liable to occur close to residential properties, an assessment should be undertaken. Mitigation
measures to prevent shadow flicker could include shutting down the turbine during affected times or
appropriate screening.

5.13.3 Wind turbines have the potential to cause a number of negative effects on aviation, including
physical obstructions to air traffic movements, interference to Air Traffic Control and Air Defence radar
installations and turbulence. Consultation with the Civil Aviation Authority (CAA), Ministry of Defence (MOD)
and the National Air Traffic Services (NATS) should be undertaken at an early stage, in order that any effects
on aviation and potential mitigation is identified.

5.13.4 Turbines also have the potential to affect electromagnetic transmissions. Turbines should be sited
away from radio and microwave signal corridors and should not impact upon domestic TV, radio reception,
and mobile broadband. Where interference cannot be avoided, mitigation measures will be required by the
developer.

5.14 Safety, Proximity to Roads, Railways, Buildings and Public Open Spaces
and Aviation Safety (Including Topple Distance)

5.14.1 Turbines should be located an appropriate distance from roads, railways, buildings and public open
spaces. The appropriate distance otherwise known as the “topple distance”, which is calculated as being the
height of the turbine.

5.14.2 Turbines should not cause a visual distraction to drivers and should be located away from junctions,
tight bends and crossings.

5.15 Public Accessibility / Rights of Ways

5.15.1 A Public Right of Way is a route over which the public have a legal right to pass and re-pass. Public
Rights of Way include public footpaths, bridleways and byways and are recorded on the Definitive Map and
Statement. The Definitive Map and Statement is a legal record of public rights of way in the County.

5.15.2 In public areas or areas, visited by members of the public, it is expected that the developer provides
interpretation boards explaining the project.

Considerations:

e  Consideration should be given to the amenity, health and safety of all users of the right of way. Turbine
blades should not over sail public rights of way.

e  Where turbines are likely to impact upon public rights of way, whether temporary or permanently, it is
recommended to discuss the impacts with the Council’s Countryside Recreation & Access Unit. Existing
bridleways and footpaths shall be safeguarded with no permanent loss to the length and quality of
trails.

21
Tu&ﬂﬁkﬁlﬁh Jnggjlar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

e  Horses — A minimum separation of 200m distance, or 3 times blade tip height, whichever is greater,
from routes available to horses is recommended. Where this is not achievable, there are a number of
factors that should be examined in order to provide an appropriate solution including: the availability of
alternative routes; the number and siting of the turbines; and undulating ground.

e  Mitigation should be considered as a permanent measure, or temporary during the construction period.
Such mitigation measures could include the provision of new routes, improving the current right of way
network or interpretation and visitor facilities. Encouragement will be given to enhancing existing
facilities and providing new recreational facilities.

5.16 Highways

5.16.1 Some turbines will be located in the rural areas served only by minor roads. The construction of wind
turbines will require sufficient and safe access to transport the turbine components. Proposals will be
required to ensure that they do not give rise to problems of highway safety or have a detrimental effect on
the highway network as a result of construction and maintenance traffic, in line with Policy TR2 — Location of
Development — Transport Considerations. Applications are expected to be accompanied with a Traffic
Management Plan.

Highway Considerations:

e The developer will be required to demonstrate that traffic during construction and maintenance will be
able to travel safely to and from the site and should not cause damage to existing hedgerows and trees.
Applicants will also be required to identify if third party land is required for road widening in association
with the delivery of the turbine.

e New field access and access tracks should be kept to a minimum. Where they are necessary, they
should be constructed causing minimal impact on the surrounding hedgerows and local character. New
tracks should follow existing site contours and field boundaries. It will be expected that any new field
access will be closed and access tracks, hedgerows re-instated or grassed over to be fully restored upon
decommissioning.

e Liaison should be carried out with the Highways Authority after permission is granted in terms of
arranging the timing of delivery in order to minimise traffic disruption.

5.17 Drainage / Flood management / Water Quality

5.17.1 Due to the groundworks necessary in the construction of turbines, consideration should be given to
any resultant effects on land drainage or increase in flood risk. Where developments are likely to cause
surface water issues, applications will be expected to be accompanied with a Surface Water Management
Plan. Turbines should not be sited in Flood Risk Areas nor adjacent to bore holes. No degradation of water
quality should take place as a result of turbine construction.

5.18 Decommissioning / Site Restoration / Duration of Planning Permission
5.18.1 Applications are expected to be accompanied with an agreed decommissioning schedule and details
of the restoration of the site. In restoring the site, it is expected that the site will revert completely to its
state prior to the construction of the turbine(s), all development, ancillary infrastructure and access tracks
should be removed and any soils and vegetation restored appropriately. It will be expected that any new
field access will be closed and access tracks will be closed, hedgerows re-instated or grassed over to be fully
restored.

5.19 Site Security / Safety / Lighting
5.19.1 Any security measures should not cause visual harm to the character of the local area. In rural areas,
lighting should be kept to a minimum and if, where required should be infra-red for aviation purposes.

22
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 133



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

Tmlﬁiﬂi J&'Bélalar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance

23



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

6. Solar

6.1 Context

6.1.1 Harnessing the sun’s energy for heat and power is becoming a popular and affordable solution for
low carbon energy generation. Solar panels are increasingly being used by householders on new-build
dwellings by being integrated into roof designs, whilst also being retrofitted to existing roofs. The Authority
is also receiving increasing numbers of planning applications for solar farms / arrays covering large areas of
agricultural and vacant land.

6.1.2 Solar schemes are categorised by their site area and output for the purposes of this guidance and
LDP policy implementation as follows:

Site Area Indicative Output Based
upon 2ha/MWp
Small lhato5ha 0.5 MWp to 2.5MWp
Medium >5 hato 15 ha >2.5MWp to 7.5MWp
Large >15 ha >7.5MWp

Table 2: Solar Typologies

6.2 Types of Technology

Solar Thermal Systems / Hot water

6.2.1 Solar energy can be used to provide hot water via solar thermal systems, which usually consist of
thermal panels placed on building roofs. For domestic properties outside a conservation area, planning
permission may not be required (please see www.planningportal.gov.uk).

Solar Photovoltaic (PV) / Electricity

6.2.2 The sun’s energy is converted into electricity via Photovoltaic (PV) cells. PV panels can be roof
mounted, or are increasingly being installed as commercial scale solar PV arrays. PV arrays normally
comprise large numbers of individual panels grouped into “arrays” and mounted on freestanding racks®3.

6.3 Policy Context

6.3.1 For solar proposals, Policy RE3 is applicable in addition to the general policies listed in section 3.4.3.
Since the adoption of the LDP, it is clear that further clarification is required in terms of proposals located
outside development limits.

Proposals outside Development Limits
6.3.2 For the purposes of Policy RE3, the scheme sizes are summarised in table 2.

6.3.3 The policy states that “large scale schemes located outside defined Development Limits may be
permitted in exceptional circumstances”. The purpose of this statement is to ensure that only feasible
schemes will be permitted and will contribute to meeting the national renewable targets. Large solar parks
can be very visible in the landscape and applications should be supported by appropriate supporting
information to enable a comprehensive assessment of the scheme to ensure it will not cause demonstrable
harm to the landscape.

6.3.4 The policy’s amplification (para 6.7.31) explains that in respect of solar parks, “such schemes can
play an important role in assisting WG achieve its renewable energy generation targets, and for this reason,
the need for the scheme will be weighed up against the need to protect the landscape from inappropriate
development. Such schemes will be assessed against other policies contained within this Plan primarily

13 Practice Guidance — Planning Implications of Renewable and Low carbon Energy

24
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 135



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

relating to the impact on the landscape and biodiversity of the proposal and the cumulative impact of
renewable energy installations”.

6.4 Roof Mounted

6.4.1 Generally, in many cases, roof mounted panels will not require planning permission as they are
permitted development. It is recommended that applicants consult the latest version of the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development Order) prior to installation. The Council will also advise
whether or not permission is required via the pre-application process.

6.4.2 Encouragement is given to applicants of new buildings to incorporate roof mounted panels into
building design at an early stage. There are a number of considerations that applicants should consider when
incorporating panels in roof design:

e Visual impact & design — The panels should be well incorporated and blend into the overall design.
They should also be placed in locations which would not harm the proportions or take away from
the overall design of the building and surrounding buildings. Consideration will be given to the
cumulative impact of panels. Outbuildings or extensions could be considered as being suitable to
incorporate panels.

e landscape Considerations — Consideration and allowance should be given to any large trees that
may cause shadow to any proposed panels.

e Ecology — Bats and birds use buildings for roosting and nesting and as such, an assessment will have
to be undertaken to assess whether any are present in the roof as all bats and some birds are legally
protected. The installation of panels should not cause demonstrable harm to important habitats and
species.

e Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas — Listed Building Consent and planning permission is normally
required to attach solar panels to Listed Buildings, as in most cases they will be fixed to the building
which may change its character and/or appearance. Panels should not cause disturbance to, or
destroy the historic fabric of the Listed Building. In Conservation Areas, solar panels should be
located in unobtrusive areas which would not impact upon the area’s character.

e Glint and Glare — Glint is described as being intense direct reflections of the sun, and glare being
diffuse reflections of the bright sky around the sun. Glint and glare can cause particular problems for
users to the south-east of a development, for example to homes, businesses and public highways. A
glint and glare assessment should be completed and should accompany a planning application if
required. Mitigation measures could be put in place to address any harmful impact.

6.5 Ground Mounted Panels

6.5.1 Carmarthenshire has a number of Solar Farms or Solar PV arrays. These consist of free-standing
panels or arrays which should face due south and angled at 20-45 degrees in order to achieve the maximum
energy generation. Technology is available for some arrays to track the path of the sun, although the cost for
these systems is considerably higher.

6.5.2 Large areas of land are required for solar farms, for this reason there are a number of considerations
required in order to make the scheme acceptable. The following guidance sets out the considerations that
applicants should consider when planning a solar farm, these considerations will also be used when
assessing applications.

6.6 Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity
6.6.1 Field scale solar PV developments represent large man-made elements within the landscape which
result in inevitable changes to the landscape and visual character of an area. The acceptability of Solar PV

25

Tl-tdﬁlﬁlmzl Jngﬁlar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

development within an area will depend upon the magnitude of these changes in relation to the sensitivity
and capacity of the receiving landscape.

6.6.2 The Carmarthenshire Solar PV Development Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity Study undertaken by
Jellard Associates sets out guidance on the sensitivity and capacity of the Carmarthenshire landscape. The
study is intended to inform the appropriate design and siting of solar PV development through setting out a
baseline assessment of landscape and visual sensitivity and capacity in relation to a range of Solar PV
typologies.

The study uses a methodology deriving data from LANDMAP aspect datasets, to provide baseline
assessments of landscape and visual susceptibility and landscape value through 80 distinct landscape units
covering the entire authority area. Assessments of the sensitivity of each landscape unit to different
development typologies, are derived from the baseline assessments.

6.6.3 The guidance and baseline assessments set out in the study should be used as a basis for the design
of solar PV development and the assessment of landscape and visual impacts.

6.7 Landscape and Visual Impacts

6.7.1 Appropriate siting and design of solar PV development in relation to the sensitivity and capacity of
the receiving landscape to minimise landscape and visual impacts is fundamental to the acceptability of
development. Field scale ground mounted arrays have the potential to harm landscape quality and
character. In order to minimise harm, the first step applicants should take is appropriate site selection.
Thought should be given to the design and layout of the arrays in order to minimise harm to the landscape.
The most appropriate sites for ground mounted arrays are those which are south facing and are on flat areas
or on lower slopes of lowland landscapes, rather than upland, prominent slopes.

6.7.2 The Carmarthenshire Solar PV Development Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity Study provides
landscape unit specific comments on landscape capacity and guidance for siting, and overall guidance on site
context, siting and design considerations. The principles of this guidance are set out below: -

A Factors Relating to Design

Solar PV Layout

When siting development, it is equally important to consider the appearance of the proposed development
as it would appear when viewed from those aspects where the supporting frames will be more visible, as
well as from the frontal aspect which shows the solar panels in full. The design should ensure that the arrays
follow contours wherever possible and fit within existing enclosure patterns - avoid siting panels that are
remote from the rest of the group. It will be important to maintain land uses on the site that fit with the
character of the area.

For sites which are overlooked by higher ground from where it is close enough to clearly discern the detailed
characteristics of the proposed development, the design of the site layout and how it relates to - or is
assimilated into - the landscape will be particularly important. Where field scale solar PV is proposed which
does not occupy the entire area of one or more fields, then the potential for introducing new boundary
features, such as hedgerows or linear belts of woodland, must be carefully examined in relation to the
prevailing pattern and texture of the receiving landscape.

The designed height of the solar PV panels should be such that they will be as unobtrusive as possible in the
landscape. In areas where mature hedgerows form the field boundaries, the aim should be to site the arrays
below the height of the field boundary hedgerows, which should be managed to a top height of around 3
metres above existing ground level on the field side.

B Factors Relating to Site Context

Landscape Character

Impacts on landscape character are likely to be related to:

e  Scale of the landscape — whether it is small or large, and whether the proposed solar PV developments
are of an appropriate scale which is compatible with that of the receiving landscape;

26
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 137



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

e  Topography — field-scale solar PV development can dominate small scale or intricate landform if not
carefully sited;

e  Skylines — field-scale solar PV development can affect the perception of the simplicity of skyline or
ridges if located on or immediately below these features;

e Landscape pattern — field-scale solar PV development should be carefully sited so as to avoid conflict
with existing tangible patterns in the receiving landscape;

e  Settlement pattern — field-scale solar PV development should be carefully sited in relation to existing
settlement.

Areas with a Sense of Remoteness
Field-scale solar PV development should be sited away from areas valued for their remoteness, areas free
from human influence and perceived wilderness, e.g. extensive tracts of upland moorland.

Valued Landscapes and Cultural Heritage Assets

Detailed and specific analysis will be required, in order to fully appreciate the nature of the development,
the site and its surroundings and the likely effects on any locally designated or valued landscapes, including
their essential setting, where appropriate. The siting of field-scale solar PV installations should therefore be
carefully considered so as to protect views to and from important landscape and cultural heritage focal
features (including Listed Buildings and Scheduled Ancient Monuments (SAMs), and their wider landscape
setting, including the defined ‘essential setting’ of registered parks and gardens.

C Factors Relating to Siting

Landform

Field-scale Solar PV development should be sited on flat lowland or on the lower slopes within gently rolling
lowland landscapes; steeper landform - and in particular the higher slopes — are likely to be more sensitive.

Such solar PV development in plateau landscapes should be sited in extensive and undulating areas and set

back from the edge, so as to minimise any effects on views from adjacent upland areas

Landscape Pattern

Field-scale solar PV development should be sited so as to reflect and harmonise with tangible patterns in the

receiving landscape - for example, those produced by well-defined field and woodland boundaries.

Conversely, care must be taken not to site field-scale solar PV arrays so that they would conflict with such

patterns in the landscape.

Small-scale medieval field patterns are generally more sensitive to field-scale solar PV development than

more recently enclosed fields, which are likely to be regular in shape and larger scale. Arrays of solar panels

should be designed so as to be properly assimilated into the existing field pattern, avoiding the imposition of
unsympathetic hard edges and straight lines within landscapes with irregular or curved field boundaries. In
addition, when designing a scheme across multiple fields, the following guidance should be fully taken into
consideration:

e Preserve the legibility of field patterns by minimising the number of adjacent fields that are developed,
and by setting solar PV arrays back from the edges of fields. This will also permit the continuation of
efficient and cost-effective boundary hedgerow management;

e Designing a site layout around conserved and enhanced existing field boundary hedgerows, or belts of
woodland, will contribute to reducing the massing effect of contiguous field-scale solar arrays.

Woodland and Trees

Field-scale solar PV developments should be sited within landscapes with some degree of enclosure (by
landform, woodland or hedgerows — or combinations of these elements), rather than in open or relatively
unenclosed landscapes.

Focal Features

Consider views from local viewpoints, popular routes, recognised or noted iconic views, and designated
landscapes when considering the siting of field-scale solar PV development in the landscape. This is
particularly important when a prominent or conspicuous landmark may be present, such as at Paxton’s
Tower, which is an important focal point in the landscape. Field-scale solar PV developments should be sited

27
Tu&ﬂéﬂmﬁh 1!138)Iar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

in such a way that they can be well concealed or properly assimilated into sensitive views. The siting of solar
arrays should therefore be carefully considered to protect views to and from important landscape and
cultural heritage features

Settlements and Urban Landscapes

Field-scale solar PV development should be carefully located in relation to nearby settlements, buildings and
other structures. In sparsely settled rural landscapes, solar PV development should be located near to
existing buildings or structures. Views to/from, or on the approach to settlements (including dispersed
properties) should be carefully considered when siting field-scale solar PV developments.

5.15 Field-scale solar PV development should be located in the least visually prominent location, and should
be sited so as to minimise adverse effects on sensitive public viewpoint locations, promoted recreational
routes, roads and other public rights of way.

Ancillary Infrastructure

e Field-scale solar PV developments should utilise existing access points and existing access tracks
wherever possible, in order to minimise the introduction of new tracks into the landscape, as well as
devising temporary access measures which can be removed completely following the completion of the
construction phase of the scheme. Locating access tracks between arrays of panels should be avoided
wherever possible.

e  Avoid the use of hardworks elements which could have an ‘urbanising’ effect - such as concrete kerbs
and posts - in rural situations; and minimise the extent of sealed hard surfaces, the use of urban or
industrial styles of perimeter fencing and security gates; CCTV infrastructure; and the use of lighting,
particularly in those landscapes with no apparent artificial lighting. Lighting should be avoided unless
absolutely necessary. If it is considered to be essential, then the design of the fittings and columns
should be sympathetic to the rural context and all lighting should utilise passive infrared (PIR)
technology for its activation. The design of fittings should minimise light spillage, particularly onto
adjacent or nearby hedgerows, woodland or scrub where it could have detrimental effects on wildlife.

e  Existing or new landscape features should be utilised in order to integrate security features into the
landscape, such as perimeter security fencing. Security fences can be made to appear less prominent in
the landscape if they are set back from hedgerow boundaries on the site’s perimeter, which has the
effect of reducing their overall height when viewed from outside the site. Where possible, security
fencing should be avoided to minimise visual impact. As an alternative, for example, it may be possible
to construct ditches and berms which would control access but in a more sympathetic way. However, if
security fencing is deemed necessary, it should be constructed of materials which are sympathetic to
the countryside with the means for wildlife to move freely, for instance, by erecting deer fencing as
opposed to conventional security perimeter fencing. Planting alongside the fencing can reduce its
impact, although there may be surveillance constraints to consider.

e New hedgerow or woodland belts can be planted to screen views of the perimeter fences. In many
instances, hedgerows or tree belts will be an important part of creating a visually acceptable setting
within the wider landscape for a solar PV array. Such new landscape features need to be appropriate to
the character of the local landscape, such as the selection of locally-occurring tree and shrub species, or
the creation of hedgebanks in the local vernacular. There is a need to avoid potential shading from
boundary screening treatments. The relationship between boundary vegetation height and its distance
from the arrays is an important design factor.

e  Proposals should ensure that all on-site cables are buried underground (without undue damage to
existing hedgerows or archaeology), so as to minimise adverse effects on landscape character and visual
amenity. Grid connections should be placed underground wherever possible.

e Inverters should be enclosed within existing buildings wherever possible, particularly where these are of
local vernacular, and the scheme design should locate these facilities as close as possible to the site.
Switchgear and control cabinets or control buildings should be carefully sited and should generally avoid
high or exposed locations, making optimum use of existing and locally occurring vegetation or field

28
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 139



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

boundary walls to screen or assimilate such features into the receiving landscape. Placing an inverter
building within the centre of solar arrays should always be avoided.

e New buildings constructed as part of a field-scale solar PV development should be required to match
the local vernacular, in terms of their form and scale, together with the external materials and colours
to be utilised.

e Drainage provisions can have significant visual impacts. Often, on flat ground, solar panels can simply
drain to the ground with little problem, but sloping sites can cause more difficulties, with the potential
for run-off being concentrated and leading to the formation of erosion gullies. SUDS type drainage
schemes, utilising a network of appropriately designed ditches, swales and berms, are likely to be the
most cost-effective and visually acceptable methods of achieving the satisfactory collection and
discharge of surface water run-off in a rural context.

Appearance of Solar PV Arrays — Materials and Finishes

When designing the layout and selecting the materials for the panels, the design process should consider the

appearance of the development as it would be viewed from all aspects, not just the aspect in which the

arrays would be seen from the front. Dark, recessive colours in natural tones - and non-reflective materials
for structures associated with the PV panels (including supporting frames, control cabinets and posts) - are
generally considered to be less visually intrusive than reflective materials and bright colours for finishes.

The following considerations should be given in the design of the array:

e The layout and design of schemes should follow the site’s contours and respect any landscape features
on the site.

e  Panels should be considered as a whole and not create a piecemeal development where some panels
are sited away from the rest of the group.

e  Whilst it is accepted that panels need to be orientated to achieve the best performance, the
appearance of the panels from all directions should be considered.

e  Consideration should be given to locating panels close to existing buildings, particularly if there are
agricultural buildings close to the site.

e The scale of the array should respect its location, particularly within the landscape it lies.

e  Existing field enclosures and patterns should be maintained and arrays placed within these enclosures.
Consideration should be given to enhancing existing, and reinstating hedgerows. A suitable buffer
should be given to hedgerows in order to afford protection to them, they should also be protected
throughout the construction period.

e  The height of the panels should not be taller than the existing hedgerows in the area, panels should be
screened as much as is possible without compromising efficiency.

e An effort should be made to minimising development on the site to only necessary development in rural
areas. Hard surfacing, tall fencing and urbanisation should be minimised.

e  Cables should be buried underground where possible, particularly on-site and to grid connections.
When burying cables, works should not cause harm to important features on the site, including
hedgerows.

e Ancillary buildings should be in-keeping with existing local buildings and be screened where possible.
Buildings should also be sited in the most appropriate location, avoiding prominent locations.

e  Any boundary treatment should be in-keeping with its location, use of landscaping will be encouraged
and if fencing is required then it should be of an agricultural form to blend in with the area. Tall,
compound-style fencing in rural areas will be resisted.

e New field access and access tracks should be kept to a minimum. Where they are necessary, they
should be constructed causing minimal impact on the surrounding hedgerows and local character. New
tracks should follow existing site contours and field boundaries. It will be expected that any new field
access will be closed and access tracks, hedgerows re-instated or grassed over to be fully restored.

e  Reference should be made to the Landscape Capacity and Sensitivity Study, in particular with the
relevant landscape unit.

29
Tu&ﬂéﬂﬁﬁh MQ)Iar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

6.8 Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA)

6.8.1 The effect on the landscape can be measured as changes in the character, the experience and/or
value of the physical landscape as a result of a change. The significance of the effect on the landscape will be
dependent upon a number of factors including the sensitivity of the landscape and its designation, and the
magnitude of the proposed change.

6.8.2 The impact upon visual amenity can be a subjective one, but ultimately can be measured as being
people’s responses to a change in the composition of views as a result of changes within the landscape.

6.8.3  Applications shall be accompanied by an appropriate Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment
(LVIA), which is expected to adhere to the guidelines issued by the Guidelines for Landscape and Visual
Impact Assessment; Third Edition, April 2013; published by The Landscape Institute and the Institute for
Environmental Management and Assessment (GLVIA3). This is the industry standard for undertaking
landscape and visual assessments.

6.8.4 The scope and content of an LVIA for a specific development will depend upon the development
typology and context. Guidance on information requirements should be sought from the case planning
officer as part of pre-application consultation.

6.9 Cumulative Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment

6.9.1 Cumulative impact can be defined as “the additional changes caused by a proposed development in
conjunction with other similar development or as the combined effect of a set of developments, taken
together”**. Where a Cumulative Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment is required, an assessment of
both combined and additional effects will be required.

6.9.2 Potential cumulative landscape and visual effects should be carefully considered on a case by case
basis assisted, where appropriate, by the production of Zones of Theoretical Visibility (ZTVs) and
visualisations Further guidance on information requirements should be sought from the case planning officer
as part of pre-application consultation.

6.9.3 Cumulative Effects - Considerations

When considering the siting and design for multiple field-scale solar PV developments within same

Landscape Unit, the following guidance should be fully taken into consideration:

e  When designing any field-scale solar PV development, it is important to consider how the scheme fits
with other operational, consented and proposed renewable energy schemes (including those located
within neighbouring planning authorities), or with other developments which may have similar
characteristics, e.g. polytunnels or glasshouses, so as to minimise any adverse cumulative effects which
might arise;

e  The design should aim for similarity of design between schemes that would occur within the same type
of landscape (in terms of siting, layout, scale, form and relationship to key characteristics), in order to
maintain a simple and coherent visual effect which is sympathetic to the prevailing landscape
characteristics;

e  When designing extensions to operational field-scale solar PV sites, it will be important that the scale
and appearance of the panels and arrays are compatible. Individual solar PV developments should
generally appear visually separate, unless specifically designed to create the appearance of a single
combined development;

e Ensure the area of the combined development remains in scale with the landscape in which it lies;

e It will be important to ensure that field-scale solar PV developments do not have a defining influence on
the overall experience of the landscape, and that some open views devoid of solar PV developments are

14 Taken “Assessing the Cumulative Impact of Onshire Wind Energy Development” Scottish Natural Heritage, March
2012.

30
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 141



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

maintained within Carmarthenshire, (i.e. ensure that rural character remains and that solar PV
developments do not dominate in any one locality);

e If two or more field-scale solar PV developments are clearly visible in the same arc of view and appear
in the same Landscape Unit, they should appear of similar scale (unless the first development is
considered too large for its landscape context) and their design should relate to the underlying
landscape in the same manner;

e Views from settlements should not be compromised by an accumulation of field-scale solar PV
developments in close proximity, as a result of which, a settlement could be seen to be enveloped by
such installations.

6.10 Noise

6.10.1 Solar farms produce very little noise, and this is generally confined to daylight hours. In order to
assess the acceptability of noise levels produced by a solar farm proposal, a Noise Assessment may be
requested where it is deemed necessary, for example for larger developments where there may be the
electrical equipment, inverters and transformers, housed in enclosures or containers around the site.

6.10.2 Permissions will typically include a condition to ensure that the noise rating level will not exceed
background noise levels in the locality. In designing solar farms, consideration should be given to locating
mechanical equipment in the middle of the site in order to minimise noise to the surrounding areas.

6.10.3 Noise during construction should also be taken into account at an early stage. Applications should
also be accompanied with information relating to the method by which the solar panels are to be fixed to
the ground and the intended hours of construction associated with the proposal. Measures to minimise
instances of significant residential disturbance should be implemented. Actions could include avoidance of
weekend and early morning working.

6.11 Cumulative Impact

6.11.1 Due to increasing numbers of solar arrays being erected in the Carmarthenshire countryside, there is
an increasing need for developers to consider how an additional array will look when assessed against
operational schemes and ones with planning permission.

6.12 Ecology

6.12.1 In identifying suitable sites, consideration should be given to the type of habitats on the site. The
most suitable land for solar arrays would be previously intensively managed agricultural land, being of least
ecological value. Sites should not include semi-natural habitats and should not be located on regionally or
locally designated sites (including Local Nature Reserves, Regionally Important Geological/Geomorphological
Sites, and Sites of Special Scientific Interest).

6.12.2 Sites should also not impact upon priority species, habitats and features of recognised principal
importance to the conservation of biodiversity and nature conservation.

6.13 Historic Environment

6.13.1 Carmarthenshire has an important historic environment, with parts of the County being highly
regarded with features of historic and archaeological importance. Many of these features are protected by
legislation. Consideration needs to be given to the County’s historic environment in the early stages of
schemes. Historic sites include Scheduled Ancient Monuments, Historic Parks and Gardens, Historic
Landscapes, Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings. It is important that the solar arrays do not directly

31
Tl-tdﬁlﬁlmzl lﬂ'gjlar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

physically impact upon the features of historic interest or cause visual harm to the setting of historic and
archaeological sites.

6.13.2 An Archaeological Assessment may be appropriate in locations where solar arrays are proposed
close to known or undiscovered archaeological sites. Such surveys should be undertaken by an appropriately
qualified professional to standards set by the Institute of Archaeologists.

6.13.3 Reference should be made the Archaeology and Development Supplementary Planning Guidance for
further, more detailed advice.

6.14 Drainage / Flood Management / Water Quality

6.14.1 Solar arrays have the potential to increase surface water flood risk. Schemes are expected to be
accompanied with a Surface Water Management Plan which details how such matters will be dealt with
during the construction period and during operation. Consideration should be given to the integration of
Sustainable Drainage Systems (SUDS) within schemes. SUDS is a term used to describe the various
approaches that can be used to manage surface water drainage in a way that mimics the natural
environment in a more sustainable way than conventional drainage systems.

6.14.2 Sites should maintain as much vegetation cover as possible in order to manage surface water
naturally. Access tracks should be permeable and any surface water runoff created by tracks should be
collected by localised SUDS.

6.14.3 Water courses should have a 7m buffer at each side.

6.15 Rights of Ways

6.15.1 A Public Right of Way is a route over which the public have a legal right to pass and re-pass. Public
Rights of Way include footpaths, bridleways and byways and are recorded on a Definitive Map and
Statement which is the legal record. The Definitive Map and Statement is a legal record of public rights of
way in the County.

Considerations:

e  Consideration should be given to the views from public rights of way into the site.

e  Where arrays are likely to impact upon public rights of way, whether temporary or permanently, it is
recommended to discuss the impacts with the Council’s Countryside Recreation & Access Unit. Existing
bridleways and footpaths shall be safeguarded with no permanent loss to the length and quality of
trails.

e  Mitigation should be considered as a permanent measure, or temporary during the construction period.
Such mitigation measures could include the provision of new routes, improving the current right of way
network or interpretation and visitor facilities. Encouragement will be given to enhancing existing
facilities and providing new recreational facilities.

6.15.2 In public areas or areas visited by members of the public, it is expected that the developer provides
interpretation boards explaining the project.

6.16 Glint and Glare

6.16.1 Full consideration should be given to how glint and glare of solar arrays will affect the environs. Glint
is described as intense direct reflections of the sun, while glare as diffuse reflections of the bright sky around
the sun, which is a continuous source of brightness. Glint and glare can cause particular problems for users
to the south-east of a development, for example to homes, businesses and public highways. Applications for
solar arrays will be expected to consider the effects of both glint and glare on the surrounding environment

32
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 143



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

and should be accompanied with a Glint and Glare Assessment. Mitigation measures could be put in place
to address any harmful impact.

6.17 Site Security / Safety / Lighting
6.17.1 Any site security and safety measures should not cause demonstrable harm to landscape and visual
amenity on the site and its surroundings.
e Security fencing should be of an appropriate material and height to the setting of the site, and where
appropriate should be screened by existing or new hedgerows.
e Security lighting should be minimised and use made of infra-red lighting in order to minimise light
pollution and reduce any impact on biodiversity.

6.18 Mitigation

6.18.1 Whilst sympathetic siting, design and layout can reduce the impact on the landscape, mitigation
measures should be considered in order to reduce any adverse impacts. Applications will be expected to
include a Landscape Mitigation Plan, which should include the steps undertaken in site selection, design and
layout, and the considerations to minimise any adverse impacts. The Plan should also include details of its
implementation and any maintenance required.

6.18.2 As part of applications, consideration should be given to enhancing the landscape. Particular
enhancement measures could include hedgerow improvement and management of landscape features and
habitats.

6.19 Construction Period
6.19.1 During construction, consideration should be given to the protection of residential amenities of
properties close to the site, especially in terms of noise.

6.20 Highways

6.20.1 The development of solar arrays will require sufficient and safe access to transport during the
construction period. Proposals will be required to ensure that they do not give rise to problems of highway
safety or have a detrimental effect on the highway network as a result of construction and maintenance
traffic, in line with policy TR2 — Location of Development — Transport Considerations.

Highway Considerations:

e The developer will be required to demonstrate that traffic during construction and maintenance will be
able to travel safely to and from the site. Traffic should not cause damage to existing hedgerows.

e Liaison should be carried out with the Highways Authority after permission is granted in terms of
arranging the timing of delivery in order to minimise traffic disruption

Application checklist
v" Application form (all)
PLANS:
v" Location Plan (1:2,500)
v' Site plans showing: (all)
- the site size,
- site boundary
- location of the panels and association infrastructure (including sub-station & cabling route)
v" Design of the module or array (all)
v'  Elevations to show the proposed location (if applicable)
v" Surface water management plan (if applicable)

33
Tu%@.ﬁh Jné'éljlar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

34
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance TUdalen 145



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

Appendix A
Guidance Document for Assessing Noise Impact

From Wind Turbine(s)

This guidance note is not formal supplementary planning guidance but aims to provide information
and advice to improve the quality of planning submissions, which will enable officers to provide
consistent decision making.

Failure to provide the following information with the full planning application may lead to a delay in
Public Health Team providing comment with respect to the application or even the Public Health
Team objecting to the application due to insufficient information that has been provided, as the
noise impact from the proposed development cannot be sufficiently assessed. Please note that the
provision of noise contours or printouts from computer models alone are not considered as
sufficient information.

1 Definitions

1.1 Small Turbine

A small turbine is defined in accordance with the Renewable UK (formally known as British Wind
Energy Association) definition, which is contained in the BWEA Small Wind Turbine Performance
and Safety Standard 29 February 2008, which can be accessed using the following link
http://www.renewableuk.com/

The definition states that:

“a wind turbine having a rotor swept area of 200m? or less. In a horizontal axis wind turbine this
equates to a rotor diameter of less than 16m.

1.2 Large Turbine
Large turbine is any one that does not fall within the above mentioned definition.

2. The key objective
The key objective of Carmarthenshire County Council is to try and ensure that the wind turbine
noise levels (including cumulative noise from consented and existing turbines in the vicinity) at
noise sensitive properties does not exceed:

1. Small turbines - 35dB Lacq, t

2. Large Turbine - 35dB Lago, 10mins

3. Financially involved - 45dB 1a90,mins

3. Site Specific Desktop Noise Assessment
All applications submitted must include a desktop noise assessment which is specific to the
development locality. The assessment must be undertaken by a suitably qualified and competent
acoustician. The desktop noise assessment should contain all the following information;
e Atwelve figure national grid reference for the precise location of the turbine
e I|dentification of the nearest noise sensitive premises and details of their respective
distances from the proposed development. Property that is in ownership of the applicant

35
Tl-tdﬁlﬁlmzl lﬂ'ﬁ)lar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

should also be included. A statement should be provided as to whether any properties in
ownership of the applicant are let to third parties.

e The make, model, hub height, declared apparent emission sound power level and rotor
diameter of the proposed turbine.

e The most recent turbine-specific emission data (usually supplied by the turbine
manufacturer) providing information on the derivation of the sound power level of the
turbine, including the level of uncertainty.
> For small wind turbines the assessment must comply with the BWEA Small Wind

Turbine Performance and Safety Standard” 29 February 2008.
> For large wind turbines the assessment must comply with the most recent version of
IEC 61400-11.

e An appropriate modelled assessment must be undertaken detailing the predicted level of
turbine noise for each identified receptor:

» For small wind turbines the noise predictions must be undertaken in
accordance with BWEA performance and safety standard, 29 February 2008,

therefore the predictions must be based on a hemispherical sound
propagation. The predictions should be based upon the declared
sound power level up to and including wind speeds of 8m/s at hub height.

» For large wind turbines the noise predictions must made in accordance with
ISO 9613- 2 following the IOA guidance with regards the input
parameters to be used. The predictions must be based upon the
apparent sound power level (plus uncertainty) and a minimum wind speed
range (10m Standardised) for background noise surveys;

0 For pitch-regulated turbines: between cut-in wind speed and the wind
speed corresponding to its maximum sound power level.
0 For stall-regulated turbines: between cut-in and 12m/s

e Where multiple small or large turbines are proposed, a desktop noise assessment must be
submitted that demonstrates that the cumulative noise emissions from the turbine will not
exceed the lower fixed noise limits stipulated in ETSU-R-97.

e |If the proposed development produces noise levels within 10dB of any existing turbine/s,
consented turbine/s and any turbine/s currently the subject of an application at the same
receptor location, then a cumulative noise impact assessment is necessary. In the first
instance, the cumulative impact assessment must be based upon the consented levels of
existing or approved turbines. We appreciate that there may be some circumstances where
an alternative approach is more appropriate. If you wish to use an alternative approach,
please contact the Public Health Team. Should there be no consented levels then the
assessment should be based on the sound power level of the existing or approved turbines.
A full explanation on how the cumulative impact has been determined should be submitted
as part of the application. For assistance in completing this task then please contact the
Carmarthenshire County Council’s planning department on 01267 234567. Carmarthenshire
County Council reserves the right to request a wider search radius where large scale
developments are involved.

e Ininstances were wind shear has not been taken directly into account, it will be necessary
to apply corrections to address this. Any such corrections should be clearly outlined and
detailed in any noise assessment. The Institute of Acoustics “A Good Practice Guide to the

36
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 147



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

Application of ETSU-R-97 For the Assessment and Rating of Wind Turbine Noise” provides
examples of suitable methods to correct predictions to account for wind shear effects.

4. Site Specific Detailed Noise Assessment
Where the site specific desk top study demonstrates that the proposed wind turbine(s) do not meet
the noise limits of:

1. Small turbines - 35dB Lacq, t

2. Large Turbine - 35dB Lago, 10mins

then the applicant must undertake and submit a site specific detailed noise assessment.
This assessment should include the following:

e Predicted turbine(s) noise levels at the noise sensitive properties undertaken in accordance
with the method detailed in point 3.

e A detailed background noise survey undertaken in accordance with requirements stipulated
in ETSU-R-97, which are further explained in Institute of Acoustics’ Good Practice Guide.
Locations and details of which should be discussed and agreed with the local planning
authority. Two weeks’ notice of when the background noise measurements will be
undertaken must be provided to the Public Health Team, so that they can attend where
appropriate.

e Noise limits specified in ETSU-R-97 and the difference between the predicted noise levels
and ETSU-R-97 derived noise limits.

Please Note that the Local Planning Authority of Carmarthenshire County Council so reserve the
rights of specifying a single noise limit, which are not specified in ETSU-R-97.

Example Noise Conditions for Small Wind Turbines
+* The rating level of noise emission from the wind turbines (including the application of any
tonal penalty) should not exceed a sound pressure level of 35 dBLaeq,r Within the amenity
space of any lawfully existing dwelling, at wind speeds up to an including 8m/s at hub
height. Measurements should be made at least 3.5m away from the building facade or any
reflecting surface except the ground.

The measurement time period shall be based on BWEA blade length calculation (3.4.1):

t = 4*D seconds
Where:
t - measurement period in seconds (Subject to a minimum period of 10 seconds)
D — rotor diameter in meters

% Within 21 days from the receipt of written request from the Local Planning Authority, the
operator of the development shall, at its expense, employ an independent consultant
approved by the Local Planning Authority to assess the level of noise imissions from the
wind turbines using a method agreed with the Local Planning Authority, to ensure that the
noise from the development meets the level specified in condition X.

¢ During the course of the investigation, should the wind turbine be identified as operating
above the parameters specified in the above Condition the wind turbines will be modified,
limited or shut down. These measures shall be applied until such time as maintenance or
repair is undertaken sufficient to reduce the absolute noise level of the operating turbines
to within the parameters specified in the above Condition.

¢ In the event that the operational turbine subsequently develops an audible tone, then a
penalty shall be added to the measured sound levels in accordance with ETSU-R-97. This

37
Tmlﬁlﬁh M&Iar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

condition applies where no tone has been identified at the assessment stage and no penalty
applied.

Example Noise conditions in relation to a large wind turbine
+* The rating level of noise immission from the wind turbine/s (including the application of any
tonal penalty) should not exceed a sound pressure level not exceeding 35dB Lago, 10 mins,
within the amenity space of any lawfully existing dwelling, at wind speeds up to an including
10m/s, standardised/measured to a height of 10m.

¢ The noise immision from the wind turbine shall not exceed a sound pressure level Lago, 10 mins
of 45dB at the financially involved noise-sensitive property at wind speeds up to and
including 10m/s at 10m height.

Where this is not possible ETSU-R-97 conditions will apply, based on the background noise levels

and predictions submitted.

% Within 21 days from the receipt of written request from the Local Planning Authority, the
operator of the development shall, at its expense, employ an independent consultant
approved by the Local Planning Authority to assess the level of noise imissions from the
wind turbines using a method agreed with the Local Planning Authority, to ensure that the
noise from the development meets the level specified in condition X.

*» The assessment of the rating level of noise immissions shall be undertaken in accordance
with an assessment protocol that shall previously have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The protocol shall include the proposed
measurement location where measurements for compliance checking purposes shall be
undertaken, the method to assess the presence of any tonal component, and also the range
of meteorological and operational conditions (which shall include the range of wind speeds,
wind directions, power generation and times of day) to determine the assessment of rating
level of noise immissions.

< During the course of the investigation, should the wind turbine be identified as operating
above the parameters specified in the above condition the wind turbine/s will be modified,
limited or shut down. These measures shall be applied until such time as maintenance or
repair is undertaken sufficient to reduce the absolute noise level of the operating turbines
to within the parameters specified in the above condition.

% In the event that the operational turbine subsequently develops an audible tone, then a
penalty shall be added to the measured sound levels in accordance with ETSU-R-97. This
condition applies where no tone has been identified at the assessment stage and no penalty
applied.

Useful web links

1. IOA Good Practice Guide
http://www.ioa.org.uk/pdf/ioa-gpg-on-wtna-issue-01-05-2013.pdf

2. ETSU-R-97
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/+/http://www.berr.gov.uk/energy/sourc
es/renewables/explained/wind/onshore-offshore/page21743.html

3. BWEA Small Wind Turbine Performance and Safety Standard 29 February 2008.
http://www.renewableuk.com/

38
Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance Tudalen 149



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

Appendix B
European Sites

There are a number of European sites that fall within the County, in addition there are a number
that fall outside but should be considered in assessments.

Site Designation | Location

Afon Tywi River Tywi SAC Carmarthenshire

Caeau Mynydd Mawr SAC Carmarthenshire

Cernydd Carmel SAC Carmarthenshire

Carmarthen Bay Dunes SAC Carmarthenshire

Afon Tefi River Teifi SAC Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion and
Pembrokeshire

Afonydd Celddau / Cleddau Rivers SAC Carmarthenshire and Pembrokeshire

Carmarthen Bay and Esturaries SAC Carmarthenshire, Swansea and
Pembrokeshire

Bae Caerfyrddin / Carmarthen Bay SPA Carmarthenshire, Swansea and
Pembrokeshire

Cwm Doethie — Mynydd Mallaen SAC Carmarthenshire and Ceredigion

Elenydd — Mallaen SPA Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion and
Powys

Burry Inlet SPA Carmarthenshire and Swansea

Burry Inlet Ramsar Carmarthenshire and Swansea

Cardigan Bay / Bae Ceredigion SAC Carmarthenshire, Ceredigion and
Pembrokeshire

North Pembrokeshire Woodlands / Coedydd SAC Pembrokshire

Gogledd Sir Benfro

Yerbeston Tops SAC Pembrokshire

Rhos Llawr-cwrt SAC Ceredigion

Pembrokeshire Bat Sites and Bosherton Lakes / SAC Pembrokshire

Safleoedd Ystlym Sir Benfro a LLynnoedd

Bosherton

Gower Ash Woods / Coedydd Ynn Gwyr SAC Swansea

39
Tu&ﬂﬁkﬁlﬁh Jnléa)lar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance



Carmarthenshire Local Development Plan

Pembrokeshire Marine SAC Pembrokshire (The Carmarthenshire
Rivers connect Carmarthenshire with
the Pembrokeshire Marine SAC)

Gower Commons / Tiroedd Comin Gwyr SAC Swansea

River Wye / Afon Gwy SAC Powys (The catchment area for the
River Wye is partially within
Carmarthenshire)

Gweunydd Blaencleddau SAC Pembrokshire

Preseli SAC Pembrokshire

Mynydd Epynt SAC Powys

River Usk, Afon Wysg SAC The catchment area for the River Wye
is partially within Carmarthenshire

Bristol Channel Approaches cSAC Extends across the western

approaches of the Bristol Channel,
from Carmarthen Bay in South Wales
to the north coast of Devon and
Cornwall.

Draft Wind and Solar Energy Supplementary Planning Guidance

Tudalen 41051




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Eitem Rhif 10

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU
11¢9 MAI 2018

Blaenraglen Waith y Pwyllgor Craffu Cymunedau
ar gyfer 2018/19

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt:

e Bod y Pwyllgor yn cadarnhau ei Flaenraglen Waith ar gyfer 2018/19.

Rhesymau:

¢ Mae’n ofynnol yn 6l Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor Sir bod pwyllgorau craffu’n datblygu ac
yn cyhoeddi blaenraglenni gwaith blynyddol sy’n nodi’r pynciau a'r adroddiadau sydd
i'w hystyried yn ystod blwyddyn y cyngor.

Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Bwrdd Gweithredol er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad:
NAC OES

Aelod y Bwrdd Gweithredol sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio: DDIM YN BERTHNASOL

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Swyddi: Rhifau Ffon / Cyfeiriadau E-bost:
Prif Weithredwr
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:
Linda Rees-Jones Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a’r 01267 224010
Gyfraith [jones@sirgar.gov.uk
Awdur yr adroddiad:
Kevin Thomas Swyddog Gwasanaethau 01267 224027
Democrataidd kithomas@sirgar.gov.uk

o Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORArleinamdani
oreor Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshi § i
kbbbl YOUR counciL doitonline Tudalen 153

Q, =2 .
%ty o www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales


mailto:lrjones@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:kjthomas@sirgar.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
11th MAY 2018

Community Scrutiny Committee Forward Work

Programme for 2018/19

Purpose of the Forward Work Programme

Article 6.2 of the County Council’'s Constitution states that: “Each scrutiny committee is
required to develop and publish an annual forward work programme, identifying issues
and reports to be considered during the course of a municipal year”.

The development of a work programme:

Provides an opportunity for members to determine the priority issues to be
considered by their scrutiny committee over the course of the next year.

Provides a focus for both officers and members, and is a vehicle for communicating
the work of the Committee to the public. The programme (see attached report) will be
published on the council’s website and will be updated on a quarterly basis —
www.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/scrutiny — and sent to key stakeholders for information.
It will also be updated on a quarterly basis.

Ensures agreement of provisional agendas for scheduled scrutiny meetings within
the council diary. The Programme is a flexible document that can be amended to
reflect additional meetings and agenda items during the course of the year.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES — Forward Work Programme 17/18

o Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORArleinamdani
oreor Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Tudalen 154

Carmarthenshire . .
&, =2 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
Uy Cons www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales


http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/scrutiny

IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications
associated with this report.

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration & Law

Policy, Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
Crime & Management | Implications Assets
Disorder Issues

and

Equalities

YES YES NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities — In line with requirements of the County
Council’s Constitution.

2. Legal - In line with requirements of the County Council’s Constitution.

CONSULTATIONS

| confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed
below:

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration & Law

1. Local Member(s) — N/A

2. Community / Town Council — N/A

3. Relevant Partners — N/A

4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations — N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:

Title of Document | File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

o Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORArleinamdani
o Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
22 YOUR counciLdoitonline Tudalen 155

@, == .
%ty o www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Community Scrutiny Committee — Forward Work Programme 2018/19

11th May 18 25% June 18 July 4th October 18 239 Nov 18 13th Dec 18 18th Jan 19 15t Feb 19 | 28t March 19
Community End of Year Local Budget Actions and Revenue HRA Budget Q3 New
Scrutiny FWP Budget Development Monitoring Referrals update Budget Service Charges Corporate
18/19 Monitoring Plan — Annual 2018/19 Consultation and Rent Setting Strategy

2017/18 Monitoring 2019/20 - 2019/20 Performance
Report 2021/22 Management
Report
2018/18
Approach to Scrutiny LDP Q1 New Ammanford and Capital Budget Carmarthenshire
Homelessness Actions Preferred Corporate Carmarthen Consultation Home Standards
Strategy Update Strate Strategy Regeneration Plus (HRA
gy Performance Business Plan
Management 2019-2022)
Report 2018/18
New Corporate Theatre and Compliments Annual Communities Welsh Public
Strategy Arts Strategy and Complaints | Performance Departmental Library Standards
2018-2022 Report Report Business Plan Annual Report
(Planning 2017/18:
Services Carmarthenshire
Amendments Annual Report Community Chief Budget Monitoring
to Private Wellbeing Scrutiny Annual Executive’s Report 2018/19
Sector Objective Report 2017/18 Departmental
. 2017/18 Business Plan
Housing
Renewal
Policy
Supplementary Llanelli Home Environment Scrutiny Actions
Planning Development C_h_ecker/MOT Dep_artmental Update
Guidance — Order visits Business Plan

rgy

/ST uareprtl




—

L@_P Delivery Supplementar Homelessness
Agreement y Planning Strategy
D Guidance —
- Highways
=
% Section 106 Counter
Update Terrorism

ITEMS CARRIED OVER FROM PREVIOUS WORK PROGRAMME:

COMMITTEE SUGGESTIONS FOR NEW PROGRAMME:

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION

DEVELOPMENT SESSIONS:

TBC

SITE VISITS (TBC):

Outdoor Recreation — Burry Port Harbour, Pembrey Country Park.
Regeneration Projects — e.g. Crosshands, Pendine, S4C building,
Wellness Centre

Leisure Facilities

Theatres

Libraries (repeat for new Members)

Museums — link to Museums Strategies

To view one of the new mobile libraries (Action Sheet 20t
January refers)

Carmarthen Velodrome



Dates to be Confirmed
Neighbourhood Support Strategy
Universal Credit Action Plan

Tenant Vision Engagement Plan - deferred from February 2018

6GT usfepnlL

TASK & FINISH REVIEW SUGGESTIONS:

e Large empty old churches/chapels/ halls blighting town centres
(provisional — awaiting the outcome of initial investigations by the
Ammanford Task Group)

e Provision of affordable Bungalows in Carmarthenshire



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Eitem Rhif 11

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
11™ MAY 2018

FORTHCOMING ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING
25™ JUNE, 2018

Discussion Topic Background

End of Year Budget Monitoring This item will provide a report on the final out turn

2017/18 in respect of the revenue and capital budgets for
2017/18

Scrutiny Actions update This item will provide members with an update on

progress achieved in relation to actions, requests
or referrals emerging from previous meetings

Theatre and Arts Strategy 2018- This item will provide committee with an overview

2022 of the development of the Theatres & Arts services
for the next four years.

Annual Report Well-being This report will provide members with details of the

Objective 2017/18 Council’'s performance for 2017/18

Llanelli Development Order This report will provide Committee with an update

on the proposed introduction of the Llanelli
Development Order

Supplementary Planning Guidance | This report refers to the proposed introduction of
- Highways Supplementary Planning Guidance for highways to
be subject to formal public consultation for 6 weeks.

Section 106 Update This report is being provided in response to a
request from the Committee and will provide an
outline on current requirements in relation to
Section 106 Agreements

S EICH cYNGorarleinamdani Tudalen 161
orser Sir Ga'f www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
q <=2 YOUR couNciLdoitonline
ity Cow www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Eitem Rhif 12

COMMUNITY SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
11™H MAY 2018

Explanation for non-submission
of scrutiny report

ITEM RESPONSIBLE EXPLANATION REVISED
OFFICER SUBMISSION DATE

Counter Terrorism Wendy Walters Continue to wait for result of | October 2018

pilot programme in order to

present likely duties for local

government.

. Ay EICH CYNGORaArleinamdani
C Lo tﬁ"‘ thjy www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
armarcnensnire - B
R Your counciLdoitonline Tudalen 163

Oy A
“nty Cowt

www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Eitem Rhif 13

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU

Dydd lau, 29 Mawrth 2018

YN BRESENNOL: Y Cynghorydd S.L. Davies (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorwyr:
D.M. Cundy, C.A. Davies, W.R.A. Davies, H.L. Davies, B.W. Jones, B.A.L. Roberts,
A.Vaughan Owen and J.G. Prosser (In place of S. Matthews)

Hefyd yn bresennol:
Y Cynghorwyr L.D. Evans, Aelod y Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Tai
A.G. Morgan

Yr oedd y swyddogion canlynol yn gwasanaethu yn y cyfarfod:
I. Jones, Pennaeth Hamdden

J. Morgan, Pennaeth Cartrefi a Chymunedau Mwy Diogel Dros Dro
S. Walters, Rheolwr Datblygu Economaidd

J. Willis, Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Tai (Cyngor a Dewisiadau)

S Jenkins, Physlcal Regeneration Strategic Programme Manager
A Bowen, Arweinydd Buddsodi yn ein Tai

T Peregrine, Datblygu Economaidd Cydlwydd

K. Thomas, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Siambr, 3 Heol Spilman, Caerfyrddin - 10.00 - 11.35 am

1.

YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB

Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorwyr K. Howells, H.I.
Jones, S. Matthews, H. Shepardson a G.B. Thomas.

DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL

Ni ddatganwyd unrhyw fuddiannau personol.

DATGAN CHWIP WAHARDDEDIG

Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau ynghylch chwip waharddedig.
CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD | LAW)
Nid oedd cwestiynau gan y cyhoedd wedi dod i law.

CANOL TREF LLANELLI - ADFYWIO

Cafodd y Pwyllgor gyflwyniad am waith adfywio yng Nghanol Tref Llanelli. Mae
hwn yn cyd-fynd & gwaith Tasglu Llanelli a oedd wedi ceisio ysgogi twf a
buddsoddiad yng nghanol y dref dros y ddwy flynedd ddiwethaf. Roedd hynny'n
cynnwys cefnogi masnachwyr, lleihau nifer yr eiddo gwag a masnachol, rhoi hwb i
fusnesau, hyrwyddo canol y dref fel lle i fyw, gweithio, siopa ac ymweld ag ef, gan
gynyddu nifer yr ymwelwyr a chan sicrhau ei fod yn l1an ac yn hygyrch i bawb.

o Sir GarJh EICH CYNGOrarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . ]
G A YOour counciL doitonline Tudalen 165
ity Con® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Nododd y Pwylligor fod y mentrau/cronfeydd canlynol wedi'u sefydlu/sicrhau i helpu
i gyflawni'r nodau a'r cynigion adfywio ar gyfer canol tref Llanelli a'r sir gyfan:-

VV VVYYVY

Darparu rhaglen Stryd Cyfleoedd;

Cynllun Benthyciadau Canol Tref;

Grant Cychwyn Busnes Sir Gaerfyrddin a Chronfa Tyfu Busnes Sir
Gaerfyrddin;

Cronfa Datblygu Eiddo Masnachol Trawsnewid Sir Gaerfyrddin;
Rhaglen Targedu Buddsoddiad Adfywio.

Rhoddwyd sylw i'r cwestiynau/materion canlynol wrth drafod y cyflwyniad:-

Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn am Grant Cychwyn Busnes Sir Gaerfyrddin a
Chronfa Tyfu Busnes Sir Gaerfyrddin, cadarnhaodd y Rheolwr Datblygu
Economaidd nad oedd y cynlluniau'n benodol i Lanelli a'u bod ar gael yn 'y
sir gyfan. Cyfanswm y cyllid a oedd ar gael oedd £500,000, ac yr oedd
unrhyw ddyfarniad o'r grant yn amodol ar nifer o feini prawf cymhwyso.
Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynghylch yr adeilad eglwys sydd wedi'i ddifrodi
gan dan yn Stryd Murray, Llanelli, dywedodd y Rheolwr Datblygu
Economaidd y gallai ymchwilio i'r sefylifa bresennol o ran yr eiddo hwnnw.
Cyfeiriwyd at hygyrchedd canol y dref ar gyfer beicwyr a gofynnwyd am
eglurdeb ynghylch y sefyllfa bresennol o ran llunio mapiau gwybodaeth sy'n
cyfeirio beicwyr o'r llwybr arfordirol i ganol y dref. Cadarnhawyd, er bod nifer
o bwyntiau mynediad at ganol y dref wedi'u creu, fod rhaid gwneud gwaith
ychwanegol i hysbysebu'r llwybrau hynny.

Atgoffwyd y Pwyllgor gan y Pennaeth Hamdden fod yr Awdurdod yn paratoi
strategaeth feicio sir gyfan. Yr oedd hynny'n cynnwys sefydlu griwp beicio
sy'n ynnwys SUSTRANS, Grwpiau Gwirfoddol a'i Is-adran Cyfathrebu
gyda'r nod o ddatblygu dull cydlynus tuag at feicio yn y Sir, a byddai
hynny'n cynnwys cyhoeddi map beicio.

Yn deillio o'r uchod, cyfeiriwyd at gynnwys sefydliadau allanol megis y
Gymdeithas Dreftadaeth er mwyn cael cyswllt & thwristiaeth ac annog mwy
o ymwelwyr i ddod i ganol y dref i hyrwyddo atyniadau megis Plas Llanelly a
Pharc Howard ar yr hysbysfyrddau gwybodaeth am dreftadaeth sydd yn yr
ardal.

Cyfeiriwyd at yr effaith y gallai'r ardrethi busnes masnachol ei chael ar
gynigion ailddatblygu canol y dref. Cadarnhawyd, yn dilyn ymarfer ailbrisio
a gynhaliwyd gan y Swyddfa Ailbrisio ym mis Ebrill y llynedd, fod lefel yr
ardrethi ar gyfer eiddo yng nghanol y dref wedi lleihau'n sylweddol, hyd at
ddwy ran o dair mewn rhai achosion. Yr oedd un o'r gostyngiadau mwyaf
yng Nghymru yn Stryd Stepney a Stryd Vaughan.

Cyfeiriwyd at y gwaith sy'n cael ei wneud i adnewyddu eiddo yng nghanol y
dref ac a yw'r Cyngor, fel landlord, wedi mabwysiadu gofyniad bod
tenantiaid yn hyrwyddo dwyieithrwydd yn eu harwyddion ac ati.
Cadarnhaodd y Rheolwr Datblygu Economaidd y byddai'n adolygu'r sefyllfa
bresennol o ran gofynion y cyngor ar gyfer dangos arwyddion dwyieithog ac
ati ar safle unrhyw siop a osodir fel rhan o gynllun Adfywio Tref Llanelli ac
yn rhoi gwybod i aelodau'r Pwyllgor am y canlyniad.

Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn am yr amser sydd ei angen er mwyn prosesu
ceisiadau am Grant Cychwyn Busnes Sir Gaerfyrddin a Chronfa Tyfu

o Sir GarJh EICH CYNGOrarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Tudalen 166

Carmarthenshire . ]
q <2 YOur counciLdoitonline
ity Con® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Busnes Sir Gaerfyrddin, dywedodd y Rheolwr Datblygu Economaidd mai'r
gobaith oedd y gallent gael eu prosesu o fewn mis ar 6l dod i law, yn
amodol ar yr holl wybodaeth angenrheidiol gan yr ymgeisydd wrth wneud y
cais.

e Cyfeiriwyd at Gam 3 Benthyciadau Canol Tref ac a oed ar gael i'w dyrannu
yn Rhydaman. Cadarnhaodd y Rheolwr Datblygu Economaidd mai dyna
oedd y sefyllifa, ond nid oedd dim cais wedi'i dderbyn hyd yn hyn i'w wario
ar brosiectau yn Rhydaman.

Yn deillio o'r uchod, gofynnwyd a ellid rhoi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i'r
Pwyllgor am y sefyllfa yn Rhydaman. Atgoffwyd y Pwyllgor hefyd fod
Arweinydd y Cyngor, yng nghyfarfod y Cyngor ar 14 Chwefror, wedi rhoi
gwybod i'r Cyngor am waith y tasgluoedd a sefydlwyd ar gyfer canol trefi
Llanelli a Rhydaman a hefyd am waith griwp Datblygu Tref Caerfyrddin.
Dywedodd y Rheolwr Datblygu Economaidd y gallai drefnu cael cyflwyniad
mewn cyfarfod o'r Pwyllgor yn y dyfodol am waith adfywio ar gyfer
Rhydaman a Chaerfyrddin.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn y cyflwyniad.

ADRODDIAD MONITRO PERFFORMIAD AMCANION LLESIANT 2017/18
CWARTER 3 - 1AF EBRILL I'R 31AIN O RAGFYR 2017

Cafodd y Pwyllgor Adroddiad Monitro Perfformiad Amcanion Llesiant 2017/18 ar
gyfer Chwarter 3 i'w ystyried gyda golwg ar y cyfnod rhwng 1 Ebrill a 31 Rhagfyr
2017.

Rhoddwyd sylw i'r materion canlynol wrth drafod yr adroddiad:-

¢ Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn am nifer yr ymwelwyr & chanolfannau hamdden y
Cyngor, sy'n is na'r disgwyl, dywedodd y Pennaeth Hamdden fod y
dangosydd dan sylw yn fesur cenedlaethol sy'n cynnwys cwsmeriaid sy'n
talu a heb fod yn dalu ac yn cynnwys y cyfleusterau eraill a reolir gan yr
awdurdod megis parciau. Er bod y ffigurau wedi cynyddu 45,000 o'u
cymharu a'r un cyfnod y llynedd, yn ogystal & chynnydd cyfatebol mewn
incwm, nid oeddent wedi cyrraedd y targed a gallai hyn fod yn gysylitiedig a
nifer yr ymwelwyr a chyfleusterau awyr agored. Fodd bynnag, byddai'r
ffigurau'n cael eu dadansoddi ymhellach er mwyn cael dealltwriaeth well o'r
rhesymau dros beidio & chyrraedd y targed.

e O rany cynigion i ddatblygu ystod o opsiynau i wobrwyo tenantiaid am ofalu
am eu cartrefi eu hunain, cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Dros Dro Cartrefi a
Chymunedau Mwy Diogel fod cynigion yn cael eu datblygu, gyda golwg ar
eu cyflwyno i gyfarfod yn y dyfodol. Gallai'r rheiny gynnwys, er enghraifft,
gwobrwyo'r tenantiaid sy'n cadw eu cartrefi mewn cyflwr addurnol da, sy'n
talu rhent ar amser neu sy'n talu drwy ddebyd uniongyrchol.

¢ Ymatebodd y Rheolwr Cyngor a Chymorth Tenantiaeth i gwestiwn am nifer
gyfartalog y diwrnodau calendr a gymerwyd i ddarparu Grant Cyfleusterau
i'r Anabl a dywedodd fod tua 600 yn cael eu darparu bob blwyddyn, ac
mai'r amser a gymerir er mwyn eu darparu o fewn stoc tai'r Cyngor yw 50
diwrnod ar gyfartaledd. Fodd bynnag, gallai'r amser a gymerir yn y sector
preifat fod yn hwy o lawer, gan mai perchennog y ty, nid y Cyngor, sy'n
gyfrifol am gomisiynu adeiladwr i ymgymryd a'r gwaith. Cadarnhaodd fod y

o Sir GarJh EICH CYNGOrarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . ]
¢ YOURr counciL doitonline Tudalen 167
ity Con® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Cyngor yn monitro ansawdd y gwaith a wneir ac nad oedd prosiectau yn
cael eu cymeradwyo os nad oedd y safonau gofynnol yn cael eu bodloni.

¢ Ymatebodd y Rheolwr Cyngor a Chymorth Tenantiaeth i gwestiwn am
ddigartrefedd a chadarnhaodd fod yr Adran yn ymgymryd ag asesiadau
rheolaidd ynghylch nifer y bobl sy'n cysgu ar y stryd, a nodwyd yn yr un
diweddaraf fod 11 o unigolion o'r fath. O'r rheiny, darparwyd llety i hanner
ohonynt ac yr oedd trafodaethau'n cael eu cynnal gyda'r lleill. Yr oedd
strategaeth digartrefedd newydd yn cael ei pharatoi hefyd, mewn
ymgynghoriad a'r sector gwirfoddol, i'w chyflwyno i gyfarfod y Pwyllgor yn y
dyfodol.

e Cyfeiriwyd at theméu ymgyrchoedd amrywiol o ran twristiaeth e.e. y
Fiwyddyn Chwedlau, Blwyddyn y Mér 2018 a Blwyddyn Darganfod Cymru
Gyfan 2019 ac a yw'r awdurdod yn elwa ar y rheiny. Cadarnhaodd y
Rheolwr Datblygu Economaidd fod yr awdurdod yn gallu cynllunio i
gyflwyno pob thema wrth iddi gael ei chyhoeddi, a'i fod yn achub ar bob
cyfle i dderbyn cyllid er mwyn helpu i'w hyrwyddo a manteisio ar y buddion
i Sir Gaerfyrddin.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn yr adroddiad.

7. DARPARU BYNGALOS FFORDDIADWY YN SIR GAERFYRDDIN

Derbyniodd y Pwyligor adroddiad am ddarparu byngalos fforddiadwy yn Sir
Gaerfyrddin, a oedd yn cynnwys y canlynol:-

» Golwg gyffredinol ar yr angen, y galw a'r ddarpariaeth bresennol o ran
byngalos fforddiadwy;

» Manylion am ddemograffeg tenantiaid presennol ac ymgeiswyr sy'n dymuno
dod yn denantiaid i'r Cyngor;

» Amlinelliad o'r dewisiadau eraill ar gael i helpu tenantiaid hyn ac anabl i
barhau i fod yn annibynnol yn eu cartrefi eu hunain.

Rhoddwyd sylw i'r cwestiynau/materion canlynol wrth drafod yr adroddiad:-

e Cyfeiriwyd at ddiffyg tai un ystafell wely sydd ar gael yn yr ardaloedd
gwledig a nifer yr eiddo dwy ystafell wely sydd ar gael sydd, yn unol &
pholisi'r Cyngor, yn cael eu dyrannu i'r rheiny sydd dros 55 oed. Gofynnwyd
am eglurdeb o ran gweithredu'r polisi hwnnw mewn perthynas & phobl
anabl o dan y terfyn oedran hwnnw sydd am aros yn y gymuned yn agos at
gymorth eu teuluoedd.

Cadarnhawyd, er bod y Cyngor yn gweithredu'n unol &'r polisi dros 55 wrth
ddyrannu, y caniateir eithriadau lle mae cyflyrau meddygol a chorfforol yn
berthnasol. Mae'r Cyngor hefyd yn defnyddio cofrestr tai hygyrch lle gellir gwneud
addasiadau i eiddo unigolyn er mwyn diwallu ei anghenion penodol.

o Cafwyd trafodaeth sylweddol o ran y mathau o dai a ddarperir gan y Cyngor
a'r angen i ddiwallu anghenion newidiol tenantiaid e.e. symud i dy llai ar 6l
i'r plant adael, yr angen am dy mwy wrth i deuluoedd dyfu. Fel rhan o'r
drafodaeth honno cyfeiriwyd at gynnwys yr Is-adran Cynllunio wrth edrych
ar yr angen i adeiladu eiddo mewn perthynas a pharatoi'r CDLI diwygiedig.

o Sir GarJh EICH CYNGOrarleinamdani
orser Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . ]
Tudalen 168 ¢ YOURr counciL doitonline
ity Con® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



10.

Wrth ymateb i'r materion a godwyd, rhoddwyd gwybod i'r Pwyllgor gan Bennaeth
Dros Dro Cartrefi a Chymunedau Mwy Diogel mai'r galw mwyaf yr oedd y Cyngor
yn ei wynebu oedd darparu llety un ystafell wely ar gyfer pobl sengl. Cyfeiriodd at
awgrym y Pwyllgor i sefydlu Grwp Gorchwyl a Gorffen er mwyn archwilio'r
ddarpariaeth o fyngalos a dywedodd y byddai angen bod yn benodol o ran maes
gorchwyl y griwp a'r canlyniadau posibl. Felly awgrymodd y byddai'n fuddiol, yn 'y
lle cyntaf, iddo baratoi dogfen gwmpasu sy'n adlewyrchu safowynt y Pwyllgor ac
yn nodi lefel yr adnoddau sydd ar gael i hwyluso'r gwaith o gyflawni unrhyw
ganlyniadau.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL baratoi dogfen gwmpasu ynghylch
darparu byngalos fforddiadwy yn Sir Gaerfyrddin i'w chyflwyno i gyfarfod y
Pwyligor yn y dyfodol.

EGLURHAD AM BEIDIO A CHYFLWYNO ADRODDIAD CRAFFU

Ystyriodd y Pwyllgor y rhesymau a roddwyd dros beidio & chyflwyno dau
adroddiad.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn yr adroddiad nad oedd wedi'i
gyflwyno.

30AIN IONAWR, 2018

Cyfeiriwyd at benderfyniad Cofnod 5 a nodwyd yn 'unfrydol'. Rhoddwyd gwybod i'r
Pwyllgor bod hyn yn anghywir ac y dylai fod wedi darllen 'PENDERFYNWYD'

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL lofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor a
gynhaliwyd ar 30 lonawr, 5 yn gofnod cywir yn amodol ar newid y
penderfyniadau yng Nghofnod 3 i ddarllen 'PENDERFYNWYD"'.

16EG CHWEFROR, 2018

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL lofnodi bod cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor
a gynhaliwyd ar 16 Chwefror 2018 yn gywir.

CADEIRYDD DYDDIAD

EICH CYNGORarleinamdani

>
omeer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire

Q, A .
%ty Cows® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

YOour counciLdoitonline Tudalen 169



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



	Agenda
	5 FERSIWN DDRAFFT O STRATEGAETH GORFFORAETHOL NEWYDD 2018-23
	Adroddiad
	Introduction
	Infographic 1
	Infographic 2
	WBO 1
	WBO 2
	WBO 3
	WBO 4
	WBO 5
	WBO 6
	WBO 7
	WBO 8
	WBO 9
	WBO 10
	WBO 11
	Infographic 3
	WBO 12
	WBO 13
	WBO 14
	WBO 15
	Infographic 4
	Infographic 5
	Infographic 6
	Appendices
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	6 STRATEGAETH DIGARTREFEDD
	Atodiad 1

	7 NEWID I'R POLISI ADNEWYDDU TAI Y SECTOR PREIFAT
	8 CYNLLUN DATBLYGU LLEOL DIWYGIEDIG 2018 - 2033 CYTUNDEB CYFLAWNI DRAFFT
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2

	9 CANLLAWIAU CYNLLUNIO ATODOL DRAFFT - YNNI GWYNT AC YNNI'R HAUL CYNLLUN DATBLYGU LLEOL SIR GAERFYRDDIN
	Adroddiad

	10 BLAENRAGLEN WAITH Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU CYMUNEDAU AR GYFER 2018/19
	Adroddiad

	11 EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL
	12 EGLURHAD AM BEIDIO Â CHYFLWYNO ADRODDIAD CRAFFU
	13 LLOFNODI YN GOFNODAU CYWIR COFNODION Y PWYLLGOR A GYNHALIWYD AR 29AIN MAWRTH, 2018



